10.

AGENDA
REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
February 12, 2020 9:30 AM

Open Meeting

Approve Agenda

. Approve Minutes

Documents:
02_05_2020 - DRAINAGE MINUTES.PDF

Approve Claims For Payment
Documents:

PAYABLES-DRAINAGE PUBLICATION 2-14-20.PDF

DD 25 WOL1 - Discuss W/ Possible Action, Update On RR Crossing
DD 25 WO 1- Update from CGA on RR Crossing Permit.

Documents:

DD 25 - UPRR REVISED PERMIT 02_11_20.PDF

. DD 48 WO 274 - Discuss W/ Possible Action, Investigation Summary

Documents:
DD 48 WO 274 INVESTIGATION SUMMARY 02_11 20 6486.5 .PDF

DD 55-3 Lat 9 WO 224 - Discuss W/ Possible Action - Repair Summary

Documents:
DD 55 WO 224 REPAIR SUMMARY 02_11 20 6636.6.PDF

DD 55-3 Lat 12 WO 201 - Discuss W Possible Action - Repair Summary

Documents:
DD 55-3 LAT 12 WO 201 REPAIR SUMMARY 02_10 2020 6636.4.PDF

DD 86 - Discuss W Possible Action - Engineer's Report On Main Tile Repairs

Documents:

DD 86 ENGINEERS REPORT.PDF
6789.3 - DD 86 SUPP ENGINEERS REPORT.PDF

DD 165 - Set Election Date, Appoint Judges And Clerks



Documents:
DD 165 ELECTION DATE, JUDGES AND CLERKS 02_11 20.PDF

11. Other Business

12. Adjourn Meeting


https://www.hardincountyia.gov/6eb3df69-4a60-42a4-a6e7-50cc70da605c

REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
February 5, 2020 9:30 AM

2/5/2020 - Minutes

. Open Meeting

Hardin County Drainage District Chairperson, Lance Granzow opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee BJ
Hoffman; Landowner Curt Groen; Lee Gallentine of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates; and Drainage Clerk, Denise
Smith.

. Approve Agenda
Granzow motioned to approve the agenda. Second by Hoffman. All ayes. Motion carried.

. Approve Minutes
Motion by Hoffman to approve the minutes to DD 55- DD 55-3 CREP Wetlands Meeting dated 01-22-20 and
Regular Drainage Meeting dated 01-29-20. Second by Granzow. Motion carried.

. DD 86 - Public Hearing On Engineer's Report On Main Tile Repairs To Reconvene

Granzow re-opened the Public Hearing on DD 86. The Trustees had directed Smith to verify date of the last
classification for this district. The current classification was done in 1918 for $$5,845.25. There was some talk of
reclassification in 2003 in the Ryken Study & Report dated December 2003, but the 2004 assessments were
based on the original $5,845.25 classification so the reclassification that was discussed must never have been
approved/completed. There was an assessment done in 2018 for DD86 for $58,750.00 for work done on work
orders #150 & #172.

Landowner Randy Jennings had expressed concern in his letter, that the majority of the assessment for this
project would have fallen on his parcels, $15,000 of the estimated $96,000 costs for this project would be
assessed to Jennings. Randy Jennings had objected to the costs, and requested a reclassification. Landowner
James Heddens, had requested a less costly option, to possibly include an open ditch option. CGA has submitted
a Supplement to the Engineer's Reports on Repairs to the Main Tile DD86. Gallentine stated the cost on the open
ditch option is $81,578.13, which is about $12,000 less than the partial tree removal, root cutting and tile lining tile
cost of $93,940.63 and full tree removal and partial tile replacement cost of $93,006.25. Both of those options
include full tree removal from Dago Lake up to the outlet.

Gallentine stated that this work order/project began north of Monarch Pond because there was water coming
overland and there was a tree there, so they pulled the tree and replaced the outlet. It was discussed at that time,
that the trees at Monarch Pond needed to come out, so those trees were removed, there was one tree left with a
park bench around it, that the landowner wanted to keep, and the landowner wanted to know why his tree was to
come out but other trees within 50' of the tile line were not. There was not an actual complaint on drainage, just on
the tree removal being equitable.

Granzow stated the open ditch is along the railroad's property, on which much of the tree growth lies, and a new
classification should be done and the expense should be done accordingly, because it will be costly to do anything
along railroad property, let alone the difficulty in getting approval to do anything on railroad property. Gallentine
stated last assessment was $58,750.00 for 2 work orders, which involved engineering and construction costs for a
small repair to take out trees after it is already plugged, this is $80-90,000 to take out a larger section and remove
trees, it is up to the Trustees on how much they want to spend on preventative maintenance. Granzow stated we
should reclassify, as the request was made by Jennings, especially since it has not been classified since 1918,
and it may no longer be accurate. A lot of the issues are in the railroads property, so Granzow likes the open ditch
option, as it requires less overall maintenance, but that should be reflected in the classification because of the
railroads lack of responsibility in keeping tree growth down. Gallentine noted that the recommendations of the
Trustees are highly valued by the Classification Committee. Granzow stated he would like to look at
reclassification first and then look at work on the project.

Hoffman would prefer to do the reclassification first, and considering the attendance of the DD 86 hearings, with
only two letters of communication from landowners, then discuss the project options. Gallentine noted that water is
flowing, the water hits the intake where the trees are, boils out of the intake, then goes overland, until it gets to the
other side of the railroad tracks, then goes back under, it is flowing but only under pressure, it is not flowing with
gravity, and that the Trustees can initiate repairs if needed without a landowner complaint if they so choose.



Hoffman would like to start the reclassification before the tile fails, so it is in place when repairs are needed.
Hoffman, asked if we were to do tree removal alone, what would costs be? Gallentine stated without the railroads
tree removal, just from their land to downstream, costs may be $25,000-$40,000, this would not address the issue
in the railroads parcel where the issue with the tile is, but would go from there to Dago Lake. Hoffman, does not
want to try to get around breaking a project into several pieces, but we could do the trees and reclassify and then
determine down the road if any additional repairs are needed, and the reclassification may put costs to the railroad
where they belong and may help the other landowners. Granzow stated that is where we started, and we would
need to address the entire problem, and we should begin with the reclassification. Hoffman asked how long
railroad permitting would take, Gallentine stated it could take 1 to 3 years for railroad permitting.

Motion to close the public hearing by Granzow. Hoffman seconded. All ayes. Motion carried.

Motion by Granzow to have Drainage Clerk Smith to add these discussion items to next week's regular drainage
agenda. Second by Hoffman. All ayes. Motion carried.

5. DD 9 - Discuss W/ Possible Action - ROW Easement

Smith updated the Trustees that the DD 9 right of way easement document had been mailed out to landowner Ron
Sailer and his tenant Kevin Vierkandt, via USPS Certified Mail and delivery has been verified. Smith asked the
Trustees how they would like to proceed. Gallentine noted that plans and specs are ready, and it would take 4
weeks for bid letting which would hit the first part of March, and would prefer not to do a March, April or May bid
letting, but that the project can not move forward until the right of way easement is signed.

Hoffman motioned to have Smith give Sailer and Vierkandt a courteous phone call and see if they have any
questions that the Clerk can help them with and to find out a timeline of when it may be signed and submitted.
Granzow seconded. All ayes. Motion carried.

6. DD 25 - WO 1 - Discuss W Possible Action - Update Project 6501 RR Crossing
DD 25 - WO 1 - Gallentine provided an update with communication on the amended RR permit we are working on,
Gallentine stated that last Friday, the railroad emailed him back and stated "The formal correspondence may be
may be signed and processed early next week". Gallentine will provide any new updates as soon as they are
received from the railroad. Smith will add it to next week's agenda for possible action if no new updates are
forthcoming.

7. DD 25 - Discuss W Possible Action - Crop Damage Claim

DD 25 - The Trustees had received a request for crop damage claim from DD 25 tenant Jason Martin for crop
damages done in 2019 during work on the DD 25 crossing project. CGA verified acres of damage as .54 acres of
beans and .14 acres of corn. Martin reported 1.5 acres of corn damaged, Smith reached out to Martin for
clarification on the discrepancy between CGA's findings of .14 acres and his report of 1.5 acres. Martin reported
he has an area near where they have been working next to the railroad tracks that floods out every year to about 3
acres in size, this year he thought the flooded acres looked larger due to the work they were doing so he reported
the increased flooded acres. Jason says that the 1.5 acres of corn he reported was his best guesstimate on the
size of the additional flooded acres.

Gallentine states CGA reported actual area that the contractor had disturbed, he stated that CGA does not shoot
or report on flooded acres, because they do not have a history of what usually floods out. Gallentine stated the
acres of beans reported by Martin matches up with CGA's reported findings pretty close, but the corn is quite a bit
off from CGA's findings. Hoffman noted that flooded area can be flooded one day and not two weeks from now, it
can be very subjective. Hoffman asked what precedence was, to accept engineer's numbers. Granzow stated we
have always paid where we have damaged, but not always areas that have flooded.

Gallentine stated we have been working on this area for 2-3 years now. Hoffman stated he was more likely to
accept CGA's findings of actual work disturbance to areas damaged rather than acres for flooding. Granzow stated
we know what we damaged, and we must pay on that.

Motion to have Smith review crop insurance prices and tabulate loss damages using CGA totals for acres
damaged, and bring back a revised crop loss damage claim for review. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion
carried.

8. DD H-S 35-1 WO 240 - Discuss W Possible Action - Repair Summary



10.

11.

12.

DD H-S 35-1 - Gallentine stated this work order had been out quite a while, McDowell had been going to do it, they
did not get to it, so Adam Seward went out to work on it. It was a simple repair on a wide joint that was previously
repaired on single wall tile. Single wall tile was removed and dual wall pipe with concrete collars was installed.
After the freeze / thaw cycle there may be some leveling needed in the spring. It was unknown who had done
previous repair. If more reports of restricted drainage appear in the area, it may be warranted to conduct a
widespread study of the area, but at this time it looks like an isolated repair.

DD 36 - WO 268 - Discuss W Possible Action - Investigation Summary

DD 36 - WO 268 - Gallentine stated this had originally been turned in as DD 106 which is a defunct / inactive
district. This work order was based on a report from Trustee McClellan, who noted an area of blowout on the
shortcut to Hubbard. CGA investigated and it looked like someone had done a repair, if they want more details
they could contact the tenant. Granzow stated he is not concerned about it if tile is flowing and we don't have a bill
for the work. Landowner Curt Groen noted that area has always flooded, and the parcel just to the east had a lot of
private tile installed this fall. Smith asked if this could be reported as complete. Granzow stated it could be marked
as complete.

DD 154 - WO 277 - Discuss W Possible Action - Investigation Summary

DD 154 - WO 277 - Roger Woolworth turned this in, he is a landowner at the outlet of DD 154, and his biggest
complaint was surface water coming upstream from him and flowing across his property, and CGA confirmed that
is happening. When CGA was onsite, they noted several trees within 50' of the tile, so it is possible that they can
be impacting the tile, it looks like the surface water runs towards the acreage, and not the old creek bank to the
north. Downstream of the tile outlet there is a Missouri crossing or a low water crossing that is about 1.2' higher
than the flowline of the tile outlet, that it is acting like a dam more than a low water crossing. That doesn't cause
more surface water to come his way, but it does cause a continual backup in the tile outlet which could cause more
surface water to come his way. The Missouri crossing is outside the district but it is impacting the district tile. After
verifying the tile route, CGA recommends that all trees within 50' of the tile be removed and treated to prevent
regrowth. CGA also recommends contacting the owner of the Missouri crossing so that it can be reworked and it
does free flow, and there is no rodent guard on the outlet, CGA recommends that a rodent guard be installed.

All that said, it may still not alleviate Woolworth's problems with a big enough rain. Gallentine stated while this
overland drainage isn't currently a district facility problem unless the district originally constructed this waterway,
CGA did not see anything to indicate this on the maps this but could check into it. Granzow stated we could have
Roger attend a meeting for an explanation and to answer his questions, because we can reach out to the
landowner of the Missouri crossing, but we have no jurisdiction, it would be nice if we can talk with the landowners
before we spend money on a project. Gallentine noted that we should send Woolworth a copy of the Engineer's
Investigation Report.

Motion by Hoffman to have Smith contact Roger Woolworth to come in for a meeting in the next few weeks to
discuss his concerns. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion Carried.

DD 55-3 Lat 10 - WO 284 Discuss W Possible Action

DD 55-3 Lat 10 - Smith reports that there was an active beaver dam reported by CGA staff working in the area.
This was in the same area as previous WO 165, which was repaired in 2017, which included beaver trapping and
dam removal at that time. Now there is a dam both north and south of the road, Gallentine noted there is a bend in
the open ditch which changes the water velocity and there is an abandoned RR right of way full of trees just north
of the road, and it is an inviting area for beavers. Hoffman recommended to send out a trapper to trap beavers,
once beavers are removed it can be sent to lottery.

Motion by Hoffman to send out Nuisance Wildlife Control Operator to trap the beavers and report back once
beavers are removed. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.

DD 165 -Discuss W Possible Action - Acknowledge Receipt Of Petition For Private Trustee Management

DD 165 - Smith stated we received a petition for Private Trustee Management from DD 165, Smith stated she
pulled the classification to verify that there was a majority of the landowners in the district's signature on the
petition. There are 8 landowners in the district, one was the the Chicago Central & Pacific Railroad and one being
Etna Township Roads. There were 5 signatures on the petition, establishing a majority of the landowners in the
district.

Motion by Hoffman to acknowledge the petition for Private Trustee Election for DD 165 and the verified totals of
the canvass of the petiton and begin the election process. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.



13. Other Business

DD 148 - There were 2 outlet repairs McDowell was going to do that they never got to, one was in DD 165 so that
project will have to stop until the election process for DD 165 is over. The other project was on DD 146, and
McDowell had bid it at $10,240 but could not get to it at that time due to wet weather/scheduling, and now he has
come back and said he can get to it in March, but his costs have gone up 10% so the cost will increase 10%,
Gallentine asked if the Trustees want McDowell to proceed or have it go back to lottery. Granzow stated it should
go to lottery. CGA will stop work on the DD 165 project until such time as the Special Election for Private Drainage
Trustees has been held. and take DD 146 project to lottery.

DD 56 - Gallentine reports that the reclassification report for DD 56 is ready for review by the Reclassification
Committee, which meets next Tuesday, and they are looking at maybe another week or two before reclassification
repot is ready to present.

DD 1 Gallentine reports that the DD 1 road crossing is ready to start construction within the next couple weeks.

14. Adjourn Meeting
Hoffman moved to adjourn. Granzow seconded. All ayes. Motion carried.



Hardin County

Description

DD 26 WO 266 For Prof Serv 8/23/2019 to 1/31/2020
DD48 W0274 For Prof Serv 11/30/19 to 1/31/20
DD38 WO0231 For Prof Serv 06/21/19 to 1/31/20

DD1 W0244 Const. Observ for D35 Rd Crossing
DD165 W0232 For Prof Serv 9/27/19 to 1/31/20
DD131 WO275 Inv Main Tile Blowout Svcs to 1/31/20
DD72 WO71 For Prof Sves to 1/31/20

DD31 WO0278 Blowout Repair Svcs to 1/31/20

DD86 WO 252 For Prof. Sves 11/30/19 to 1/31/20
DD9 W0229 For Prof Svsc 9/27/19 to 1/31/20

DD25 WOL1 - Prof Servs After 11/30/19 to 1/31/20

DD25-WO1 - UPRR Comm. SVCS After 11/30/19-1/31/19

DD34 WO0189 For Prof Sves 9/27/19 to 1/31/20

DD52 WO0215 For Prof. Serv's 8/23/2019 to 1/31/20
DD55-3 WO 201 For Prof Sves 8/23/19 to 1/31/20
DD55-3 W0224 For Prof Svcs 8/23/19 to 1/31/20

DD 55 Div 3 Wetlands Mtg Atndc- Svcs to 1/31/20
DD100 W0248 For Prof Sves 5/31/19 to 1/31/20
DD109 WO269 For Prof. Svcs to 1/31/20

DD119 WO 249 - For Prof Svcs 7/26/19 to 1/31/20
DD128 WO0279 For Prf. Svcs to 1/31/20 Inv. Wet Spot
DD143 - WO 167 For Prof Svcs 8/23/19 to 1/31/20
DD143 Survey ROW Report- Svcs 10/31/19 to 1/31/20
DD143 Splmnt to Eng. Report -Svcs to 1/31/20
DD154 WO277 For Prof Svcs to 1/31/20

DDH-S 35-1 W0240 For Prof Svcs to 2/06/20

DD 106 W0268 For Prof Svcs 9/27/19 to 2/06/20

Drainage Claims with Pay Date of 2/14/2020

Vendor

Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc
Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc

Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc

Total Regular Payables:

Total Stamped Warrants:

Amount

673.70
573.70
153.00
346.95
312.75
1,037.20
202.50
754.50
2,794.90
1,030.75
198.20
572.75
401.90
4,274.55
2,161.15
7,903.00
569.35
2,203.25
898.70
1,653.55
622.90
297.50
4,129.25
2,746.20
1,019.25
2,774.70
1,059.90

4,054.30
37,311.75

2/10/2020 3:51:20 PM

Page 1 of 1



UNION
PACIFIC

Uil
AUDIT_12(09

January 31, 2020
Folder: 03038-93

HARDIN COUNTY DRAINAGE DISTRICT 25
c/o Lee O. Gallentine, PLS & PE
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. (CGA)

739 Park Avenue

Ackley, lowa 50601

RE:  Proposed 18.0 Inch Encased Water — Drainage District Tile Pipeline Crossing at Mile Post
124.61, on the Mason City Subdivision at or near Garden City, Hardin County, lowa.

Lee Gallentine:

This will acknowledge receipt of the following documentation relating to your intent to construct
a pipeline crossing under Union Pacific Railroad Company’s tracks and right of way at Mile Post 124.61
on the Mason City Subdivision, at or near Garden City, Hardin County, Iowa:

e Notice of Intent to construct
e Specification Exhibit A
e The $750.00 License Fee. (If applicable)

This letter replaces the previous correspondence, dated October 30, 2018, as the crossing will hereby be
shifted roughly 80 feet to the south, and the casing and carrier pipe sizes will be increased, as described in
the attached Exhibit A.

You are required to comply with lowa Code Section 476.27 and 199 IAC Chapter 42, including
but not limited to, providing Union Pacific Railroad Company with written notice at least ten days prior
to your commencing any construction, maintenance or repair of your facilities on Union Pacific's right of
way. Please, contact the following parties directly before commencing any work on Railroad property:

Railpros Flagging Zachery L. Chaney

up.info@railpros.com MGR I SIGNAL MNTCE

(877) 315-0513 x 116 Phone: 402-690-8287
zlchaney@up.com




The Railroad Company has authorized the installation of fiber optic cable facilities on its property
in certain areas. Prior to commencing any work on the Railroad Company's property, you should contact
the Railroad Company at 1-800-336-9193 to determine if a fiber optic cable is buried on the subject
property. Telephone numbers are provided for your convenience, and not as a substitute for written
notice.

The Railroad Company requires Utility to provide monitoring of tracks and construction
observation through Licensor approved observer named below during all construction and installation
work. Licensee is to directly coordinate services with the named inspector:

Railpros Field Services

Email: RP.Utility@railpros.com
Phone (682)223-5271

If you have any questions, comments, or concerns, please feel free to reach out to me, via email at
njreynolds@up.com, or via phone at (402) 544-8571.

Thank you,

Norma J. Reynolds
Manager II Real Estate Contracts

Union Pacific Railroad Real Estate 1400 Douglas Street  Stop 1690 Omaha, Nebraska 68179-1690 fx. (402) S01-0340



PLACE ARROW INDICATING NOh.H
DIRECTION RELATIVE TO CROSSING

FORM DR-0404-B
REV. 10-9-2012

WWW.UPIT.COM

ENCASED NON-FLAMMABLE
PIPELINE CROSSING

NOTE: ALL AVAILABLE DIMENSIONS MUST BE

NO SCALE FILLED IN TO PROCESS THIS APPLICATION.

3 74 St " 36" CASI

(DESCRIIE FIXLY LRIV

(DISTANCE ALONO mcx@u SECYION L?NE go ING) :

1
L T T L)

NG (3.

. _— lt's L
JQ17 ., . _ 2047 ¢r.
— 32'/7 T————e—— 230 Fi'l}.‘j i 2
- *‘\\ =« BOFT.
M,Mc(:ausbur"g e e 80+ 00 1 00 - g woGarden Ci
e Kl 4 1 ; L i 1’""" me‘ L 1 L r“:L‘ nFl cm}‘"‘“l L gl l('cl“s“la‘n‘l‘““

80 fr.
1003 ¢
{nove: ms onmmon a:ouln:o IN ALL
AT LOCATIONS HOT USING s:cnoush ‘suucz
SOCROAL SURVEY LINE 15 REODT RED
7 RsRm ==
80 Fr, ————f_0Fr, »i-——-—

'

' i

hl MIN. DIST, !

D e e e —SUBGRADE

I |

9.2 FT. i

. ]

SEAL CASINO V CASINO PIPE|

C" = 7 ———————————— el bl S T AR RN R MWW ™
- .l-/ P I £ J.
7 ' bt
l @ ’/ l ! \\® l
/ .
| / | ! I
.
—— 85 F. ———— p—— 58 pr, ————
MOy,
110 ¢y,
(CASING LENGTH WHEW MEASURED ALONG PIPELINE.)
LAT: 42.233788° UPRR SUBDIVISION NAME:
LNG: 63.385368° MASON CITY SUBDIVISION

NOTE;
REFER TO AREMA VOLUME 1 PART & FOR REQUIREMENT RELATING TO PIPELINE CROSSINGS,

A)
B)

E)

F

6)
H)

—
-

NA

D) DISTRIBUTION LINE __X___OR TRANSMISSION LINE

€) CARRIER FIFE WATER DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE
COMMODITY TO BE CONVEYED

IS PIPELINE CROSSING WITHIN DEDICATED STREET ?___YES}_X _NO;
(F YES, NAME OF STREET

EXHIBIT “A”

{Fon BA(LROAD USE ONLY)
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD coO.

Mason (i

OPERATING PRESSURE.. 0
WAL THICKESS.O. i oTAuETER 18" MATERIAL _bipP. .

) 1
CASING PIPE LA 579 Y7
WALL Tg}gnnma‘lé&zﬁ s1aMETER®T06" QATEMAL STEEL . EN%AF;EH-G — ES 2
CASING MUST HAVE 2" CLEARANCE BETWEEN GREATEST

OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF CARRIER PIPE AND INTERIOR DIAMETER OF 4 CROSSING AT
CASING PIPE. WHEN FURNISHING DIMENSIONS, GIVE OUTSIDE OF a
CARRIER PIPE AND INSIDE OF CASING PIPE. TG cin e Ton
METHOD OF INSTALLING CASING PIPE UNDER TRACK(S): it y 5

_X__DRY BORE AND JACK (WET BORE NOT PERMITTED) } gy ;

TUNNEL ; OTHER 088 - 28~
WILL CONSTRUCTION BE BY AN OLTSIDE CONTRACTOR? X_ves;—wo; | R I ILE NO. 203893 pATE /289090
DISTANCE FROM CENTER LINE OF TRACK TO NEAR FACE OF BORING AND SARNI NGO

JACKING PITS WHEN MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES TO TRACK ‘L-
APPLICANT HAS CONTACTED I-800-336~9193 (30" M.

COMMUNICATION DEPARTMENT, AND HAS DETERMINE FIBER
opnc CABLE__x_DOES ;____DOES NOT ; EXIST IN VICINITY OF
WORK TO BE PERFORMED . TICKET NO.

IN ALL OCCASIONS, L. P. COMMUNICATIONS
DEPARTMENT MUST BE CONTACTED IN ADVANCE
OF ANY WORK TO DETERMINE EXISTENCE AND
LOCATION OFf FIBER OPTIC CABLE.
PHONE § 1-800-336-9193




Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

Date: 10/11/2019

Work Order #: W000000274

Drainage District: DDs\DD 48 (51072)

Sec-Twp-Rge: Qtr Sec:
Location/GIS: 88-21-08-200-004

Requested By: Larry Dougan

Contact Phone: (641) 640-0536

Contact Email:

Landowner (if different):

Description: DD 48 Larry Dougan came in to repd}t the open ditch is meandering from
current track into field, and requeested repair. Asked to be contacted by
Engineer when looking at ditch. See work order 151 attached.

Repair labor, materials and equipment

Repaired By: Date:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to:  Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, 1A 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245

For Office Use Only

Approved: Date:




| ot 15100-882105300002

Broer, Timothy L3/4; Broef, Timothy L LE1/8
5

Drainage Tiles
Lateral

e Main

=== Open Ditch

- Private Tile

16100-882105300005
Woad, Lois
40 acres
205 Carson
A

Hardin County
Auditor's Office

0.3 0.45

5100-882105400001 )
Held, Dennis D Held, Kay A
a0 acres 161004
15887 2701h S1 PO Box 391 ' Shf
LA

0.6
Miles

181P0-882105400003
Shagco, Inc
15.53 acres
15491 Co Hwy D20
A

ik 15635 JJ Alrs
. & A

16100-382105300003

. Broer, Timothy L 3/4; Broer, Timothy L LE ¥4
i 3.

.7 aeres

o < | 1563504 Ava
[LEgr=1 3 A
16100-882105300004

. Ronald M Reece, Sandra

- 16100-882105300008
Wood, Lois
38,64 acres
205 Carson
A

Ao tes
3
16100-832105400005
Held, Dennis D Held, Kay A
28.98 acres
19857 270th St PO Box 391
1 P A

16100-883105400007
Shageo, Inc.

- 24.14acres .

1.54“5,;% L

W E

Date: 10/11/201¢

16100-852104300002
loarger, Westhenry W

39 acres
17678 180th 5t
A

16100-882104300003

16100-882104300004
loorger, Westhenry W
JNA2acres
17675 180th 5¢
A

;

15100-882148100003

oodford Creel
a
“are

16100-882108100002
ichasl Will Broer, Faye York

 Farms, LLP

624 adres
Tomeay t, Ste 200
A

16100-882108200001
Dougan, Larry O
38,64 acres

I

D..D._I"_ﬂo. ‘1 éU

16100-882109100001

© - 16100-852108100004
. Broer, Michae| Will Broer, Fays
33,

.28 acres
19387 US Hwy 65
A

16100-88210310000S
Broer, Michael Wil Broer, Faye York
34.57 acres
19387 US Hwy 65
A

S
TR

16100-882108203004
Dougsan, Lany O
34.15 acres
226 Glen Dr
A

[
73 46100-882108200001

16586 KK Ave
A

)
e

16100-882108300002

~ 8ot -
Lt

16100-8821 08400001
_Summit Farms, LLC

16100-882103460002
Summit Farms, LLC

i

Woadford Creek F)
L ama

rma; LE

16100-882108300004
Rabe Farms, inc
33 acres
" 18588 KK Ave

A

The Data is provided "as is” without warranty or any representation of accuracy, timeliness or com
merchantability and fitness for or the appropriateness
There are no implied warranties of merchantability or fi
that the Data is dynamic and is in a constant state of

16100-862108300005
~ fabe Farms, inc
39 scres
16586 KK Ave
A

16100-882108400005
Summit Farms, LLC
33,31 acres
10840 Co Hwy D20
A

or use rests solely on the requester. Hardi
fitness for a particular pur,

pose. The requester acknowled
maintenance, correction and upd:

9090 W 67th SL.
A

rlli

16100-492109300002
Summit Fgrms, LLC

25.39
10640 Co Hiry D20
A

Summit Farms, LLC
30.26 acres
10640 Co Hwy D200
A

pleteness. The burden for determining accuracy, completeness, timeliness,

n County makes no warranties, express or implied is to the use of the Data.

ownership, but does not define it. This Data does not replace a legal survey.

ges and accepts the limitations of the Data, including the fact
ate. Cadastral Data represents land



Y Hardin County

) Drainage Work Order Detail

Data 8/11/2016 Project ¥  6486.1 Work Order # 151
District # 48 Lateral _Open Ditch Fund & - 51072
Township Ellis Section 8 Twp 88 Rge 21 QirSec NE1/4

Repair Requestad 8y Larry Dougan

_(641) 640-0536

Landowner Larry Dougan

Problem Description

When ditch was cleaned out approx 10 years ago, all culverts were replaced but on in the SW NE Section 8. Is

gone now and back into the field. Landowner requests to fix when crops are out. Does not want fixed if not

district expense.

Payments

Dat= Veandor Amount

5/26/2017 WILLIAMS EXC

7/14/2017 RYKEN
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Description

$4,409.00 OUTLETS/SURF DRAINS
$2,116.00 ENG SVCS TD REPAIR

Comments

8/17/16-BOS approve once crops are out. DD usually pays to help keep
banks from eroding. Hire contractor via lottery system.

10/25/16-Larry called. Corn is out & culverts can be replaced now. Wants
to go w/Eng when goes to look at. Emailed Lee.

11/8-Larry called. Someone came out. One outlet tile is completely gone
{south side on east end of farm). If come back out to look at there is
another tile only 6" below ground that he has concerns about.

11/9-Lee says no in county contractors available. BOS ok'd out of county
contractors for outstanding work.

2/17/17-Not able to find contractors. Will try again this Spring after thaw.

3/7/17-Surface drain was never installed and is now eroding away. Approx
500’ east from the drain that has eroded away.

3/8-BOS ok new surface drain to be part of repair proj. (3/9-Called Larry to
let him know.)

3/15/17-Waiting for Winters to submit all req'd paperwork.

3/29/17-Lee to research if surface drain or outlet that needs to installed.
Ldowners pay for outlets.

6/8/17-Repair Summ:

Identified other surface drains & tile outlets in similar condition. If left
unrepaired, will lead to erosion of banks & siltation in ditch. BOS agree no
action as no {downer complaints.



Drainage District:
#48

Investigation Summary:

e Landowner in the SW¥% NEX of Section 8, Township 88 North, Range 21 West reported the Main open ditch
meandering within the Main open ditch channel.

¢ Visual observation found a portion of the Main open ditch in the area described by the landowner with
sloughed/eroded banks, meandering channel, and possible siltation. There are also areas found to have the
spoil bank washed away where overland water flow (from the field side of the Main open ditch) has
concentrated enough to do so.

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site):

None recorded as only visual observation was performed.

Additional Actions Recommended:

It is unclear if the issues encountered in the observation area are widespread along the entire length of the Main
open ditch or not. Authorization of a larger scale study by the District Trustees would be necessary to determine
this. Regardless of the extent of the issue, a repair is needed to the area observed.

If the issue does appear to be widespread along the district Main open ditch, an Engineer’s Report and hearing
would be necessary. If limited to the area observed, the costs of the repairs may be small enough that the work
could be done by in-county contractors through the lottery system. However, CGA recommends a widespread
observation be conducted to ascertain the condition of the entire Main open ditch as a whole before proceeding
with a small-scale repair.

CGA

—
1.6 'IE1 RS - LALD SURVEVORS

J:\6486.5-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering
Report\6486.5 - Drainage Investigation Summary - DD48.docx



Inspector’s Project Diary

Project: Hardin County Drainage District 48

Days Report . :
CGAPN: (£np(, B D42 Char)g,ed: N‘;. Prol. Wgr.
Contractor: Date: Il /) //9
Superintendent: Weather Conditions: Precip.: Temp. Hi: y7 °
Cinon , U)oy ‘G:\..o 2enbu | Temp. Low: o °
INSPECTOR: J " | Contractor:
Time Arrived: {]: 3% A.m, Time Left: Time Arrived: Time Left:

1. General Remarks and Work Accomplished:
RrawesD @ Toa st 8 La Overns Frw, bacey 15 Gomws To mrarT
® Heo Orvn oF Hacuawo Fﬁmﬂ%. H:45 Aervoro Ao v Arous
T Sw. To open diy, Foump Various Racns Stoveks cavsso By

ThouWa(, OVRUING Wit open dhra Bcs\momgj. Thrss couweo Br Ffixeo
OnN A YwovnOouaL BReis But Tk whow opey et 45 Eoe or Lirr Aro

pigod A Ceran ouT, Pwss A sure droans Topr /s Nekoso +RXT 7o /D()T Ao

I A Top Bewr_ cmsy- ouT, 3¥ Swovcs neeo Reppwtio Ao | surp wsNovT
N, diwon oF BuyZ0o Aeo Nees Clerneo € Box Coneet,

Oy / -

sl
2. Changes or Extra Work Ordered: &
.
A Ve
é
3. Test Samples Taken: / g
PR ',d'p’
4
<
dﬁs
4. Visitors to Site: o
j.umr/ 20 AN\ -

g
-

5. Other Work Crews or Project (utilities, subcontractors, etc.) and Work e

6. Attachments (total sheets attached _0_):

— N\
Clapsaddie-Garber Associates, Inc. :
Consulting Engineers Inspe r
P.O. Box 754 Distribution: Project Mgr. (Original), Inspector (Copy)

Marshalltown, I1A 50158 Form 9753



p .w&._?mw...._. e "
X _trlou,;,..

e
-






















& o,
M
Lol N
NN
L s,
e RGN
RyAE .

T
'lﬁ"t’.'k.

% o . SR .
N s oyt ! B R S 2

4 i Lo By - - i T A i K .:
Falgs A e sy T
:Ag‘,'j ¥
=

~a







AN

7450 N




Sy

e







Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

Date: 8/9/2018

Work Order #: WO000000224

Drainage District: Drainage Districts \DD 55-3 {51085)\DD 55-3 Lat 9(5124

Sec-Twp-Rge: 01-86-20 Qtr Sec: NE1/4
Location/GIS: 86-22-01-200-001

Requested By: Randy Dubberke

Contact Phone: (641) 864-3388

Contact Email: randeb@netins.net

Landowner (if different): RanShell, LLC

Description: Outlet seems plugged and land from NE1/4 Section 2 & NW1/4 Section 1 (outside
district boundaries but draining into DD) overflowing land in NE1/4 Section 1 to get to
ditch lying east of H Avenue.

Repair labor, materials and equipment:

Repaired By: Date:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to: Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245

For Office Use Only

Approved: Date:




-

} .R‘g?

] n
= 2BOTH_ ST+ |
X !

:,{.1:6":!:1!‘

(}%‘h;"...:

q;s.n -
OWNSHIP 86 NOR
RANGE 22 WEST N

.

Zieo
T 2801 ST

e
OWNSHIP
wif]

BOUNDARY PER ORIGINAL MAP
—_———————— —BOUNDARY PER 1944 MAP
— — — —-—— — — — —BOUNDARY PER 1981 MAP
TRACT NUMBER

SO0TH ST

DIVISION 3, LATERAL 9 DD55-DIV3-LATO

HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA COMPOSITE MAP
2016




. s Ry Symm e bames Syn g merm oL mymE e e melye s e meyieem ge ey gmegem e o w pme mieme e i Syel = 90 ve g ve sy < ar
Buipnioul ‘eleQ ey jo suof U sideooe pue sebpajmousoe sajsenbay oy “esodind Jejnonsed e 1oj sseuly Jo AljIGEIUBLOIEW JO SauELEM PONdW! OU BJe 818y | "Eje( 8y} 0 8sn auy o} SI paldwi Jo sseidxe ‘senueLEM Ou SeNew Auno) uipiey “se)senbas
au} uo Aj91os sisel 85N o ssausjeudosdde ay) Jo Joj sseuly pue AlljiqelueydIBw ‘SSeuleLR ‘Ssaua}e|duos ‘A9RINOSE BUILIULIS)EP JO) UBPING 8y | 'SSEUa}e|dwod 10 sseulpwy ‘Korinooe jo uopejuasaidel Aue Jo Ajueuem Jnoylim si se, pepinod si Bleq ayl

8102/6/8 -3leq CE
S 8c0 12’0 143" 100 SE0°0

93O S,101Ipny
Ajuno9H uipieH




Drainage District:
#55 — Division 3 — Lateral 9

Repair Summary:

e Per the recommended actions of the Investigation Summary, the District Trustees directed replacement of the
Lateral 9 tile and outlet along with removal of trees in the vicinity of the same in the NE% NW¥% Section 1,
Township 86 North, Range 22 West and the SE% SW¥ Section 36, Township 87 North Range 22 West.

¢ Repair began with locating the existing Lateral 9 tile through the wooded area leading to the outlet as well as
the fiberoptic cable that was crossed during the repair.

e Trees and woody brush within the vicinity of the tile repair were cut down and stumps removed. Woody brush
and branches were burned on-site with the permission of the landowner, while stumps were trailered off-site.
Concrete and stone revetment at the outlet were also removed and set aside for reuse. Note, CGA was not on-
site full time for this portion of the repair, and the associated time is not included on the Time and Materials
tabulation.

e Began removal of the tile with the rusted 12-inch CMP outlet, removing the tile in an upstream direction.
During this excavation, encountered tile that varied in size between 10-inches and 12-inches, and varied in
material between collapsing VCP, rusty CMP, and concrete. Varying grades were also encountered during
excavation, with a sag being found in one point. Before road was excavated, an excavation was made on the
south side of 280" Street to plug upstream tile for the replacement of said tile, and said excavation quickly
filled with water. Water was pumped from the south excavation until roots were removed from tile and the
backed-up water quickly drained. Continued replacement through the road.

¢ Repair of the Lateral 9 tile consisted of a rock bedding, 12-inch polypropylene tile {(installed at a consistent
grade), and rock backfill to the top of the tile. At the outlet, a 20-feet section of 15-inch CMP with an HDPE
anti-seep collar was installed. Within the roadway, the repair excavation was fully backfilled with road stone,
which was then compacted in-place with a jumping jack compactor. At upstream end of replacement, factory
10x12-inch reducer was installed with an external/internal coupler between the 10-inch concrete tile and new
12-inch polypropylene tile. % concrete collars were installed at the connection to the original upstream tile as
well as the connection between the polypropylene and CMP outlet. A hole was found in the 8-inch concrete
Lat 9 tile upstream of the repair during work. Said hole was excavated and fixed with a % concrete collar.

¢ All excavations were filled with on-site soil (with the exception of the roadway).

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site):
See attached Tabulated Contractor Time and Materials Sheet.

Additional Actions Recommended:

1. The excavations were filled with loose on-site soil, then topped with frozen pieces of on-site soil. CGA
recommends checking this soil after the spring thaw to determine if grading of said soil, or importing
additional soil, will be necessary.

2. The contractor set aside concrete pieces and rocks for future use as revetment around the new CMP
outlet. This was not installed while CGA was on-site. It will need to be verified with the contractor to
have been installed to prevent future erosion around the CMP outlet.

3. Monitor area for additional tree growth to prevent root intrusion again.

4. Verify with landowners that they will fill any of their exploratory excavations that are still open.

P:\6636.6\PM\DOC\6636.6 - Drainage Repair Report - DD55_Div3_Lat9.docx



€-9SPPp - s3(ed qof a3euteuq - 9°'9£99\[33x3\INd\9'9£99\:d

SHUOASAUNS QNYT - SHITNIONI
—_—

114 [1]4 ("4) 3L dD ST
Fa 4 (-es) auois peoy jo speo]
I I (‘ea) 4e||00 dass-1uy
€ SIA 3ulppag %20y
SaA Sie||0D 21aJ2uU0)
T T ("e3) 490npayY 3dQH ,0TX,ZT
1 T (‘e9) 491dnod jeUJBIUI/{RUIBIX3 IdAH ,0T
v6 6 ("y) 9)1L suajAdosdAjod paiesojuad-uoN ,zT
6 6 ('s4y) mesureyd
it /T ('s1y) dwng 131eM
[74%% /T 0T Z/16 6 /T €€ (s4y) 49peoq piis
4 rd (s4y) J01eARIX]
(A% v/101 t/t6 6 v/1 €€ (s4y) 101eARIXT ILIN
6 Z/toz Z/t6t 81 z 69 (s4y) uewiom
0202/8/1 020Z/L/1 0202/9/1 0z0T/€/1 6102/01/21T s(exoy a1eq

S|elIdleA pUB dWi] J03deIIUO) pale|nge]




:..q _” % wa N
@ . L
\ » ” .& LT ., .
J ‘m . | e oa!.nlm.
3 AP oY
ORIGINAL TILE VARIES BETWEEN AL e
10" & 12" IN DIAMETER AND .
CONCRETE, CMP & VCP "
N ow
VW AN
Y ~&~~ NEW 12" DUAL WALL
& T POLYPROPYLENE TILE
an : .
——— .m) B F) ES—
0
=S 280TH STREET
o
o
[ 3
i
PRIVATE CONCRETE TILE 4
IN POOR _u_._<m_o>_./ e
CONDITION AND SHALLOW \\m .- s 50) o o om o mmmm - EXISTING LATERAL 9 TILE (FIELD LOCATED)
> W
'y \\ .. m—— s0) oo s  REMOVED LATERAL 9 TILE
e ~ o
_ /]
R OOrrMm v o —s0) oo s REPLACED LATERAL 9 TILE
/) (%]
H [
FIX __%m_.m e CONCRETE DL E ey s 5510) o o o mmn PRIVATE TILE (FIELD LOCATED)
Sy ~~ w0 == = = == F|BER OPTIC CABLE (FIELD LOCATED)
i Y S ..
—d
/]
7
/]
4

6636.6

PABE36.6\CADD\Desgn\6636_6 - Repair.dwy - Layout1-CGA Plan - 01-31-20 - 4:34pm - JVS333

SHEET NO

10F1

ﬁias oam—weaam 1. D). 55 DIV 3 LAT 9 LATERAL 9 REPAIR

R rem ki ey HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA




Hardin County

Drainage Work Order Request For Repair

Work Order # 201

Date 12/4/2017

District # 55-3 L Lateral N Y Fund ¥ 51085
Township Concord Section 3  Twp 86 Rge 22 QtrSec Nwi/4
Repair Requested By Jerry Hindman ~ S

Address Phone  (515) 689-2761
Landowner Jerry Hindman Py
Address GIS 862203100002 _ Phone

Request Taken By Tina Schlemme - —

MYes

Available for Repair Now?

Problem Description Tile plugged in the RR ROW about 450" south of 280th Street.

Repair labor, materials and equipment

Date Available

Potential Wetlands?

Repaired By:

O Yes-Repair existing tile only

O No-Repair and maintain tile

Date:

Please send statement for services to:

Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax {641) 939-8245

Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Tina Schlemme

1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627

Approved:

For Ottice Use Only

Date




0P I0Q HRTILMD pUT| SRDEKCIS QR() [RISTRE) "SRDR PUB HONTEUD ‘SRSUURI JO OIS ISTIEUCO § U 5] PuR AP 8 QI() &8 1R O8] S
Einl!.itiil‘i !lt'-‘l&itl‘ili’mﬁ! b

Aaams 12y @ SORKIas 100 $90D WEQ KL 7 SUNEP 10U
i._. gl\il!!ii ;.

$9L°0 1o §S0°0 G200 O

~ 80IO sJoypny
AQjuno) uipieH




Drainage District:

#55 - Division 3 — Lateral 12

Investigation Summary:

Per the recommended actions of the previous report, CGA was directed to facilitate investigation of the
condition of the Lateral 12 tile on the west side of the tracks for a broader idea of the condition of the Lateral
12 tile.

Excavated on the east side of the Railroad ROW and found 8-inch single wall HDPE Lateral 12 tile with
approximately 2%:-inches of mud and fine roots in the base, and approximately 5%-inches of slow-moving water
(same as previous report). Single wall HDPE tile had north and south private tile connections.

Excavated on west side of the Railroad ROW and found 8-inch VCP tile with roots visible downstream, along
with north and south private tile connections intruding into the flow line of the single wall HDPE Lateral 12 tile
shortly downstream.

Attempted CCTV inspection. From east excavation, it was stopped by excessive sediment in the upstream
direction. In the downstream inspection from the west excavation two intruding taps hampered, but did not
stop, inspection of the tile. Said taps were found to have private single wall HDPE in each direction, and the tap
to the southerly direction appeared to be crushed further upstream. Inspection was stopped shortly
downstream due to a large root in the tile from trees on the west side of the railroad inside the railroad right of
way. Details of said inspection are on the attached CCTV sheets.

After CCTV, trees on west side were drilled and poisoned to prevent future root growth but left in place while
CGA wasn’t on-site. Exploratory excavations were left open.

During visual observation, the railroad box culvert (not a district facility) was found to have structural issues
beneath the tracks, with the roof of said culvert being gone.

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site):

See attached Tabulated Contractor Time and Materials Sheet.

Additional Actions Recommended:

Given the findings of the previous investigation summary, and the findings of this recent investigation, it is
apparent that root infiltration combined with excessive sediment are reducing the capacity of the Lateral 12 tile.
What is not clear is if the presence of this sediment is an indication of a tile collapse in railroad right of way, or a
slow accumulation due to the root infiltration taking place. However, the following actions are recommended:

e Inform the railroad regarding observed structural issues of the box culvert.

e Since the UPRR has historically not allowed jet cleaning of tile in their right of way, the only solution left is
the construction of a new railroad tile crossing. The cost of this is well over $50,000 and an Engineer’s
Report and hearing would be required.

e Direct the temporary repair of the excavations used for investigation. Permanent repairs may be initiated
with the completion of a new railroad crossing.

P:\6636.4\PM\DOC\6636.4 - Investigation Summary - DD55-
3Lat12.docx



Tabulated Contractor Time and Materials

Date Totals 12/4/2019 12/5/2019 12/11/2019
Workman (hrs) 121/2 31/2 4 5
Mini Excavator (hrs) 9 31/2 3 21/2
CCTV (hrs) 21/2 21/2
Jet Truck (hrs) 2 2

CGA

T ———
ENGINEERS - LAJID SURVEYORS

P:\6636.4\PM\Excel\6636.4-Drainage Job Calcs




Tabulated Defects

GPS #11012 GPS #11003
Total UPSTREAM | DOWNSTREAM

Total Length Televised (ft) 12 3 9
Date: 12/11/2019 12/11/2019
Light Roots (ft) 7| 2 | 5 |
Heavy Roots (ft) 1] 0 [ 1 |
Sediment/Debris (ft) 11f 2 [ 9 |
Heavy Sediment/Debris (ft 1] 1 | 0 |
Taps (intruding) (#) 2| 0 I 2 I
Offset Joint (#) 1] 1 | 0 |
Soil/Voids Visible in Offset Joint (#) 1] 1 [ 0 |
Single Wall HDPE (non-deformed) (ft) 3| 1 [ 2 |

\\CGA-ACK-SRV12R2\Ack-Projects\6636.4\PM\Excel\6636.4-Drainage Job Calcs



PAG636 A\CADD\Design\6636_4-0055-3 LAT12 dwy - Layout1-CGA Plan - 01-31-20 - 1:53pm - V5333

280TH STREET

——(5(0) == == = == e | ATERAL 12 TILE (FIELD LOCATED)
=—SIS(0) = == == == === | ATERAL 12 TILE (MAP LOCATED, APPROXIMATE)

= = = = =" PRIVATE TILE (FIELD LOCATED)

LATERAL 12—

tS(D!
iGN\ g WSS S RN smm SiS(D) == - e == SiS(0)

a
<

/ (@)
o
=
<
o
w f
L
<
o
z
®)
Z
=)

. OPEN EXPLORATORY |
/- EXCAVATION AT & TEE
_— CCTV INSERTION POINT AR
_ | “CCTV INSERTION POINT
GES #1003 \ GPS #11012

' SURFACE INTAKE

~~—BOX CULVERT
BENEATH RAILROAD

!

wreEeg g oo

z

[ REVISION BY DATE W REVISION BY DATE

c mo Clapsaddic-Garber Associates, Inc
| A

Toll Free (800) 542-7981
Www.cacONSULINES COM

25 5o

DESIGNED o DATE. 12202000
DRAWN NS DATE: 122200
CHECKED: L0G  DATE: 1232000 _

ACPROVED. 406 DATE IGIZZN

D.D. 55 DIV3LAT 12

HARDIN CO, IOWA

LAT 12 FIELD INVESTIGATION




Figure 2: Roots infiltrating joint between VCP and single wall HDPE.



Figure 4: Tap from surface drain to south. Can be seen crushed further upstream.



Figure 6: Tap from unknown origin to the north.



Figure 8: Intermittent, light roots.



Figure 9: Intermittent roots.

Figure 10: VCP to single wall HDPE.



Figure 11: Large root infiltrating tile. Blocking progress of CCTV inspection, retaining sediment, and restricting flow of water.



Figure 13: Single wall HDPE to VCP. Joint misshapen.



Figure 15: Sediment filling 60%# of tile and blocking CCTV inspection.



CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: 12/4/2019

OBSERVATION REPORT
DAYS OF WEEK:
PROJECT NUMBER: 6636.4 SIMIT |[WT|F |S
SHEET NO. | OF I
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD:

LOCATION: DD 55-3

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUB
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION

2:00 P.M. At job site. Jeff and Takeuchi TB145 Mini excavator on-site.
2:30 P.M.  Setting up GPS on GPS monument 8013

2-1/2” mud and fine roots in tile, 5-1/2” of water on east side of tracks.
4:50 P.M.  Observer left site

8" VCP

| 8"x8"x8"
UNSURE OF DESTINATION HDPE TEE

8!|X8IIX8II

HDPE TEE
" TOWARDS SURFACE DRAIN

I Certify that the work described in this report was incorporated into this contract unless otherwise noted.

Observer’s Signature: Date Prepared:

Reviewed by: I:I Engineer

Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)




Prerurett 2462

(= >
=
D
o~
S—
o
[
/
<~
==




Pierureff 242

.i.-l .- N&
195 b

12/04/20
16:30

Pictuect# 2464



Prerure 3 2445

00208 N\
BN

Prievure# 2466



Plerure # 2458 Hois 10 Boxd Cu LUBRT B&tad
TRACKS

P 1cure # <459 HotE UNWBER, RR TR ACKS



pirlRE  BALLAST Rock  FHRULLIWE sn/ Bok cutvery—
# 2460

7,

12042049
STl B, )

=/
4

24él
P o6 (v TOP BOX CiLveRT—



CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: 12/5/2019

OBSERVATION REPORT

PROJECT NUMBER: 6636.4 SIMIT |WI|TI|F {S
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD:

LOCATION: DD 55-3

DAYS OF WEEK:

SHEET NO. 1 OF 1

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUB
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION

1:20 P.M.

1:36

2:40
3:15

4:20 P.M.

5:10

7:40

At job site

Contractor on-site. Look over job with Adam. Discuss with lee about cottonwood cut down: Wait until line is jetted and
televise down. Excavate on west side of tracks to find tile..

Back on other site.

Headed back to site

1 hr Adam
3 hr Excavator and Jeff

Set up GPS base.

Base set up , check into GPS #1224 P ave N Ave NW Corner field drive

Jeff and mini excavator left site. Had tile west side RR track. Set 1/2” diameter Iron Rerod 0.2’ deep NE corner 1st field
drive north of 280th Street east RR tracks. Check #1 3/4” diameter iron rerod NE corner field drive north side of 290th
Street 0.3” deep. 1978’ + west of G Ave. and 290th.

Tore down GPS base.

I Certify that the work described in this report was incorporated into this contract unless otherwise noted.

Observer’s Signature: Date Prepared:
Reviewed by: I:I Engineer

Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)




Prerur € # Z‘(B'f

PILTURE S 248G



PICTUREHE 2984




CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: 12/11/2019

OBSERVATION REPORT

DAYS OF WEEK:
PROJECT NUMBER: 6636.4 S IMIT IMT |F |S

SHEET NO. 1 OF 1

COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD:

LOCATION: DD 55-3

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUB
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION

3:55 AAM. Left office

6:15 Adam on site
6:45 Crew on site with Takeuchi TB145 mini excavator, Adam and Televising crew.
6:57 Camera inserted at 11003
0.4’ Lateral at 2. 9.1’ roots
7:20 Camera done, can not get past roots in tile.
7:40 Mud in flowline.
7:58 Pull camera out of tile.
8:20 Jetting guy left site.
9:00 Left site

2 man crew, mini excavator; 2.5 hrs

N
PLUGGED —

F
\ \
\\

CAMERA 1' WEST OF 11004 e

11003 INSERTION
POINT

N

R

I Certify that the work described in this report was incorporated into this contract unless otherwise noted.

Observer’s Signature: Date Prepared:

Reviewed by: |:| Engineer

Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)




PreTuRE # 2594

B 12/11/2019
. N :1

PleTturett 254y~



PLLTURE tH 2544

PleruaRre Z_g_[_/7



PIlCTURET 2549 D

PicTure# 2549



1,3565705.
2,3565150.
3,3565151.
4,3565216.
5,3565223.
6,3565223.
7,3565233.
8,3565442.
9,3565045.

10,3565022.
11,3565010.

12,3565394

13,3565597.
14,3565450.
.916,4952497.
559,4952581.
395,4952579.
336,4952924.

15,3565459

16,3565392.
17,3565394.
18,3565132.
.481,4952923.
.413,4953086.
955,4953087.
974,4953050.
515,4953056.
640,4953102.
739,4953097.
159,4954214.

19,3565133
20,3565023

21,3565022.
22,3565048.
23,3565045,
24,3565010.
25,3565014.
26,3565148.
27,3565150.
28,3565090.
29,3565090.

30,3565217

39,3565443

45,3564978
46,3565653
47,3565705

49,3565717

042,4955510.
351,4954217.
887,4954221.
747,4954370.
502,4954384.
595,4954396.
493,4954415.
193,4955175.
900,4953055.

874,4953087.
689,4953102.
.082,4952579.
593,4952371.
031,4952508.

127,4954218.
563,4954081.
336,4954080.
.335,4954371
31,3565216.
32,3565596.
33,3565665.
34,3564769.
35,3564908.
36,3565442.
37,3565622.
38,3565620.
.425,4955173
40,3565442.
41,3565445.
42,3564769.
43,3564767.
44,3564984.
.840,4953132
.246,4955309
.611,4955311
48,3565706.
.045,4955311
50,3565824.

392,4954369.
777,4952372.
660,4952304.
636,4953449.
412,4953652.
741,4955172.
264,4955281.

435,4955283

020,4955170.
860,4955178.
802,4953449.
889,4953447.

898,4953127

131,4955311

059,4955311

158,1145.063,CPT 3/4IR
931,1138.975,FL 10"MAIN
381,1142.546,GS
027,1138.517,FL 10"CLAY
597,1142.558,GS TILELOCATE
826,1142.562,GS TILELOCATE
754,1142.643,GS TILELOCATE
126,1139.818,G6S TILELOCATE
581,1140.831,FL 8"MAIN
249,1140.846,FL 8"MAIN 9C
426,1140.593,FL 8"MAIN 9C
883,1141.219,FL 8"MAIN 9C
921,1144.539,GS TILELOCATE
919,1141.829,HDPE FIX
260,1141.884,HDPE FIX
111,1141.904,HDPE FIX
941,1141.888,HDPE FIX
783,1141.591,HDPE FIX
056,1141.613,HDPE FIX
411,1141.533,HDPE FIX
436,1141.528,HDPE FIX
941,1141.465,HDPE FIX
093,1141.477,HDPE FIX
441,1141.392,HDPE FIX
947,1141.519,HDPE FIX
162,1139.671,HDPE 10" FIX
250,1139.786,HDPE 10" FIX
862,1139.969,CONC 10" FIX
829,1139.996,CONC 10" FIX
.267,1139.492,HDPE 10" FIX
293,1139.493,HDPE 10" FIX
847,1141.175,FL 8"CLAY
913,1141.760,FL INTKE 8"CLAY
379,1140.535,FL 10"CONC TILE
195,1143.784,GS LOCATE Y1e" S
024,1134.997,FL 10"CLAY TILE
966,1138.919,GS10"CLAY TILE
.931,1134.992,FL 12"CLAY TILE
.410,1135.021,FL 12"CLAY TILEFIX
534,1135.071,FL 10"CLAY TILE FIX
028,1140.051,GS
314,1140.425,FL 10"CONC
061,1140.430,FL 10"CONC
.131,1140.788,FL 8"CLAYFIX
.434,1140.879,FL 8"CLAYFIX
.028,1136.910,FL CMP
.145,1139.242,CMP TOP
.212,1136.773,FL CMP
.899,1138.393,CL SWALE
.044,1137.095,CL SWALE



51, 3565923

52,3566031.
53,3566134.
54,3566216.
55,3566282.
56,3566339.
57,3566388.
58,3566388.
59,3566438.

60,3566485

61,3566508.
62,3566517.
63,3566568.
64,3566573.
65,3566591.
66,3566591.
67,3566621.

68,3566623

69,3566695.
70,3566767.
71,3566852.
72,3566853.
73,3566881.
74,3566896.
75,3566964.
76,3567038.
77,3567126.
78,3567230.
79,3567337.
80,3567409.
81,3567477.

82,3567545

83,3567611.
84,3567661.
85,3567672.
86,3567694.
87,3567762.
88,3567826.
89,3567867.
90,3567911.
91,3567969.
92,3568019.

93,3568043

94,3568048.
95,3568045.
96,3568042.
97,3568042.

98,3568048
99,3568048

.978,4955342.
231,4955364.
795,4955389.
305,4955451.
250,4955536.
052,4955624.
192,4955689.
865,4955690.
629,4955767.
.894,4955854.
176,4955922.
009,4955969.
476,4956065.
162,4956068.
363,4956084.
.730,1127.
756,4956108.
.827,4956110
007,4956177.
791,4956246.
193,4956315.
594,4956317.
.871,1125.
146,4956353.
952,4956430.
632,4956500.
139,4956550.
.966,1122.
152,4956617.
812,4956688.
474 ,4956766.
.184,4956841.
581,4956918.
475,4957002.
653,4957099.
097,4957195.
862,4957274.
393,4957300.
561,4957306.
.022,1114.
161,4957359.
475,4957409.
.022,4957443.
669,4957456.
520,4957456.
936,4957455.
887,4957461.
.600,4957461.
.636,4957461.

827,4956085

063,4956345

993,4956569

152,4957315

029,1136.
568,1135.
874,1134.
193,1134.
319,1133.
854,1132.
253,1131.
151,1130.
354,1131.
593,1130.
374,1128.
272,1129.
189,1128.
546,1127.
150,1124.

194,1126.

.372,1127.

546,1126.
858,1125.
678,1125.
177,1124.

318,1125.
685,1124.
103,1123.
391,1122.

198,1121.
483,1120.
300,1120.
265,1119.
834,1118.
719,1117.
459,1116.
859,1115.
927,1115.
651,1115.
150,1115.

070,1113.
224,1112.
276,1111.
123,1111.
238,1111.
984,1111.
437,1111.
193,1111.
836,1111.

328,CL
954,CL
880,CL
308,CL
666,CL
564,CL
767,CL

SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE

350, TOP TILE

005,CL
559,CL

SWALE
SWALE

471,WET HOLE

021,CL
258,CL

SWALE
SWALE

022,BLOWOUT

791,TOP TILE
623,BLOW OUT
294,BLOW OUT

207,CL
609, CL
720,CL
147,CL

SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE

BLOWOUT

CLAY?

905, STANDING WATER
029,STANDING WATER

022,CL
159,CL
705, CL
814,CL
068, CL
518,CL
742,CL
285,CL
342,CL
271,CL
489,CL
917,CL
866,CL
635,CL
130,CL
170,CL
950, CL
338,CL
565, CL
901, CL

SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE
SWALE

127,WIER
146,WIER
145,WIER
359,WIER
358,WIER
357,WIER
100,3568048.187,4957459.015,1111.237,WIER



101,3568042.
102,3568043.
103,3568043
104,3568043
105,3568045.
106,3568045
107,3568045
108,3568045.
109,3568045.
110,3568058
111,3568026.
112,3567991.
113,3567944.
114,3567912.
115,3567863.
116,3567814.
117,3567738.
118,3567713
119,3567702.
120,3567694.
121,3567677.
122,3567647.
123,3567611.
124,3567561.
125,3567509.
126,3567474.
127,3567438.
128,3567401.
129,3567351.
130,3567296.
131,3567234.
132,3567169.
133,3567110.
134,3567062.
135,3567015.
136,3566971.
137,3566924.
138,3566878.
139,3566829.
140,3566782.
141,3566732.
142,3566684.
143,3566638.
144,3566592.
145,3566563.
146,3566542.
147,3566518.
148,3566488.
149,3566454.
150,3566423.

875,4957461.
511,4957458.

.777,4957456.
.621,4957456.

939,4957461.

.866,4957462.
.404,4957499.

581,4957496.
494,4957472.

.797,4957440.

968,4957400.
630,4957363.
670,4957322.
066,4957292.
531,4957287.
082,4957275.
603,4957209.

.428,4957153.

253,4957093.
912,4957028.
211,4956966.
395,4956910.
132,4956858.
867,4956800.
846,4956744.
710,4956707.
175,4956672.
511,4956636.
931,4956598.
346,4956569.
181,4956553.
662,4956538.
840,4956516.
173,4956477.
823,4956431.
348,4956388.
456,4956343.
244,4956301.
381,4956256.
864,4956211.
583,4956165.
655,4956126.
411,4956084 .
965,4956039.
226,4955984.
615,4955922.
737,4955856.
800,4955791.
282,4955726.
953,4955673.

532,1111.
789,1111.
857,11e8.
906,1109.
660,1108.
186,1113.
912,1113.
010,1116.
862,1116.
748,1113.
839,1113.
386,1114.
392,1114.

80,1115

215,1119

195,1125
223,1125
625,1125

254,1131

319,1133

415,WIER
160,WIER
445,FL CMP
731,CMP TOP
754,FL CMP
798,CMP TOP
335,CMP TOP
862,E0G
862, E0G

506,GS
589,GS
214,GS
995,GS

.499,GS
172,1115.
554,1115.
830,1116.
958,1117.

544,GS
617,GS
635,GS
970,GS

.074,GS
761,1119.
743,1119.
006,1119.
374,1120.
303,1121.
193,1122.
680,1122.
139,1122.
319,1122.
083,1122.
040,1123.
074,1122.
215,1123.
080,1124.
703,1124.
.605,GS
.877,GS
.984,GS
273,1126.
621,1127.
115,1127.
737,1128.
331,1128.
406,1128.
908,1130.
223,1131.
636,1131.
.614,GS
062,1132.
©51,1133.
.893,GS

278,GS
119,GS
678,GS
247,GS
337,GS
091,GS
490,GS
363,GS
341,GS
591,GS
147,GS
833,GS
379,GS
033,GS
609,GS

424,GS
008, GS
513,GS
138,GS
105,GS
767,GS
038,GS
034,GS
575,GS

349,GS
135,GS

CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN



151,3566384.
152,3566340.
153,3566299.
154,3566260.
155,3566221.
156,3566200.
157,3566138.
158,3566089.
159,3566029
160,3565970.
161,3565913
162,3565850.
163,3565789.
164,3565741.
165,3565715
166,3565690.
167,3565667.
168,3565712.
169,3565712.
170,3560232.
171,3560234.
172,3568013.
173,3568011.
174,3565707.
175,3565699.
176,3565702.
177,3565694.
178,3565690.
179,3565666.
180,3565662.
181,3565657.
182,3565647.
183,3565653.
184,3565643.
185,3565646.
186,3565600.
187,3565599.
188,3565642.
189,3565648.
190,3565656.
191,3565651.
192,3565663.
193,3565667.
194,3565690.
195,3565693.
196,3565700.
197,3565709.
198,3565704.
199,3565713.
200,3565759.

286,4955608.
149,4955546.
793,4955497.
978,4955449.
644,4955402.
072,4955368.
484,4955365
608,4955355.

.048,4955344,

375,4955328,

.048,4955304.

260,4955288.
115,4955282.
187,4955281.

.981,4955279.

367,4955309.
683,4955309.
577,4955487.
160,4955433.
469,4952174.
251,4952174.
098,4957438.
439,4957436.
787,4955433.
052,4955433.
698,4955433
201,4955432,
085,4955432
799,4955432,
574,4955432,
778,4955431.
709,4955431.
092,4955431.
967,4955431.
064,4955431.
654,4955430.
819,4955382.
096,4955382.
182,4955381.
191,4955381.
628,4955381.
338,4955380.
958,4955381.
215,4955381.
923,4955381.
097,4955380.
035,4955380.
106,4955380.
719,4955381.
663,4955381.

133,1134.
239,1134.
846,1134.
562,1135.
231,1135.
085,1136.
.789,1135.
566,1135.
676,1135.
130,1136.
003,1137.
277,1137.
905,1138.
116,1138.
964,1138.
870,1143.
174,1143.
671,1145.
163,1144.
233,1127.
757,1127.
112,1113.
883,1110.
092,1142.
026,1142.
.459,1142.
705,1145.
.817,1145.
331,1144.
327,1144.
928,1142.
013,1141.
466,1141.
274,1144.
010,1142.
375,1143.
507,1141.
514,1142.
828,1139.
508,1139.
169,1139.
808,1143.
145,1143.
050,1144,
114,1144.
755,1139.
811,1139.
872,1139.
328,1141.
068,1139.

489,GS
512,GS
792,GS
122,GS
527,GS
079,GS
683,GS
768,GS
777,GS
314,GS
513,GS
958,GS
367,GS
631,GS
696,GS
140, E0G
106, EOG
682,GS
446,TB

CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN

FARM DR

342,CMP TOP
472,CMP TOP

044,GS BLOWOUT

537,TOP TILE
448, TOE
742, TOE
481,GS
073,TB
086, EOG
957, E0G
877,TB
027, TOE
919, TOE
792,GS
668, TB
711, EOHL
962,GS
748,GS
478,TB
724, TOE
803, TOE
468,GS
863,TB
961, EOG
122, E0G
003,TB
920, TOE
462, TOE
553,GS
172,78
989, GS



201,3565759
202,3565721.
203,3565715.
204,3565710.
205,3565701.
206, 3565705.
207,3565692.
208,3565689.
209,3565668
210,3565663.
211,3565656.
212,3565648.
213,3565652.
214,3565643.
215,3565645.
216,3565646.
217,3565593
218,3565594.
219,3565639.
220,3565641.
221,3565644.
222,3565645
223,3565647.
224,3565655.
225,3565651.
226,3565656.
227,3565653.
228,3565649.
229,3565651.
230,3565655.
231,3565653.
232,3565663.
233,3565669.
234,3565690.
235,3565695.
236,3565704.
237,3565711.
238,3565698.
239,3565696.
240,3565700.
241,3565706.
242,3565711.
243,3565707.
244 ,3565707.
245,3565707.
246,3565705.
247,3565707.
248,3565707.
249,3565707.
250,3565713.

.424,4955333,

534,4955333.
100,4955333.
786,4955333.
480,4955333.
579,4955333.
786,4955334,
425,4955334,

.047,4955334,

318,4955334.
036,4955334.
349,4955333.
054,4955333.
536,4955332.
461,4955333.
669,4955318.

.718,4955333.

057,4955283.
635,4955284.
291,4955284.
790,4955284.

.368,4955284.

965,4955283.
166,4955282.
426,4955283.
352,4955302.
213,4955304.
416,4955308.
245,4955313.
412,4955314.
732,4955308.
744,4955284.
090,4955284.
651,4955284.
227,4955284.
449,4955286.
642,4955287.
978,4955287.
876,4955248.
925,4955251.
731,4955252.
618,4955250.
510,4955248.
594,4955247.
377,4955248.
981,4955269.
975,4955288.
927,4955289.
736,4955290.
488,4955290.

683,1138.
364,1138.
547,1139.
567,1137.
902,1138.
869,1137.
174,1143.
519,1143.
506,1143.
196,1143
304,1138.
356,1138.
756,1138.
909,1140.
314,1139.
274,1139.
321,114e0.
203,1139.
169,1138.
092,1139.
055,1139.
425,1139.
356,1138.
792,1138.
516,1138.
555,1138.
232,1138.
619,1138.
146,1138.
019,1138.
887,1139.
183,1142.
167,1142.
218,1142.
389,1142.
520,1139
825,1138.
987,1141.
409,1142.
432,1141.
208,1139.
835,1139.
111,1136.
285,1137
848,1138.
181, 1140.
847,1138.
089,1136.
182,1137
472,1138

.762,T8B

791,GS CROPLN
885,GS CROPLN

234,TB
922,TOE
101, TOE
902,GS
272,TB
332,E0G
269, E0G

.007,TB

399, TOE
069, TOE
099, GS
284,TB
396, EOHL
681,PP
159,GS
183,GS
684,GS
527,GS
610,GS
441,WL SIGN
179, TOE
327,TOE
138,GS
291, TOE
199,GS
281,GS
043,GS
298, TOE

415,CMP TOP 30"

609,TB
847,E0G
883,E0G
642,7TB

DR
DR
DR
DR
DR
DR
DR
CMP

859,TB
187, T8
106, TB
304,TB
962,TB
118, TB
732,FL

.436,GS

297,CMP TOP
747,GS
426,CMP TOP
972,FL CMP

.461,GS
.741,T8



251,3565713.
252,3565713.
253,3565713.
254,3565713.
255,3565708.
256,3565702.
257,3565702.
258,3565707.
259,3565705.
260,3565706.
261,3565721.
262,3565769.
263,3565769.
264,3565713.
265,3565709.
266,3565702.
267,3565705.
268,3565694.
269,3565690.
270,3565668.
271,3565664.
272,3565657.
273,3565647.
274,3565651.
275,3565647.
276,3565643.
277,3565597.
278,3565597.
279,3565573.
280,3565562.
281,3565537.
282,3565480.
283,3565494.
284,3565519.
285,3565540.
286,3565504.
287,3565474.
288,3565453.
289,3565428.
290,3565397.
291,3565342.
292,3565362.
293,3565372.
294,3565394.
295,3565374.
296,3565343,
297,3565309.
298,3565254.
299,3565268.
300,3565298.

589,4955305.
668,4955309.
731,4955312.
411,4955316.
773,4955315.
576,4955315.
577,4955306.
207,4955306.
690,4955311.
309,4955311.
534,4955281.
138,4955282.
137,4955232.
896,4955231.
791,4955231.
152,4955230.
676,4955230.
384,4955229.
831,4955229.
450,4955230.
050,4955230.
856,4955230.
831,4955229.
994,4955229.
791,4955228.
503,4955229.
888,4955228.
971,4955179
472,4955224,
944,4955243.
920,4955287.
246,4955276.
601,4955224.
669,4955178.
285,4955134.
041,4955093
888,4955134.
328,4955166.
255,4955206.
152,4955252.
351,4955233.
443,4955180.
938,4955154.
661,4955105.
985,4955052.
644,4955084.
271,4955124.
075,4955136.
316,4955087.
710,4955047.

363,1138.
235,1138.
528,1137.
009,1138.
872,1138.
.153,TOE
653,1138.
317,1138.
260,1139.
253,1136.
001,1138.
032,1138.
098,1139.
366,1139.

615,1138

220,1137

002,1139

763,78
076,GS
586,GS
810,7TB
475,GS

352,TOE
221,GS
225,CMP TOP
747,FL CMP

543,GS CROPLN
337,GS CROPLN

206,GS
077,718

.837,TOE
657,1138.
216,1137.
777,1142.
656,1142.
491,1142.
064,1142.
074,1138.
662,1137.
762,1137.
935,1138.
468,1139.
588,1139.
.788,1140.
864,1139.
626,1139.
985,1139.
849,1140.
470,1139.
097,1139.
849,1140.
.179,1141.
237,1140.

330, TOE
9203,GS
588,TB
842,E0G
772,E0G
626,TB
492, TOE
984, TOE
850,GS
039, EOHL
958,TB
468,GS
362,GS
566,GS
246,GS
561,GS
000,GS
447,GS
900,GS
560,GS
029,GS
068,GS

.886,GS
167,1139.
846,11480.
485,1141.
730,11480.
604,11490.
413,1140.
201,1140.
573,1140.
877,1140.
935,1140.
629,1140.
251,1140.

693,GS
477,GS
194,GS
152,GS
066,GS
311,GS
420,GS
365,GS
394,GS
777,GS
366,GS
451,GS



301,3565331.
302,3565363.
303,3565345.
304,3565300.
305,3565258.
306,3565228.
307,3565178.
308,3565179.
309,3565222
310,3565260.
311,3565299.
312,3565339.
313,3565323.
314,3565270.
315,3565246.
316,3565225.
317,3565175
318,3565153
319,3565205.
320,3565226.
321,3565246.
322,3565296.
323,3565297.
324,3565244.
325,3565227.
326,3565211.
327,3565152.
328,3565142.
329,3565190.
330,3565212.
331,3565231.
332,3565283
333,3565286.
334,3565237.
335,3565208.
336,3565187.
337,3565139.
338,3565137.
339,3565177.
340,3565199.
341,3565222.
342,3565256.
343,3565298.
344,3565284.
345,3565229.
346,3565205.
347,3565182.
348,3565145.
349,3565126.
350,3565157.

509,4955009.
161,4954970.
644,4954915.
073,4954936.
378,4954964.
905,4954987.
522,4954970.
710,4954943,

.002,4954921.

512,4954897.
663,4954862.
825,4954821.
138,4954768.
004,4954784.
811,4954791.
787,4954799.

.067,4954819.
.940,4954765.

861,4954744.
125,4954735.
320,4954725.
310,4954702.
869,4954643.
204,4954652.
735,4954656.
958,4954661.
790,4954679.
073,4954622.
967,4954610.
828,4954602.
081,4954595.

.449,4954567 .

435,4954509.
835,4954512.
373,4954518
461,4954525
948,4954537
732,4954473
794,4954463
555,4954457
794,4954448
254,4954431
343,4954411
132,4954352
187,4954360
668,4954365
294,4954371
903,4954386
152,4954327
646,4954315

384,1140.
269,1140.
726,1140.
049,1140.
679,1141.
695,1141.
736,1141.
389,1141.
052,1141.
007,1140.
775,1141.
714,1141.
720,1142.
147,1141.
569,1141.
131,1141.
622,1142.
561,1142.
486,1141.
317,1141.
692,1141.
817,1142.
142,1143.
821,1141.
776,1141.
005,1141.
445,1142.
986,1142.
434,1141.
443,1141.
482,1141.
691,1143.
357,1143.
929,1142.
.662,1141.
.431,1142.
.565,1142.
.465,1142.
.324,1142.
.066,1142.
.173,1142.
.365,1143.
.384,1144.
.412,1143.
.714,1142.
.127,1142.
.337,1142.
.035,1142.

.662,1143

562,GS
448,GS
639,GS
856,GS
090, GS
315,GS
605, GS
644,GS
494,GS
810,GS
101,GS
808,GS
212,GS
560, GS
069,GS
231,GS
563,GS
636,GS
708,GS
163,GS
547,GS
742,GS
375,GS
775,GS
445,GS
598,GS
415,GS
677,GS
973,GS
699, GS
686,GS
246,GS
638,GS
231,GS
743,GS
106,GS
765,GS
908, GS
277,GS
047,GS
128,GS
116,GS
157,GS
930,GS
907,GS
207,GS
088,GS
791,GS

.401,GS
.138,1142.

505, GS



351,3565173
352,3565194.
353,3565244.
354,3565236.
355,3565185.
356,3565163.
357,3565143
358,3565072.
359,3565060.
360,3565105
361,3565117.
362,3565131.
363,3565181.
364,3565167.
365,3565130.
366,3565107.
367,3565082.
368,3565037.
369,3565019,
370,3565067.
371,3565081
372,3565097.
373,3565146.
374,3565141.
375,3565099.
376,3565076.
377,3565060.
378,3565007.
379,3564976.
380,3565019.
381,3565035.
382,3565051.
383,3565099.
384,3565069.
385,3565027.
386,3565008.
387,3564992.
388,3564947.
389,3564900.
390,3564948.
391, 3564965.
392,3564977.
393,3565022.
394,3565003.
395, 3564960
396,3564940.
397,3564927.
398,3564873.
399,3564825.
400, 3564858,

.422,4954308.

665,4954299.
893,4954279.
585,4954223.
370,4954229.
502,4954232.

.432,4954236.

711,4954248.
587,4954186.

.078,4954169.

084,4954163.
246,4954155.
295,4954126.
754,4954067.
769,4954074.
783,4954078.
723,4954082.
969,4954091.
700,4954036.
366,4954021.

.535,4954016.

241,4954010.
361,4953992.
371,4953929.
745,4953934.,
000,4953938.
987,4953941.
783,4953950.
855,4953893.
658,4953874.
088,4953865.
954,4953854.
482,4953830.
531,4953772.
400,4953788.
945,4953797.
881,4953806.
003,4953827.
281,4953784.
795,4953757.
294,4953749.
588,4953743.
630,4953717.
926,4953657.

.941,4953675.

296,4953685.
001,4953691.
715,4953715.
750,4953671.
330,4953643.

920,1142.
894,1142.
128,1144.
490,1144.,
242,1143.
609,1142.
813,1142.
203,1144.
049,1144.
320,1142.
031,1142.
204,1142.
662,1144.
434,1144.
226,1143.
705,1142.
933,1143.
121,1144.
209,1145.
849,1143.
757,1142.
022,1142.
239,1145.
478,1146.
776,1144.
.095,GS
406,1143.
511,1145.
975,1146.
253,1143.
015,1143.

992,1143

412,1143

313,1143

987,1146

548,1143

115,GS
505,GS
182,GS
462,GS
205,GS
505,GS
367,GS
155,GS
305,GS
904,GS
448,GS
593,GS
461,GS
985,GS
903,GS
853,GS
051,GS
819,GS
301,GS
273,GS
819,GS
989,GS
470,GS
002,GS
323,GS

076,GS
421,GS
055,GS
763,GS
175,GS

.643,GS
997,1146.
562,1146.
395,1144.
998,1143.
.689,GS
999,1146.
.849,GS
571,1144.
672,1143.
876,1143.
209,1146.
502,1147.
611,1144.
480,1143.
.700,GS
745,1146.
295,1146.
970,1144.

519,GS
999,GS
063,GS
296,GS

312,GS

336,GS
534,GS
640,GS
656,GS
463,GS
874,GS
783,GS

140,GS
305,GS
663,GS



401,3564879.
402,3564897.
403,3564944.
404,3564914.
405,3564864.
406, 3564846 .
407,3564832.
408,3564783.
409,3564729.
410,3564760.
411,3564773.
412,3564784.
413,3564826.
414,3564804.
415, 3564759.
416,3564741.
417,3564724.
418,3564664.
419,3564630.
420,3564672.
421,3564698.
422,3564719.
423,3564767.
424,3564776.
425,3564737.
426,3564720.
427,3564700.
428,3564661.
429,3564707.
430,3564755.
431,3564777.
432,3564797.
433,3564843.
434,3564897.
435,3564869.
436,3564859.
437,3564849.
438,3564812.
439,3564844.
440,3564891.
441,3564931.
442,3564964.
443, 3565010.
444,3564980.
445,3564934.
446,3564956.
447,3565015.
448,3565073.
449,3565112.
450,3565082.

824,4953627.
227,4953615.
356,4953584.
507,4953527.
870,4953547,
860,4953555.
224,4953561.
375,4953589.
941,4953541.
644,4953509.
918,4953498.
646,4953489.
358,4953457.
745,4953405.
267,4953432.
407,4953444.
199,4953454.
193,4953488.
231,4953434.
222,4953416.
753,4953411.
691,4953405.
619,4953388
333,4953379.
605,4953352,
285,4953339,
306,4953324.
654,4953297.
826,4953248.
527,4953271.
766,4953283.
169,4953294.
535,4953317.
313,4953300.
807,4953253.
815,4953235.
447,4953219.
670,4953179.
710,4953113
102,4953147.
437,4953178.
685,4953212.
308,4953177.
528,4953144.
784,4953104.
088,4953047.
314,4953065.
096,4953085
912,4953054.
633,4953028.

127,1144.
001,1144.
904,1147.
167,1147.
186,1144.
.993,GS
.876,GS
722,1146.
976,1146.
330,1144.
199,1143.
067,1144.
.970,GS
494,1146.
747,1144.
197,1144.
498,1144.
869,1146.
596,1145.
992,1144.
043,1144.
055,1144.
.454,1145

198,1143
992,1143

951,1145

439,1145

275,1143

787,1145

001,GS
043,GS
008,GS
008, GS
887,GS

085,GS
328,GS
376,GS
994,GS
152,GS

007,GS
811,GS
112,GS
138,GS
319,GS
509,GS
428,GS
003,GS
268,GS

.454,GS
.611,GS
521,1144.
939,1144.
916,1144.
670,1144.
890,1144.
789,1144.
.969,GS
589,1144.
135,1145.
667,1145.
978,1144.
049,1143.
885,1144.
909,1145.
.400,1145.
213,1144.
045,1144.
702,1144.
090,1144.
041,1144.
415,1144.
.039,GS
549,1144.
.949,1144.
184,1144.
683,1144.

400,GS
030,GS
130,GS
925,GS
871,GS
369,GS

295,GS
178,GS
322,GS
502,GS
979,GS
121,GS
307,GS
184,GS
711,GS
145,GS
265,GS
279,GS
480,GS
762,GS

463,GS
111,GS
548,GS
086,GS



451,3565063

453, 3565049
454,3565091
455,3565111
456,3565161
457,3565206
458,3565168
459,3565147
460,3565099
461,3565132

463,3565196
464,3565246
465,3565290
466,3565263
467,3565242

469,3565227

471,3565281
472,3565330
473,3565373
474,3565343
475,3565326.
476,3565268.
477,3565319.
478,3565356.
479,3565378.
480,3565432.
481,3565465.
482,3565430.
483,3565412.
484,3565363.
485, 3565396.
486,3565452.
487,3565472.
488,3565519.
489,3565558.
490,3565519.
491,3565499.
492,3565458.
493,3565509.
494,3565546.
495,3565565.
496,3565599.
497,3565637.
498,3565614.
499,3565579.
500,3565610.

.132,4953014.
452,3565014.181,4952981.
.187,4952928.
.275,4952945.
.312,4952954.
.480,4952970.
.222,4952923.
.170,4952892.
.694,4952878.
.698,4952851.
.317,4952796.
462,3565174.592,4952814.
.816,4952822.
.892,4952839.
.642,4952790.
.178,4952772.
.923,4952762.
468,3565184.519,4952734.
.881,4952686.
470,3565264.399,4952708.
.936,4952718.
.166,4952744.
.412,4952695.
.381,4952670.

437,4952658
297,4952624
875,4952582
454,4952603
316,4952615
765,4952643
597,4952586
408,4952561
206,4952548
466,4952516
198,4952456
955,4952485
995,4952499
916,4952533
207,4952489
250,4952462
071,4952448
816,4952421
331,4952378
115,4952405
689,4952421
931,4952445
838,4952401
271,4952374
659,4952346
606,4952295

820,1145

.578,1144

.206,1145

.023,1145

.007,1144

055,1144.
708,1144.
799,1144.
909,1144.
533,1144.
684,1145.
928,1145.
321,1144.
885,1144.
852,1145.
880,1146.
142,1145.
077,1144.
595,1145.
459,1145.

144,GS
386,GS
627,GS
208,GS
298,GS
150,GS
548,GS
863,GS
589,GS
859,GS
565,GS
288,GS
697,GS
816,GS
998,GS

.019,GS
512,1144.
976,1146.
020,1146.
407,1144.,
465,1144.
019,1145.
899,1145.
595,1145.
.967,GS
.725,1147.
.618,1146.
.366,1145.
.658,1145.
.807,1147.
.024,1146.
.063,GS
.620,1145,
.042,1146.
.581,1145.
.257,1144.
.898,1144,
.925,1145,
.444,1145.
.031,1144,
.801,1144,
.936,1145.

759,GS
367,GS
004,GS
913,GS
724,GS
789,GS
866,GS
209,GS

088,GS
937,GS
423,GS
140,GS
010,GS
787,GS

078,GS
616,GS
910,GS
821,GS
665,GS
628,GS
048,GS
688,GS
616,GS
223,GS

.126,GS
.849,1144.
.976,1144.
.834,1144.
.394,1144.
.810,1144,
.863,1144.
.670,GS

658,GS
671,GS
922,GS
977,GS
773,GS
660,GS



501, 3565645.
502,3565659.
503,3565660.
504,3565664.
505,3565670.
506,3565667.
507,3565678.
508,3565681.
509, 3565700.
510,3565703.
511,3565760.
512,3565806.
513,3565809.
514,3565810.
515, 35658160.
516,3565809.
517,3565866.
518,3565863.
519,3565862.
520,3565861.
521,3565859.
522,3565858.
523,3565850.
524,3565912.
525,3565920.
526,3565923.
527,3565925.
528,3565929.
529,3565940.
530,3566000.
531,3565993.
532,3565990.
533,3565987.
534,3565981.
535,3566032.
536,3566039.
537,3566042.
538,3566046.
539,3566048.
540,3566067 .
541,3566075.
542,3566076.
543,3566077.
544,3566096.
545,3566093.
546,3566095.
547,3566111.
548,3566108.
549,3566103.
550,3566100.

169,4952294.
695,4952294.
023,4952297.
807,4952296.
117,4952296.
649,4952296.
208,4952296.
127,4952296.
683,4952295.
686,4952295.
838,4955334.
555,4955337.
272,4955316.
535,4955298.
038,4955281.
251,4955256.
623,4955260.
749,4955291.
079,4955306.
130,4955321.
907,4955336.
376,4955352.
236,4955396.
096,4955407.
709,4955369.
952,4955345
976,4955331
358,4955311.
409,4955267.
900,4955284.
719,4955338.
543,4955357.
688,4955379.
945,4955425.
898,4955439.
549,4955387.
485,4955371.
214,4955357.
641,4955347.
228,4955351.
090,4955345.
069,4955332.
391,4955303.
693,4955302.
223,4955342.
409,4955354.,
219,4955362.
471,4955376.
511,4955394.
646,4955403.

671,1144.
.477,GS
039,1145.
744,1142.
.194,TOE
410,1142.
080,1147.
015,1148.
493,1148.
577,1148.
332,1138.
938,1137.
519,1137.
911,1137.
866,1138.
588,1138.
560,1138.
332,1137.
.059,GS
150,1136.
185,1136.
801,1137.
427,1139.
522,1138.
277,1137.
.040,1136.
.783,1136.
738,1136.
272,1138.
376,1137.
004,1135.
215,1136.
410,1136.
105,1138.
225,1138.
094,1136.
581,1136.
313,1135.
983,1135.
337,1135.
632,1136.
529,1136.
723,1136.
752,1136.
295,1136.
078,1135.
813,1135.
902,1134.
149,1135.
307,1135.

826,1145

699,1143

651,1137

9208,GS

145,78
936, TOE

876,GS
977,TB
198, EOG
439,E0G
071,TB
681,GS
820,GS
224,GS
351,GS
159,GS
463,GS
290,GS
918,GS

721,GS
888,GS
651,GS
065,GS
260,GS
227,GS
333,GS
197,GS
986,GS
002,GS
392,GS
975,GS
006, GS
831,GS
314,GS
222,GS
565,GS
038,GS
464,GS
767,GS
895,GS
020,GS
453,GS
797,GS
553,GS
077,GS
805,GS
718,GS
855,GS
393,GS
9208, GS

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN

CRPLN



551,3566092.
552,3566136.
553,3566156.
554,3566165.
555,3566174.
556,3566180.
557,3566172.
558,3566193.
559,3566211.
560,3566225.
561,3566172.
562,3566246.
563,3566229.
564,3566219.
565,3566241.
566,3566272.
567,3566230.
568,3566219.
569,3566208.
570,3566192.
.705,4955505.
572,3566194.
573,3566228.
574,3566242.
575,3566254.
576,3566267.
577,3566288.
578,3566322.
579,3566365.
580,3566326.
581,3566314.
.710,4955547.
583,3566289.
584,3566267.
.696,4955610.

571,3566163

582,3566305

585, 3566235

586,3566271.
587,3566305.
588,3566315.
589,3566330.
590,3566342.
591,3566359.
592,3566372.
593,3566410.
594,3566442.
595,3566408.
596,3566396.
597,3566379.
598,3566369.
599,3566355.
600,3566344.

177,4955447.
728,4955467.
784,4955438,
713,4955422.
634,4955406.
040,4955391.
935,4955366.
191,4955365.
490,4955346.
576,4955306.
138,4955301.
440,4955319.
643,4955364.
531,4955396.
218,4955425.
257,4955397.
775,4955439,
296,4955448.
314,4955458.
084,4955474,

888,4955559.
785,4955529.
765,4955518.
002,4955509.
742,4955498,
412,4955483.
330,4955448.
309,4955496.
071,4955526.
985,4955537.

874,4955563.
493,4955582.

373,4955666.
129,4955641.
501,4955634.
326,4955622.
213,4955614.
835,4955601.
465,4955593,
259,4955563.
525,4955622.
294,4955644.
362,4955653.
065,4955666.
579,4955674.
002,4955686.
554,4955696.

018,1137.
829,1136.
535,1135.
808,1134.
659,1134.
801,1134.
896,1135.
906,1135.
074,1136.
560,1136.
937,1136.
067,1137.
.853,GS
488,1135.
296,1135.
794,1135.
392,1134.
338,1134.
448,1134.
100,1135.
096,1136.
879,1136.
006,1135.
095,1134.
450,1133.
830,1134.
713,1134.
.984,GS
067,1136.
308,1134.
289,1134.

331,1135

714,1135

175,1133
791,1133

839,1133
290,1134

605,GS
824,GS
886,GS
993,GS
773,GS
687,GS
925,GS
965, GS
247,GS
694,GS
950, GS
027,GS

501,GS
188,GS
988, GS
668,GS
236,GS
723,GS
663,GS
984,GS
837,GS
309,GS
711,GS
695,GS
199,GS
732,GS

032,GS
539,GS
123,GS

.406,GS
.899,GS
905,1135.
942,1136.
218,1136.
762,1134.
400,1133.
954,1133.
573,1132.
832,1134.
631,1134.
514,1136.
511,1135.
823,1134.
506,1133.
813,1132.
057,1132.

093,GS
464,GS
765,GS
804,GS
950, GS
015,GS
901, GS
040,GS
334,GS
323,GS
991,GS
211,GS
759,GS
658,GS
255,GS

.430,GS
.716,GS

CRPLN

CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN
CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CRPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN



601,3566309.
602,3566348.
603,3566387.
604,3566399.
605,3566409.
606,3566417.
607,3566436.
608,3566448
609,3566486.
610,3566517.
611,3566478.
612,3566463
613,3566456.
614,3566448.
615,3566437.
616,3566423.
617,3566378.
618,3566405.
619,3566453
620,3566465.
621,3566477.
622,3566488.
623,3566499.
624,3566516.
625,3566557.
626,3566570.
627,3566531.
628,3566523.
629,3566506.
630,3566499.
631,3566485.
632,3566470.
633,3566424.
634,3566443.
635,3566489.
636,3566499.
637,3566511.
638,3566517.
639,3566535
640,3566553.
641,3566598.
642,3566624.
643,3566577.
644,3566567.
645,3566554.
646,3566541.
647,3566523.
648,3566479.
649,3566528.
650,3566561.

766,4955728.
009,4955783.
684,4955753.
520,4955745.
512,4955738.
820,4955732,
854,4955721.

.979,4955715.

390,4955689.
681,4955743.
529,4955766.

.919,4955777.

019,4955783.
913,4955788.
385,4955796.
967,4955805.
188,4955832.
982,4955889.,

.965,4955870.

821,4955865.
651,4955860.
175,4955855.
906,4955849.
018,4955841.
072,4955815.
262,4955871.
865,4955883.
706,4955885.
898,4955892.
299,4955895.,
987,4955902.
173,4955909.
261,4955929.
343,4955986.
278,4955971.
127,4955967.
814,4955964.
610,4955962.

.986,4955955.

628,4955948.
356,4955927.
392,4955980.
898,4956012.
026,4956019.
859,4956028.
224,4956038.
731,4956050.
342,4956080.
275,4956134.
349,4956102.

846,1137.
918,1136.
437,1133.
212,1132.
176,1131.
819,1131.
640,1132.
836,1133.
264,1135.
542,1134.
335,1132.
805,1131.
700,1131.
669,1131.
079,1131.
.095,GS

077,1133

711,1134.
.340,GS

538,1133

956,1132.
383,1131.
323,113e.
316,1130.
466,1130.
833,1131.
009,1133.
510,1133.
629,1131.
925,1130.
189,1129.
305,1129.
879,1130.
826,1131.
284,1132.
097,1131.
353,1130.
896,1130.
111,1128.
380,1129.
144,1130.
407,1131.
099,1134.
177,1132.
209,1130.
739,1130.
429,1129.
172,1128.
738,1129.
249,1132.
778,1132.
896,1130.

034,GS
132,GS
600, GS
359,GS
843,GS
589,GS
880,GS
322,GS
353,6S
488,GS
791,GS
567,GS
107,GS
145,GS
715,GS

971,GS

062,GS
613,GS
669,GS
364,GS
530,GS
919,GS
474,GS
175,GS
780,GS
636,GS
822,GS
973,GS
980,GS
597,GS
156,GS
472,GS
799,GS
138,GS
909,GS
274,GS
286,GS
665,GS
239,GS
606,GS
509,GS
160,GS
005,G6S
132,6S
917,GS
113,GS
556,GS
308,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN



651,3566567.
652,3566576.
653,3566583.
654,3566591.
655,3566600.
656,3566605.
657,3566639.
658,3566682.
659,3566646.
660, 3566636.
661,3566629.
662,3566620.
663,3566613.
664 ,3566606.
665,3566576.
666,3566616.
667,3566653.
668,3566659.
669,3566669.
670,3566678.
671,3566692.
672,3566701.
673,3566735.
674,3566769.
675,3566738.
676,3566730.
677,3566720.
678,3566714.
679,3566709.
680,3566698.
681,3566695.
682,3566663.
683,3566705.
684,3566738.
685,3566747.
686,3566751.
687,3566756.
688,3566769.
689,3566780.
690,3566816.
691,3566859.
692,3566822.
693,3566816.
694,3566812.
695,3566803.
696,3566798.
697,3566789.
698,3566778.
699,3566758.
700,3566752.

201,4956096.
904,4956085.
395,4956078.
121,4956068.
746,4956056.
360,4956051.
299,4956015.
548,4956054.
205,4956088.
104,4956104.
548,4956114.
796,4956126.
750,4956137.
674,4956145.
787,4956181.
922,4956221.
391,4956184.
343,4956177.
842,4956165.
215,4956155.
468,4956146.
680,4956138.
965,4956100.
617,4956124.
864,4956169.
263,4956180.
901,49561990.
311,4956197.
870,4956202.
858,4956213.
165,4956216.
834,4956251.
910,4956289.
858,4956252.
045,4956242.
608,4956237.
395,4956230.
104,4956218.
513,4956208.
549,4956174.
774,4956205.
031,4956247.
976,4956252.
242,4956257.
597,4956268.
262,4956275.
162,4956287.
582,4956279.
603,4956273.
706,4956286.

320,1129.
868,1128.
.927,GS
191,1128.
127,1129.
601,1129.
551,1130.
096,1129.
691,1128.
634,1128.
.149,GS
946,1128.
250,1129.
854,1129.
331,1132.
578,1131.

623,1127

076,1127

169,1129
283,1128

374,1128
425,1127

196,1125

916,1127

785,1125
617,1125

693,GS
330,GS

289,GS
329,GS
514,GS
943,G6S
743,GS
683,GS
012,GS

118,GS
506,GS
971,GS
179,GS
001,GS

.009,GS
.823,GS
185,1127.
806,1126.
087,1127.
132,1128.
952,1129.
.736,GS
.928,GS
192,1127.
322,1126.
243,1126.
360,1126.
028,1127.
885,1127.
831,1129.
593,1127.
861,1127.
753,1126.

144,GS
705,GS
541,GS
152,GS
114,GS

141,GS
861,GS
086,GS
504,GS
701,GS
964,GS
212,GS
958,GS
179,GS
558,GS

.851,GS
791,1126.
998,1126.
428,1127.
469,1128.
.953,GS
467,1127.
530,1126.
792,1126.
.760,GS
.804,GS
172,1126.
896,1126.
238,1126.
973,1127.

297,GS
784,GS
533,GS
287,GS

013,GS
784,GS
121,GS

684,GS
626,GS
887,GS
064,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN
CROPLN



701,3566729
702,3566736.
703,3566745
704,3566769.
705,3566780.
706,3566794
707,3566796.
708,3566834.
709,3566841.
710,3566849.
711,3566856.
712,3566862.
713,3566868.
714,3566899.
715,3566938.
716,3566896.
717,3566887.
718,3566876.
719,3566874.
720,3566871.
721,3566858.
722,3566822.
723,3565627.
724,3565628.
725,3565629
726,3565629.
727,3565630.
728,3565630.
729,3565650.
730,3565659.
731,3565661.
732,3565664.
733,3565670.
734,3565667.
735,3565658.
736,3565659.
737,3565659.
738,3565661.
739,3565664.
740,3565662.
741,3565655.
742,3565668.
743,3565675.
744,3565679.
745,3565677.
746,3565703.
747,3565700.
748,3565710.
749,3565717.
750,3565713.

.417,4956324.

426,4956330.

.408,4956339.

049,4956307.
455,4956299.

.141,4956296.

519,4956370.
491,4956331.
017,4956325.
882,4956315.
289,4956309.
980,4956298.
296,4956290.
908,4956250.
334,4956281.
663,4956317.
749,4956325.
179,4956336.
315,4956338.
700,4956341.
580,4956353.
129,4956381.
484,4952172.
486,4952179.

.659,4952187.

516,4952184.
264,4952192.
590,4952206.
354,4952207.
468,4952206.
098,4952206.
082,4952206.
394,4952205.
482,4952205.
967,4952196.
076,4952203.
726,4952194.
012,4952191.
202,4952187.
379,4952189.
386,4952184.
329,4952182.
758,4952192.
289,4952205.
197,4952206.
127,4952205
643,4952205
033,4952206.
550,4952205.
925,4952205.

026,1127

.237,GS
597,1127.
607,1127.
439,1126.
183,1126.
248,1126.
023,1127.
490,1126.
261,1126.
902,1125.
122,1125.
042,1126.
003,1126.
133,1127.
101,1127.
250,1126.
614,1125.
675,1125.
493,1124.
333,1125.
185,1126.
133,1127.
294,1149.
833,1145.
532,1144.
604,1144.
090,1146.
142,1145.
068,1145.
383,1145.
298,1145.
872,1144.
675,1144.
959,1144.
746,1146.
351,1146.
997,1146.
005,1144.
278,1145.
449,1144,
110,1145.
771,1149.
676,1149.
936,1149.
171,1148.
.915,1149.
.932,1149.
014,1144.
863,1144.
951,1144.

063,GS
570, GS
923,GS
633,GS
762,GS
965, GS
507,GS
081,GS
324,GS
449,GS
012,GS
441,GS
359,GS
197,GS
065 ,GS
431,GS
045,GS
423,GS
130, GS
400, GS
753,GS
759, E0G
372, TOE
548, TOE
629,GS
113,TB
497,GS
890, GS
926,TB
320, WL
208, TOE
222,TOE
083,GS
317,PP
143, EOH
199,TB
912, TOE
620, TOE
995,GS
132,5IG
109, EOG
110, EOG
025, EOG
792,TB
182,TB
250, E0G
800, TOE
553, TOE
494,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

SIGN

L

N STOP



751,3565722.
752,3565734.
753,3565724.
754,3565721.
755,3565717.
756,3565711.
757,3565714.
758,3565702.
759,3565700.
760,3565680.
761,3565677.
762,3565671.
763,3565663.
764,3565666.
765,3565651.
766,3565666.
767,3565669.
768,3565669.
769,3565643.
770,3565659.
771,3565658.
772,3565662.
773,3565670.
774,3565667.
775,3565677.
776,3565679.
777,3565700.
778,3565702.
779,3565710.
7806,3565717.
.774,4952330.
782,3565721.
783,3565735.
.784,4952305.
.426,4952305.

781,3565713

784,3565736
785,3565723

786,3565716.
787,3565711.
788,3565714.
789,3565715.
7906,3565712.
791,3565712.
792,3565734.
793,3565719.
794,3565715.
795,3565709.
796,3565712.
797,3565702.
798,3565699.
.836,4952373.
800,3565677.

799,3565679

786,4952206.
099,4952206.
606,4952242.
508,4952242,
639,4952242.
768,4952243,
845,4952243.
934,4952242.
470,4952242.
771,4952243,
964,4952243.
398,4952244.
054,4952244.
631,4952244.
190,4952244.
889,4952312.
609,4952312.
895,4952311.
514,4952328.
509,4952329.
176,4952330.
016,4952329.
670,4952329.
508,4952329.
473,4952330.
819,4952330.
192,4952330.
599,4952330.
889,4952330.
190,4952330.

276,4952329.
049,4952330.

789,4952305.
523,4952305.
740,4952305.
142,4952313.
089,4952313.
086,4952312.
372,4952373.
213,4952373,
091,4952373.
881,4952373.
634,4952373.
228,4952373.
375,4952373.

227,4952373.

865,1146.
332,1146.
334,1146.
111,1145.
725,1144.
031,1144.
286,1144,
582,1148.
661,1148.
557,1148.
537,1148.
089,1144.
.826,TOE

023,1143

246,1143.
073,1145.
506,1142.
063,1142.
997,1144.
974,1144.
859,1145.
153,1145.
533,1143.
511,1143.
265,1142.
295,1147.
557,1148.
788,1148.
718,1148.
053,1144.
397,1144.
374,1143.
788,1145.
638,1146.
.792,GS
424,1145.
658,1143.
.634,TOE
806,1143.
178,1143.
170,1142.
996,1144.
393,1146.
229,1146.
538,1144.
853,1144.
900,1144.
709,1148.
513,1148.
.150,E0G
541,1147.

710,1145

958,1143

551,1148

152,TB

479,GS CROPLN
119,GS CROPLN
977,TB

362, TOE
494,TOE
045,GS

919,TB

869, EOG

538, EOG
217,TB

009, TOE

513,GS
344,GS
478,GS
580,CMP FL
633,CMP TOP
877,GS
311,TB
423, EOHL
974, TOE
247, TOE
928,GS
832,78
206, E0G
329,E06G
203,78
059, TOE
@53, TOE
991,GS
687,TB
116,GS

355,TB
600, TOE

234,GS
258,GS
641,CMP
964, CMP
286,GS
279,TB
560, TOE
460, TOE
179,GS
109, TB
219, EOG

FL
TOP

999,TB



801,3565671.
802,3565661.
803,3565663.
804,3565658.
805,3565657.
806,3565657.
807,3565654.
808,3565630.
809,3565755.
810,3565755.
811,3565755.
812,3565757.
813,3565761.
814,3565762.
815,3565763.
816,3565772.
817,3565779.
818,3565780.
819,3565773.
820,3565722.
821,3565721.
822,3565718.
823,3565718.
824,3565715.
825,3565710.
826,3565713.
827,3565742.
828,3565780.
829,3565826.
830,3565826.
831,3565826.
832,3565826.
833,3565878.
834,3565878.
835,3565879.
836,3565880.
837,3565879.
838,3565880.
839,3565931.
840,3565928.
841,3565926.
842,3565746.
843,3565723.
844,3565717.
845,3565710.
846,3565713.
847,3565703.
848,3565700.
849,3565700.
850,3565703.

303,4952373.
517,4952373.
531,4952375.
439,4952373.
847,4952376.
966,4952371.
510,4952373,
474,4952374.
355,4952373.
835,4952325.
891,4952276.
183,4952227.
018,4952179.
475,4952165.
144,4952158.
536,4952156.
950,4952156.
889,4952149.
393,4952149.
845,4952162.
873,4952161.
825,4952161.
448,4952174.
283,4952162.
156,4952162.
664,4952162.
035,4952130.
651,4952128.
756,4952127.
495,4952162.
682,4952167.
985,4952215.
660,4952215.
907,4952169.
343,4952164.
111,4952116.
347,4952088.
378,4952050.
292,49520509.
530,4952100.
077,4952146.
560,4952119.
028,4952118.
176,4952118.
590,4952118.
746,4952119.
062,4952118.
873,4952118.
489,4952160.
414,4952160.

856,1144.
452,1143.
873,1143.
.036,TB
198,1145.
913,1145.
276,1144.
343,1144.,
467,1146.
.900,GS
.988,GS
076,1146.
983,1146.
514,1147.
784,1148.
589,1148.
859,1148.
661,1148.
248,1148.
060,1147.
550,1147.
239,1146.
349,1145.
061,1145.
681,1145.
880,1145.
134,1148.
719,1148.
461,1148.
642,1148.
983,1147.
831,1147.
775,1147.
897,1148.
821,1149.
057,1149.
©31,1149.
064,1151.
199,1151.
898,1150.
794,1149.
318,1148.
754,1148.
549,1146.
776,1146.
188,1146.
512,1150.
261,1150.
534,1149.
397,1149.

232,1145

145,1145
563,1145

594,TOE
492, TOE
557,WL

269,PP
212,EOH
849,GS
673,GS
448,GS

313,GS
815,GS
317,GS
691, GS
462,GS
368,GS
279,GS
144,GS
564,GS
311,FOW
498,51G
842,STS
286, TOE
524,TOE
245,GS
183,GS
287,GS
618,GS
828,GS
807,GS
201,GS
846,GS
409,GS
258,GS
256,GS
724,GS
744,GS
875,GS
220,GS
811,GS
264,GS
304,TB
316, TOE
405, TOE
085, GS
102,78
226,E0G
687,E0G
532,TB

FLAG

L

CROPLN

WINDMILL
WINDMILL
WINDMILL
WINDMILL

RR RAIL POST
S

NMISC

IGN

CROPLN

CROPLN



851,3565643.
852,3565643.
853,3565643.
854,3565642
855,3565642.
856,3563724.
857,3563732.
858,3563732.
859,3563724.
860,3563725
861,3563733
862,3563752.
863,3563786.
864,3563830.
865,3563807.
866,3563851.
867,3563875.
868,3563905.
869,3563954.
870,3563945.
871,3563937.
872,3563989.
873,3563999.
874,3564008.
875,3564061.
876,3564055.
877,3564044.
878,3564093.
879,3564105.
880,3564116.
881,3564164.
882,3564154.
883,3564145.
884,3564195.
885,3564206.
886,3564219.
887,3564270.
888,3564264.
889,3564260.
890,3564313.
891,3564325.
892,3564335.
893,3564385.
894,3564377
895,3564376
896,3564365
897,3564413.
898,3564434.
899,3564437.
900,3564456.

274,4952191.
790,4952181.
712,4952180.

.786,4952140.

688,4952140.
386,4952176.
348,4952176.
423,4952176.
346,4952176.

.059,4952200.
.947,4952274.

413,4952348.
875,4952416.
714,4952476.
346,4952510.
364,4952534.
631,4952497.
320,4952460.
778,4952481.
527,4952519.
783,4952563.
544,4952571.
858,4952528.
491,4952491.
507,4952505.
404,4952531.
247,4952574.
041,4952582.
489,4952542,
752,4952500.
151,4952522.
697,4952552.
132,4952594.
857,4952603.
217,4952570.
655,4952525.
509,4952533.
589,4952577.
776,4952623.
026,4952629.
801,4952591.
376,4952547.
246,4952565.

.236,4952599.
.075,4952603.
.443,4952645.

730,4952657.
879,4952625.
968,4952619.
982,4952581.

054,1145.
898,1144.
865,1146.
870,1147
442,1145.
432,1151.
533,1152.
856,1149.
883,1148.
746,1149.
790,1148
968,1148.
324,1149.
532,1149.
505,1149.
315,1149.
432,1149.
980,1150.
593,1150.
752,1148.
942,1150.
299,1150.
136,1148.
623,11580.
058,1149.
795,1148.
178,115e0.
715,1149.
491,1148.
087,1149.
895,1149.
478,1148.
357,1149.
698,1149.
767,1148.
878,1149.
334,1149.
694,1147.
415,1149.
837,1149.
623,1147.
275,1149.
000,1149.
649,1147.
729,1147.
312,1149.
479,1149.
441,1147.
787,1147.
846,1149.

369, FOWS
348,CMP
000, CMP

.478,CMP

929,CMP
782,CMP
011,CMP
099, CMP
881,CMP
051,GS

.916,GS

873,GS
325,GS
663,GS
886,GS
978,GS
210,GS
126,GS
283,GS
891,GS
215,GS
357,GS
655,GS
088,GS
661,GS
419,GS
118,GS
829,GS
483,GS
523,GS
187,GS
385,GS
694,GS
463,GS
148,GS
307,GS
356,GS
888,GS
587,GS
451,GS
751,GS
215,GS
145,GS
577,GS
693,GS
304,GS
158,GS
549,GS
394,GS
097,GS

FL
TOP
TOP
FL
TOP
TOP
FL
FL



901,3564500.
902,3564478.
903,3564475.
904,3564451.
905,3564498.
906,3564528.
907,3564533.
908,3564564.
909,3564598.
910,3564573.
911, 3564566.
912,3564534.
913,3564559.
914,3564595.
915,3564606.
916,3564646.
917,3564654.
918,3564629.
919,3564617.
920,3564568.
921,3564602.
922,3564627.
923,3564639.
924,3564682.
925,3564704.
926,3564671.
927,3564656.
928,3564612.
929,3564651.
930,3564670.
931,3564682.
932,3564713.
933,3564773.
934,3564770.
935,3564768.
936,3564757.
937,3564823.
938,3564860.
939,3564893.
940,3564937.
941,3564923.
942,3564882.
943,3564841.
944,3568121.
945,3568121.
946,3568121.
947,3568121.
948,3568122.
949,3568121.
950,3568120.

204,4952605.
991,4952637.
221,4952642.
544,4952681.
714,4952709.
985,4952679.
680,4952674.
390,4952642.
197,4952687.
151,4952768.
871,4952713.
821,4952740.
484,4952789.
491,4952775.
463,4952770.
431,4952750.
679,4952812.
038,4952822.
818,4952827.
997,4952845.
917,4952903.
460,4952891.
779,4952885.
334,4952865.
214,4952924.
331,4952937.
855,4952943.
272,4952962.
640,4952999.
857,4952984.
664,4952975.
817,4952945.
750,4952965.
867,4952993.
489,4953010.
741,4953052.
233,4953065.
528,4953034.
170,4952998.
846,4953014.
181,4953063.
126,4953092.
409,4953120.
305,4957501.
530,4957497.
886,4957473.
984,4957471.
006,4957465.
046,4957456.
675,4957459.

710,1148.
231,1147.
531,1147.
435,1149.
956,1148.
353,1147.
550,1146.
883,1148.
904,1148.
457,1146.
083,1146.
843,1148.
997,1147.
818,1146.
725,1146.
408,1147.
451,1147.
991,1146.
045,1146.
548,1147.
194,1146.
009,1146.
.948,GS
794,1146.
977,1146.
564,1145.
195,1145.
269,1146.
017,1146.

437,1145

245,1145
083,1145

128,1145
418,1145

524,1145
885,1117

577,1117

878,GS
338,GS
100,GS
023,GS
582,GS
084,GS
962,GS
598,GS
292,GS
892,GS
755,GS
271,GS
852,GS
614,GS
396,GS
861,GS
214,GS
317,GS
113,GS
242,GS
812,GS
227,GS

997,GS
532,GS
955,GS
702,GS
731,GS
336,GS

.745,GS
.458,GS
819,1146.
120,1146.
270,1145.
915,1145.
600,1146.
.481,GS
.067,GS
410,1145.
012,1145.
857,1144.
996,1144.
.406,GS
.403,TB
485,1117.
.652,E0G
623,1117.
389,1115.
768,1114.
957,1114.

209,GS
221,GS
414,GS
191,GS
293,GS

146,GS
122,GS
852,GS
918,GS

815, EOG

564,TB
297, TOE
225, TOE
174,GS



951,3568120.
952,3568120.
953,3568120.
954,3568113.
955,3568118.

956,3568075

970,3568005

993,3568045

995, 3568055

434,4957451.
659,4957452.
452,4957446.
819,4957452.
642,4957412.

.603,4957411.
957,3568076.
958,3568076.
959,3568076.
960,3568076.
961,3568076.
962,3568076.
963,3568076.
964,3568075.
965,3568076.
966,3568075.
967,3568074.
968,3568006.
969,3568006.
.981,4957473.
971,3568006.
972,3568005.
973,3568005.
974,3568005.
975,3568005.
976,3568005.
977,3568005.
978,3568006.
979,3567983.
980,3567960.
981,3567960.
982,3567960.
983,3567960.
984,3567960.
985,3567960.
986,3567960.
987,3567961.
988,3567960.
989,3567959.
990,3568034.
991,3568034.
992,3568038.
.677,4957464.
994,3568054.
.094,4957461.
996,3568054.
997,3568051.
998,3568032.
999,3568031.

156,4957440.
592,4957449,
781,4957451.
696,4957454,
262,4957464.
282,4957459.
129,4957468.
972,4957471.
126,4957473.
036,4957495.
943,4957497.
079,4957499.
155,4957496.

004,4957471.
332,4957467.
268,4957463.
551,4957459.
781,4957455.
898,4957450.
837,4957451.
411,4957435.
673,4957435,
675,4957436.
140,4957446.
259,4957452.
089,4957451.
800,4957456.
857,4957463.
687,4957471.
055,4957473.
113,4957497.
872,4957499.
412,4957462.
108,4957455.
066,4957461.

587,4957465.

601,4957454.
633,4957445.
702,4957444.
490,4957405.

675,1116.
739,1116.
185,1116.
102,1116.
080,1116.
465,1115.
180,1114.
633,1114.
243,1114.
.758,TOE
.714,TOE
.451,GS

649,1113
078,1113
478,1113

016,1114.
961,1116.
759,1116.
910,1116.
869,1116.
305,1116.
961,1117.
386,1117.
733,1117.
563,1114.
263,1113.
447,1113.
.147,TOE
879,1114.
873,1114.
509,1113.
718,1115.
077,1116.
365,1116.
323,1116.
445,1116.
852,1114.
659,1114.
582,1117.
339,1118.
748,1118.
555,1117.
320,1113.
827,1113.
749,1112.
333,1113.
100,1113.
621,1112.
602,1112.
036,1112.
764,1113.
018,1113.

726,1113

559, FNL
422,78
487,GS
340, WL
483,GS
363,GS
335,GS
655, TB
516, FNL

SIGN

361,GS
594,T8B
809, E0G
919, EOG
723,TB
923,TB
122,E0G
150, E0G
006, TB
271,TOE
362,GS
191,GS

590, TB
283, FNL
747,GS
186,GS CROPLN
000, GS
037,GS
193,TB
524, FNL
004, TOE
424,TOE
972,TB
047,E0G
110, EOG
922,TB
220,GS
450,GS
551, TOE
645, TOE
755, TOE
922,GS
764,GS
799,GS
106, GS
403,GS CROPLN

1000, 3568052.401,4957389.397,1114.978,GS



1001,3567999.
1002,3567983.
1003,3567940.
1004,3567957.
1005, 3567965.
1006,3567972.
1007,3567977.
1008,3567994.
1009, 3567965.
1010,3567940.
1011,3567924.
1012,3567919.
1013,3567916.
1014,3567900.
1015,3567856.

1016, 3567868

1017,3567872.
1018,3567879.
1019,3567884.
1020,3567906.
1021,3567914.
1022,3567940.
1023,3567922.
1024,3567918.
1025,3567888.
1026,3567840.
1027,3567821.
1028,3567817.
1029,3567806.
1030,3567796.
1031,3567781.
1032,3567730.

1033,3567743

1034,3567751.
1035,3567768.
1036,3567774.
1037,3567793.
1038,3567769.
1039,3567728.
1040,3567716.
1041,3567706.
1042,3567694.
1043,3567678.
1044,3567644.
1045,3567620.
1046, 3567660.
1047,3567668.

1048,3567683

1049,3567699.
1050,3567740.

660,4957407
863,4957411
858,4957393
652,4957374
800,4957366
391,4957358
192,4957351
342,4957331
669,4957290
019,4957317
069,4957339

606,4957345.
129,4957350.
823,4957369.
463,4957356.
.439,4957329.
959,4957320.
856,4957302.
625,4957286.
204,4957282.
959,4957245.
778,4957253.
057,4957278.
036,4957289.
406,4957264.
324,4957249.
848,4957280.
072,4957286.
199,4957301.
900,4957316.
789,4957339.
765,4957321.
.411,4957296.
861,4957286.
549,4957260.
130,4957253.
518,4957229.
637,4957182.
998,4957195.
269,4957202.
287,4957208.
791,4957214.
052,4957222.
151,4957241.
171,4957178.
329,4957167.
517,4957164.
.941,4957159.
784,4957153.
966,4957128.

.410,1113.
.226,1114.
.718,1115.
.721,1114.
.946,1113.
.134,1113.
.785,1114.

.168,1115

318,1115

392,1115

647,GS
761,GS
675,GS
248,GS
301,GS
676,GS
275,GS

.079,GS
.623,1115.
.565,1115.
.650,1113.
885,1113.
840,1114.
842,1116.
069, 1116.
585,1114.
570,1114.
939,1115.
314,1115.

360,GS
094,GS
939,GS
656,GS
508,GS
241,GS
980, GS
661,GS
258,GS
372,GS
568,GS

.657,GS
486,1116.
.586,GS
261,1115.
834,1115.
207,1115.
555,1116.
078,1115.
967,1115.
715,1115.
190,1116.
603,1118.
142,1118.
810,1117.
705,1116.
953,1115.
972,1115.
662,1116.
939,1118.
220,1116.
220,1116.
086,1115.
671,1116.
977,1117.
485,1118.
627,1117.
354,1116.
703,1116.
646,1116.
883,1116.
703,1119.

007,GS

566, GS
441,GS
931,GS
119,GS
565,GS
128,GS
003,GS
927,GS
410,GS
757,GS
564,GS
657,GS
386,GS
613,GS
428,GS
238,GS
960, GS
139,GS
866,GS
236,GS
080,GS
030,G6S
980,GS
968, GS
323,GS
087,GS
932,GS
844,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN



1051,3567732.
1052,3567704.
1053,3567680.
1054,3567668.
1055,3567653.
1056,3567605.
1057,3567596.
1058,3567647.
1059, 3567663.
1060,3567671.
1061,3567712.
1062,3567702.
1063,3567655.

1064, 3567643

1065,3567596.
1066,3567559.
1067,3567594.
1068,3567601.
1069,3567608.
1070,3567623.
1071,3567665.
1072,3567631.
1073,3567587.
1074,3567574.
1075,3567569.
1076,3567559.
1077,3567515.
1078,3567474.
1079,3567509.
1080,3567517.
1081,3567529.
1082,3567546.
1083,3567566.
1084,3567525.
1085,3567498.
1086,3567483.
1087,3567475.
1088,3567458.
1089,3567452.
1090,3567422.
1091, 3567384.
1092,3567412.

1093, 3567435

1094,3567441.
1095,3567461.
1096,3567487.
1097,3567446.
1098,3567418.
1099,3567406.
1100,3567393,

678,4957076.
133,4957076.
742,4957076.
871,4957078.
754,4957079.

689,4957083
724,4957033

978,4957022.
338,4957019.
357,4957016.
577,4956997.
364,4956944.
233,4956962.
.016,4956969.
103,4956990.
464,4956946.
353,4956921.
547,4956915.
190,4956909 .
312,4956897.
680,4956867.
777,4956822.
864,4956854.
591,4956865.
769,4956869.
086,4956880.
272,4956914.
076,4956866.
538,4956832.
035,4956825.

090,4956813

975,4956796.
622,4956772.
448,4956721.
080,4956746.
659,4956759.

679,4956765

546,4956777.
232,4956781.
129,4956804.
507,4956757.
032,4956734.
.190,4956715.
994,4956711.
788,4956696.
182,4956678.
510,4956630.
042,4956652.
696,4956661.
969,4956673.

207,1120.
012,1119.
772,1117.
084,1116.
437,1117.
.754,1118.
.794,1118.
999,1118.
222,1117.
390,1117.
614,1120.
354,1120.
251,1118.
167,1117.
296,1119.
493,1119.
315,1119.
.433,GS
.458,GS
906,1119.
591,1120.
766,1121.
759,1119.
353,1119.
201,1118.
058,1119.
976,1120.
498,1120.
625,1120.
395,1119.
.058,1119.
626,1121.
748,1121.
866,1122.
865,1121.
139,1120.
.669,1120.
353,1121.
.883,GS
180,1121.
226,1121.
777,1121.
821,1120.

085,1118
672,1118

252,1120

046,1120

893,GS
384,G6S
480,GS
921,GS
398,G6S
203,GS
719,GS
273,GS
665,GS
612,GS
635,GS
073,GS
281,GS
922,GS
117,GS
788,GS
371,GS

236,GS
653,GS
236,GS
601,GS
021,GS
983,GS
932,GS
185,GS
674,GS
564,GS
780,GS
639,GS
232,GS
983,GS
480,GS
639,GS
213,GS
145,GS
121,GS

113,GS
585, GS
072,GS
593,GS

.642,GS
013,1122.
724,1122.
769,1122.
376,1122.
874,1121.
089,1120.

343,G6S
672,GS
740,GS
207,GS
104,GS
726,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN



1101,3567374
1102,3567339
1103,3567280
1104,3567300
1105,3567304
1106,3567307
1107,3567317
1108,3567341
1109,3567288
1110,3567272
1111,3567265
1112,3567263
1113,3567256
1114,3567233
1115,3567178
1116,3567181
1117,3567182
1118,3567184
1119,3567188
1120,3567199
1121,3567144
1122,3567114
1123,3567105
1124,3567096
1125,3567088
1126,3567081
1127,3567053
1128,3566987
1129,3567015
1130,3567022
1131,3567028
1132,3567034
1133,3567046
1134,3567056
1135,3567077
1136,3567036
1137,3567013
1138,3567002
1139,3566993
1140,3566980
1141,3566969
1142,3566942
1143,3566892
1144,3566917
1145,3566926
1146,3566936
1147,3566949
1148,3566956
1149,3566974
1150,3566881

.711,4956687.
.950,4956709.

.867,4956657

.087,4956618.
.444,4956607 .
.319,4956599.

.935,4956579

.754,4956546.
.666,4956530.
.933,4956562.
.518,4956577.
.307,4956582.
.227,4956598.
.682,4956627.

.037,4956619
.714,4956585

.959,4956575.
.760,4956563.

.031,4956543

.629,4956504 .
.773,4956472.
.186,4956518.
.188,4956530.
.576,4956541.

.620,4956553
.102,4956565

.196,4956599.

.307,4956543
.561,4956515

.883,4956508.
.845,4956502.
.790,4956496.

.247,4956483

.613,4956471.
.824,4956452.
.293,4956408.
.785,4956429.
.246,4956438.
.393,4956445.
.412,4956457.
.277,4956469.
.156,4956493.

.175,4956443
.582,4956418

.258,4956373
.013,4956353

.062,4956379.

347,1121.
204,1121.
.490,1122.
759,1122.
520,1121.
983,1121.
.450,1122.
921,1123.
753,1123.

548,1123

732,GS
884,GS
579,GS
106,GS
409,GS
508, GS
761,GS
019,GS
318,GS

.024,GS
993,1121.
251,1121.
737,1122.
654,1123.
.750,1124.
.068,1123.
787,1123.
045,1122.
.875,1123.
536,1123.
885,1124.
572,1123.
830,1123.
600,1123.
.056,1124.
.068,1124.
114,1126.
.035,1125.
.033,1124.
136,1124.
599,1123.
476,1123.
.066,1123.
565,1124.
916,1125.
623,1126.
113,1125.
275,1124.
343,1123.
509,1124.
196,1124.
107,1125.
.669,1126.
.620,1125
.640,4956409.
.386,4956398.
.964,4956381.

688,GS
625,GS
501,GS
301,GS
448,GS
405, GS
170,GS
280,GS
138,GS
395,GS
359,GS
818,GS
077,GS
033,GS
150,GS
727,GS
410,GS
735,GS
671,GS
410,GS
542,GS
633,GS
987,GS
669,GS
208,GS
392,GS
593,GS
735,GS
856,GS
150,GS
749,GS
781,GS
684,GS

.328,GS
045,1124.
259,1124.
946,1124.
.834,1125.
.793,1126
061,1126.

871,GS
486,GS
902,GS
831,GS

.439,GS

028,GS

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN

CROPLN



1151,3566984.

1152,3567045

1153,3567119.
1154,3567216.
1155,3567259.

1156,3567301

1157,3567358.
1158,3567406.
1159,3567460.
1160,3567514.
1161,3567556.
1162,3567590.
1163,3567617.
1164,3567631.
1165,3567640.
1166,3567651.
1167,3567664.
1168,3567681.
1169,3567705.
1170,3567743.
1171,3567777.
1172,3567825.
1173,3567862.
1174,3567911.
1175,3565679.
1176,3565702.
1177,3565715.

1178,3565743

1179,3565783.
1180,3565829.
1181,3565872.
1182,3565912.
1183,3565912.
1184,3565961.
1185,3566011.

1186,3566057
1187,3566055

1188,3566006.
1189,3565998.
1190,3566059.
1191,3566056.
1192,3566059.

1193,3566057

1194,3566056.
1195,3566010.
1196,3566011.
1197,3566013.
1198,3565961.

1199,3565959

1200,3565957.

355,4956485.
.890,4956541.
578,4956578.
344,4956590.
975,4956601.
.514,4956620.
241,4956672.
436,4956729.
693,4956792.
283,4956852.
238,4956894.

758,4956933

324,4956977.
885,4957027.
046,4957081.

368,4957135

857,4957188.
985,4957234.
229,4957270.
266,4957299.
726,4957314.
209,4957325.
150,4957328.
232,4957337.
700,4952300.
926,4952298.
169,4952299.
.617,4952288.
581,4952262.
504,4952228.

322,4952193

543,4952196.
879,4952246.
264,4952246.
139,4952246.
.324,4952246.
.946,4952190.
612,4952189.
369,4952170.
756,4952171.
384,4952166.
067,4952130.
.726,4952082.
827,4952031.
514,4952031.
226,4952081.
108,4952131.
902,4952133.
.617,4952080.
633,4952030.

515,1124.
374,1124.
963,1124.
164,1122.
069,1122.
545,1122.
273,1121.
846,1121.
991,1120.
854,1120.
828,1119.
.953,1119.
023,1118.
547,1118.
574,1118.
.355,1117.
565,1116.
156,1117.
772,1117.
374,1117.
159,1117.
207,1116.
560,1114.
.782,GS
354,1148.
909,1148.
010,1144.

593,1113

790,1145

295,1153

701,1154.

094,1155

658,GS
702,GS
292,GS
906,GS
386,GS
149,GS
831,GS
132,GS
887,GS
498,GS
795,GS
386,GS
826,GS
318,GS
015,GS
239,GS
753,GS
294,GS
327,GS
568,GS
311,GS
461,GS
932,GS

309,GS
428,GS
308,GS

.785,GS
767,1146.
253,1147.
.382,1148.
071,1148.
199,1148.
341,1149.
303,1150.
700,1151.
051,1151.
345,11580.
307,1151.
.084,GS
017,FNL LONE COR PST
.644,GS
205,1156.
098,1156.
918,1154.
932,1152.
952,1152.
255,1150.
469,1151.
411,1152.

422,GS
133,GS
109,GS
666, GS
133,GS
012,GS
182,GS
442,GS
829,GS
460, GS
371,GS

134,GS
649,GS
030,GS
814,GS
193,GS
658,GS
122,GS
864,GS

CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE

CROP LN
CROP LN

CROP LN
CROP LN
CROP LN



1201, 3565908.
1202,3565858.
1203,3565650.
1204,3565656.
1205,3565665.
1206,3565694.
1207,3565721.
1208,3565768.
1209,3565814.
1210,3565861.
1211,3565912.
1212,3565080.
1213,3565067.
1214,3565946.
1215,3565045.
1216,3565028.
1217,3564660.
1218,3564594.
1219,3564632.
1220,3568044.
1221,3567953.
1222,3567870.

©32,4952034.
117,4952036.

433,1152.782,GS
262,1152.311,GS
690,4955302.040,1135.672,FL
630,4955296.684,1138.735,GS
135,4955297.461,1142.804,GS
552,4955303.919,1142.376,GS
154,4955306.800,1138.605,GS
278,4955313.526,1137.883,GS
892,4955319.336,1137.215,GS
075,4955325.857,1136.748,GS TILE LOCATE
722,4955333.062,1136.375,GS TILE LOCATE
497,4953981.099,1137.177,TOP ATT FIBER
497,4953973.226,1143.196,GS FIBER OPTIC
684,4955338.374,1136.128,GS TILE LOCATE
589,4953957.133,1143.686,GS FIBER OPTIC
947,4953944.198,1144,.252,GS FIBER OPTIC
519,4953015.485,1141.415,FL CLAYTILE STARTEXPLOR
591,4952766.471,1142.756,TOP CLAYTILE ENDEXPLOR
895,4952868.929,1143.130,FL 4"CLAY LAT
907,4957462.085,1114.446,TOP WIER@ROAD
608,4957338.839,1114.790,HUB 47+00RT
337,4957280.275,1116.102,HUB 48+00RT
1223,3567792.892,4957226.941,1116.969,HUB 49+00RT
1224,3568324.845,4957460.291,1122,748,CPT PAVENAIL

1224 _GNSS,3568324.845,4957460.291,1122.748,Base Setup
1225,3568010.724,4957439.699,1108.252,FL 2.5"WL
1226,3568016.517,4957439.851,1107.681,top 2.5" water main
1227,3568043.494,4957458.568,1111.351,top 30" hdpe
1228,3568027.595,4957448.519,1111.192,top 30" hdpe
1229,3568011.644,4957437.673,1111.194,top 30" hdpe

6"CLAY INTK
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE
TILE LOCATE

1230,3568043
1231, 3567995

1232,3567994.
1233,3568044.
1234,3567977.
1235,3567683.
1236,3567683.
1237, 3568011.
1238,3567961.
1239,3567945.
1240,3567896.
1241,3567880.

1242,3567863

1243,3567847.
1244,3567830.
1245,3567813.
1246,3567797.
1247,3567780.

1248,3567763

1249,3567746.

.779,4957458.
.396,4957426.
337,4957425.
751,4957459.
981,4957414.
566,4957208.
566,4957208.
.673,1108.400,f1
710,4957402.
.036,1111.368,top
588,4957359.
029,4957348.
.789,4957336.
210,4957325,
579,4957314.
940,4957304.

644,4957437

868,4957393

013,4957293

582,1111.298, top
288,1111.214, top
469,1108.261, f1
440,1108.576, f1
193,1108.255, f1
839,1111.194,Cog
839,1109.200, f1

892,1108.466,f1

452,1111.537,top
367,1111.487,top
906,1111.457, top
911,1111.504, top
959,1111.649, top
206,1111.554, top

.754,1111.635, top
142,4957283.
.357,4957272.
774,4957261.

338,1111.678, top
745,1111.657, top
814,1111.703, top

30" hdpe
30" hdpe
30" hdpe
30" hdpe
30" hdpe
o
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"
30"

hdpe calc
hdpe calc
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe



1250,3567731.
1251,3567716.
1252,3567703.
1253,3567701.
1254,3567701.
1255,3567690.
1256,3567679.
1257,3567669.
1258,3567661.
1259,3567655.
1260,3567649.
1261,3567644.
1262,3567640.
1263,3567634.
1264,3567627.
1265,3567621.

1266,3567613

1267,3567606.
1268,3567600.

1269, 3567593
1270,3567583

1290,3567305

1291,3567287.
1292,3567269.
1293,3567252.
1294,3567234.
1295,3567216.
1296,3567198.
1297,35671890.
1298,3567162.
1299,3567144.

129,4957249.
272,4957236.
124,4957221.
329,4957218.
190,4957218.
298,4957203.
482,4957187.
415,49571790.
575,4957152.
288,4957133.
139,4957114.
878,4957095.
233,4957076.
164,4957057.
732,4957039.
137,4957020.
.920,4957002.
882,4956984.
532,4956965.
.074,4956947 .
.307,4956930.
1271,3567572.
1272,3567561.
1273,3567548.
1274,3567534.
1275,3567521.
1276,3567508.
1277,3567494.
1278,3567481.
1279,3567467.
1280,3567454.
1281,3567440.
1282,3567426.
1283,3567411.
1284,3567397.
1285,3567382.
1286,3567368.
1287,3567352.
1288,3567336.
1289,3567321.

531,4956913

623,4956825

704,4956603

356,1111.
100,1111.
.847,top
274,1111.
118,1111.
510,1111.
106,1111.
176,1111.
088,1111.
405,1111.
786,1111.
667,1111.
504,1112.
798,1112.
151,1112.
705,1112.
435,1112.
086,1112.
512,1112.
285,1112.
174,1112.
.491,1113
031,4956897.
204,4956882.
505,4956868.
600,4956854.
107,4956839.
.395,1113
047,4956811.
701,4956796.
767,4956781.
552,4956768.
263,4956754.
781,4956741.
104,4956728.
637,4956715.
054,4956702.
329,4956690.
775,4956678.
258,4956667 .
.099,4956656.
365,4956646.
889,4956637.
451,4956628.
657,4956619.
899,4956611.
.893,1115
612,4956596.
409,4956588.
082,4956581.

047,1111

685,1113
848,1113

573,1113

071,1115
348,1115

159,1115

773,1115
446,1115

715, top
715,top

761, top
372,top
293, top
419, top
601, top
745, top
763, top
900, top
968, top
1e8, top
188, top
373, top
466, top
530, top
609, top
664,top
744,top
939, top

.191, top
.243,top
.492,top
940,1113.
557,1113.

520, top
555, top

.775,top
.881, top
088,1113.
800,1114.
997,1114.
379,1114.
792,1114.
704,1114.
655,1114.
445,1114.
099,1114.
280,1114.
391,1114.

992, top
077,top
150, top
309, top
378, top
460, top
574,top
757,top
772,top
823, top
998, top

.095,top
.227,top
046,1115.

305, top

.450,top
354,1115.

541, top

.662,top
.764,top
.753,top
346,1116.
979,1116.
892,1116.

001, top
181, top
212, top

30"
30"
30"
30"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe end
hdpe reducer
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe



24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"

1300,3567125.
1301,3567107.

661,4956575.050,1116.
526,4956567.549,1116.
1302,3567089.564,4956559.491,1116.
1303,3567072.259,4956550.171,1116.
1304,3567055.414,4956539.940,1116.
1305,3567039.273,4956528.770,1116.
1306,3567023.577,4956516.975,1116.
1307,3567008.347,4956504.389,1117.

390,top
520,top
520,top
690, top
772,top
851, top
938, top
033, top

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe

1308,3566993.
1309, 3566979.
1310,3566965.
1311,3566952.
1312,3566937.
.876,4956422
785,4956408.
934,4956394.
921,4956380.
157,4956366.
317,4956352.
362,4956338.
046,4956325.
135,4956312.
904,4956300.
123,4956288.
437,4956276.
878,4956264.
.624,4956252
1327,3566718.

1313,3566923

1314,3566909.
1315,3566895.
1316,3566881.
1317,3566868.
1318,3566854.
1319,3566840.
1320,3566826.
1321,3566811.
1322,3566795.
1323,3566780.
1324,3566764.
1325,3566748.

1326,3566733

1328,3566703

1329,3566688.
1330,3566673.
1331,3566658.

1332,3566643

1333,3566628.
1334,3566614.
1335,3566600.
1336,3566587.
1337,3566575.
1338,3566564.
1339, 3566554.
.972,4956054.
833,4956037.
909,4956018.
840,4956000.
323,4955981.
528,4955962.
.024,1121.
.724,1121.

1340,3566545

1341,3566537.
1342,3566529.
1343,3566522.
1344,3566517.
1345,3566512.
1346,3566508.
.082,4955923
017,4955904 .
288,4955885.

1347, 3566505

1348,3566501.
1349,3566496.

924,4956490.
720,4956477.
679,4956463.
300,4956449.
.858,1117.
.058,1117

928,4956435

994,4956072

725,4955943

960,1117.
476,1117.
596,1117.
535,1117.

401,1117.
502,1117.
520,1118.
671,1118.
850,1118.
971,1118.
517,1118
751,1118.
150,1118.
680,1118.
815,1118.
770,1119.

.431,1119.
474,4956240.
.484,4956227.
371,4956214.
306,4956202.
214,4956189.
.197,4956176.
330,4956164.
190,4956150.
243,4956136.
378,4956121.
314,4956106.
818,4956089.
.432,1120.

019,1119.
234,1119.
635,1119
145,1119.
476,1119.
918,1119.
144,1119.
501,1119.
576,1120.
679,1120.
046,1120.
540,1120.

835,1120.
037,1120.
861,1120.
464,1121.
492,1121.
410,1121.

448,1121.
355,1121.

171,top
300,top
426, top
461, top
606, top

.665,top

803, top
869, top
017, top
070, top
243 ,top
395,top

.465, top

609, top
655, top
778, top
852, top
047,top
125,top
221,top
313,top

.470,top

520, top
633,top
719,top
840, top
963, top
063, top
251, top
266,top
412,top
489, top
629, top
714,top
855, top
023,top
043, top
118, top
204,top
358, top
526,top
573, top

24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
hdpe tile
hdpe tile
hdpe tile
hdpe tile
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe
24" hdpe



1350, 3566490
1351, 3566483
1352,3566475
1353,3566466
1354,3566456
1355, 3566446
1356,3566436
1357,3566425
1358,3566413
1359, 3566402
1360,3566391
1361,3566381
1362,3566370
1363,3566360
1364,3566349
1365,3566338
1366,3566327
1367,3566316
1368,3566305
1369, 3566294
1370, 3566283
1371, 3566272
1372,3566259
1373,3566247
1374,3566234
1375,3566220
1376,3566207
1377,3566192
1378,3566176
1379, 3566159
1380,3566141
1381,3566122
1382,3566104
1383, 3566085
1384,3566066
1385,3566047
1386,3566027
1387,3566009
1388,3565990
1389,3565971
1390, 3565952
1391,3565934
1392,3565915
1393,3565896
1394, 3565877
1395,3565858
1396, 3565838
1397,3565819
1398,3565800
1399,3565781

.492,4955866.
.336,4955848.
.192,4955830.
.006,4955812.

.238,4955795

.317,4955778.
.030,4955762.

.121,4955745
.754,4955729

.559,4955713.
.591,4955697.
.©35,4955680.
.710,4955664 .
.104,4955647 .
.212,4955631.
.507,4955614.
.514,4955598.
.523,4955582.

.532,4955565

.577,4955549.
.687,4955533.
.008,4955517.
.754,4955501.
.179,4955486.
.150,4955471.
.516,4955457.

.071,4955443

.381,4955430.
.318,4955418.
.431,4955408.
.147,4955400.
.799,4955393.

.111,4955387

.132,4955382.
.117,4955377.
.964,4955372.
.916,4955368.
.002,4955362.
.101,4955356.
.602,4955350.
.935,4955344.
.301,4955338.
.373,4955333.

.198,4955328
.268,4955323
.251,4955318

.995,4955314.
.843,4955310.
.579,4955306.
.031,4955303.

542,1121.
124,1121.
255,1121.
911,1121.
.845,1122.
910,1122.
162,1122.
.779,1122.
.701,1122.
549,1122.
297,1122.
770,1122.
019,1122.
457,1123.
176,1123.
679,1123.

397,1123

616, top
759, top
877,top
977,top
075, top
136, top
320, top
402, top
535,top
692,top
727,top
876, top
974,top
029, top
104, top
325, top

.465, top
137,1123.
.866,1123.
548,1123.
176,1123.
405,1124.
883,1124,
677,1124.
933,1124.
744,1124.
.467,1124.,
330,1124.
898,1124.
764,1124.
952,1124.
697,1125.
.653,1125.
508,1125.
481,1125.
857,1125.
284,1125.
812,1125.
968,1125.
588,1125.
502,1126.
525,1126.
285,1126.
.696,1126.
.687,1126.
.975,1126.
614,1126.
248,1126.
529,1126.
936,1126.

571, top
652, top
820, top
930, top
041, top
104, top
260, top
358, top
507,top
569, top
603, top
780, top
801, top
959, top
066, top
174,top
265,top
353, top
441,top
589, top
716,top
851, top
994, top
110, top
246,top
265, top
301, top
474 ,top
581, top
641,top
732,top
871, top
929, top

24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe



1400,3565761.
1401,3565741.
1402,3565722.
1403,3565657.
1404,3565644.
1405,3565625.
1406,3565612.
1407,3565593.
1408,3565575.
1409, 3565558.
1410,3565540.
1411,3565523.
1412,3565507.
1413,3565492.
1414,3565477.
1415,3565463.
1416,3565449.
1417,3565438.
1418,3565426.
1419,3565416.
1420,3565406.
1421,3565396.
1422,3565388.
1423,3565380.
1424,3565371.
1425,3565362.
1426,3565354.
1427,3565345.
1428,3565336.
1429,3565328.
1430,3565320.
1431,3565313.
1432,3565305.

1433,3565297

1443,3565239

1444,3565237.
1445,3565236.
1446,3565235.
1447,3565234.

1448,3565233

1449,3565233.

404,4955302.
834,4955300.
209,4955299.
581,4955295.
574,4955293.
018,4955289.
548,4955286.
973,4955280.
872,4955272.
169,4955263.
799,4955254,
889,4955244.
517,4955233.
109,4955220.
407,4955207.
343,4955194.
930,4955179.
236,4955163.
.859,1129.
279,4955131.
047,4955114.
769,4955097.
313,4955079.
173,4955061.
499,4955043.
465,4955026.
.510,1130.
345,4954990.
.223,1130.
386,4954955.
650,4954937.
258,4954919.
230,4954901.
.117,4954883
1434,3565289.
1435,3565282.
1436,3565276.
1437,3565269.
1438,3565263.
1439,3565257.
1440,3565251.
1441,3565246.
1442,3565241.

810,4955147

192,4955008

850,4954973

391,4954865

947,4954753

882,4954715

518,1127
828,1127.
231,1127.
646,1127.
945,1127.
902,1127.
750,1127.
248,1127.
338,1128.
550,1128.
353,1128.
182,1128.
231,1128
977,1128.
973,1128.
181,1128.
735,1128.
741,1129.

245,1129.
456,1129
167,1129.
370,1129.
446,1129.
826,1129.
332,1129.

966,1130.

596,1130.
550,1130.
325,1130.
318,1130.

.457,1130.
.332,1131.
262,4954847.
194,4954828.
889,4954809.
993,4954791.
770,4954772.

130,1131.
929,1131.
833,1131.
097,1131.
563,1131.

.800,1131.
334,4954734.
.676,1131.
.495,4954696.
535,4954676.
174,4954656.
030,4954637.
113,4954617.
.147,4954597.
583,4954578.

967,1131.

027,1131.
470,1132.
905,1132.
283,1132.
614,1132.
973,1132.
211,1132.

.069, top

221,top
325,top
372,top
680,top
749, top
876,top
987, top
103, top
199, top
271,top
521,top

.497,top

624, top
763, top
859, top
944, top
080, top
209, top
331,top

.475,top

532, top
654,top
785, top
847,top
865, top
093, top
034,top
278,top
368, top
511, top
615, top
760, top
897, top
022, top
002, top
197, top
317, top
393,top
568, top
614,top
720,top
851, top
947, top
017,top
156, top
260, top
238, top
386, top
541, top

24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe3
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe



1450,3565233.
1451,3565234.
1452,3565234.
1453,3565235.
1454,3565234.
1455,3565234.
1456,3565234.
1457,3565232.
1458,3565230.
1459,3565225.
1460,3565218.
1461,3565209.
1462,3565201.
1463,3565192.
1464,3565183.
1465,3565175.
1466,3565167.
1467,3565159.
1468,3565150.
1469,3565142.
1470,3565133.
1471,3565132.
1472,3565132.
1473,3565124.

1474,3565115

1475,3565108.
1476,3565101.
1477,3565094.
1478,3565089.
1479,3565084.
1480,3565080.
1481,3565076.
1482,3565073.
1483,3565069.
1484,3565031.
1485,3565021.
1486,3565011.
1487,3565000.
1488,3564989.
1489,3564978.
1490,3564967.
1491, 3564956.

1492,3564945

1493,3564935.
1494,3564925.

1495,3564915

1496,3564905.

1497,3564895

1498,3564885.
1499, 3564875.

938,4954558.
219,4954538.
672,4954519.

048,4954499

372,4954382

194,4954328

766,4954310.
937,4954293.
604,4954275.
309,4954257.
577,4954239.
756,4954221.
315,4954204.
444,4954186.
699,4954185.
526,4954184.
118,4954168.
.462,4954150.
100,4954131.

069,4954113

651,4954094.
026,4954076.
224,4954057.
288,4954037.
627,4954018.
078,4953999,
221,4953979.
759,4953848.
516,4953831.
088,4953814.

781,4953798

900,4953781.
781,4953765.
527,4953749.
514,4953732.
.896,4953716.
576,4953699.
807,4953682.
.808,4953665.
593,4953648.
.712,4953631.
540,4953614.
250,4953598.

586,1132.
980,1132.
462,1132.
.619,1133
711,4954479.
573,4954460.
001,4954440.
512,4954421.
278,4954401.

936,1133

786,1135

689,1137

715,top
755,top
838, top

.029,top
.147,top
266,1133,
713,1133.
146,1133.
480,1133.
.491,1133
414,4954364.
644,4954346.

210,top
360, top
431, top
541, top

.680, top
362,1133.
192,1133.
.444,1133,
747,1134.
183,1134.
396,1134.
439,1134.,
405,1134.
806,1134.
032,1134.
468,1134.
333,1134.
947,1134.
393,1134.
117,1134.
781,1134.
.461,1134.
955,1134.
134,1134.
069,1135.

846,top
935, top
979, top
174,top
233,top
277,top
412,top
528, top
676,top
803,top
833,top
931, top
398, top
332,top
554,top
605, top
745,top
875, top
951, top
035, top

.190, top
522,1135.
249,1135.
912,1135.
079,1136.
251,1136.
660,1136.
.089,1136.
550,1136.
378,1136.
337,1136.
835,1136.
387,1136.
.081, TOP
607,1137.
690,1137.
864,1137.
863,1137.
961,1137.
420,1137.

273,top
375,top
461, top
099, TOP
172, TOP
217,TOP
459, TOP
538, TOP
650, TOP
800, TOP
899, TOP
949, TOP

046, TOP
329,TOP
377,TOP
603, TOP
616,TOP
653,TOP

24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
24"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe

hdpe end
reducer
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18"HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18" HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE

hdpe end 24"



1500,3564865.
1501, 3564854,
1502,3564843.
1503,3564833.
1504,3564822.
1505, 3564810.
1506,3564799.
1507,3564760.
1508,3564746.
1509, 3564708.
1510,3564698.
1511,3564698.
1512,3564697.
1513,3564696.
1514,3564681.
1515,3564681.
1516,3564679.
1517,3564678.
1518,3564677.
1519,3564675.
1520,3564672.
1521,3564670.
1522,3564664.
1523,3564657.
1524,3564654.
1525,3564651.
1526,3564649.
1527,3564646.
1528,3564641.
1529,3564635.
1530,3564629.
1531,3564624.
1532,3564618.
1533,3564612.
1534,3564606.
1535, 3564597.
1536,3564587.

1537,3564523

1538,3564508.
1539,3564476.
1540,3564458.
1541, 3564440.
1542,3564421.
1543,3564402.
1544,3564383.

1545, 3564363

1546,3564344.
1547,3564186.
1548,3564147.
1549,3564128.

229,4953581.
656,4953564.
911,4953548.
180,4953531.
154,4953515.
787,4953499,
004,4953483.
060,4953439.
422,4953425.
938,4953379.
286,4953363.
318,4953364.
075,4953362.
071,4953360.
915,4953261.
175,4953241.
704,4953201.
792,4953181.
306,4953161.
107,4953141.
486,4953121.
033,4953101.
692,4953062.
043,4953002.
580,4952982.
368,4952962.
042,4952942.
233,4952923.
503,4952903.
767,4952884.
779,4952864.
517,4952845.
534,4952826.
929,4952807.
163,4952788.
180,4952770.
621,4952752.
.967,4952675
857,4952661.
140,4952638.
568,4952628.
389,4952619.
694,4952612.
647,4952605.
501,4952600.
.911,4952595
208,4952592.
964,4952560.
828,4952552.
270,4952548.

391,1137.
928,1137.
305,1137.
768,1138.
560,1138.
541,1138.
549,1138.
305,1139.
527,1139.
879,1139.
617,1139.
294,1139.
641,1139.
950,1138.
645,1139.
674,1139.
605,1139.
647,1139.
676,1139.
773,1139.
796,1139.
942,11490.
259,1140.
582,1140.
636,1140.
867,1140.
967,11490.
004,1140.
488,1141.
398,1141.
998,1141.
654,1141.
575,1141.
200,1141.
222,1141.
164,1141.
554,1141.
.013,1142.
746,1142.
270,1142.
211,1142.
636,1142.
441,1142.
880,1142.
168,1142.
.770,1142.
184,1142.
988,1143.
732,1143.
351,1143.

831,TOP
998, TOP
988, TOP
218,T0P
208, TOP
314,TOP
535, TOP
104, top
226,top
394,top
449,top
439,top

372,tqp
336,tqgp
558, tqp
639, tqgp
607,top
774,top
930, top
053, top
207,top
474 ,top
600, top
726,top
796,top
917,top
054, top
144, top
245,top
308, top
430, top
530, top
658, top
770,top
899, top
342,top
440,top
436,top
482,top
526,top
590, top
651, top
621,top
744 ,top
800, top
327,top
394,top
514,top

18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18"HDPE
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18"

g"
g"
g"
g
g"
g"
g
g"
g"
g"
g"
g
g"
g"
g"
g"
g
g"
g"
g"
g"
g"
g"
g"
g"
g
g"
g"
g"
g"
g
g
g
g"
g"
g"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe

hdpe end 9
493,c]1 18x18x18 tee
562,8" reducer begin 8" hdpe



1550,3564108.
1551,3564088.
1552,3564082.
1553,3565415.
1554,3565736.
1555,3565753.
1556,3565770.
1557,3565787.
1558,3565804.
1559,3565835.
1560,3565856.
.808,4952248
1601,3567427.

1600, 3565807

1602,3566197
2500, 3564699
2501,3564713

2502,3564728.

2503,3564758

2504,3564789.
2505,3564805.
2506,3564821.
2507,3564837.
2508,3564837.
2509,3564852.

2510, 3564867

2511,3564883.
2512,3564897.
2513,3564911.
2514,3564925.
2515,3564939.
2516,3564952.
2517,3564964.
2518,3564976.
2519,3564989.
2520,3565002.

2521,3565015
2522,3565028

2527,3565085

2528,3565096.
2529,3565130.
2530,3565143.

2531,3565155
2532,3565167
2533,3565179

2534,3565191.

2535,3565203

584,4952544
851,4952541
753,4952540
217,4955129
220,4952286
873,4952277
917,4952267
791,4952256
097,4952245

090,4952220.

756,4952205

049,4956840.
.695,4955383,
.002,4953361.
.412,4953349.
528,4953336.
.630,4953311.
851,4953287.

575,4953275
505,4953263

203,4953252.
434,4953252,
383,4953240.
.784,4953227.
382,4953214.
338,4953201.

209,4953187
586,4953173

305,4953159.
174,4953144.
614,4953129.
998,4953114.
965,4953099.
452,4953084.
.660,4953069
.336,4953054.
2523,3565040.
2524,3565052.
2525,3565064 .
2526,3565075.

017,4953038

732,4953023.

350,4953008

523,4952991.
.943,4952976.
996,4952958.
592,4952911.

183,4952895

.620,4952880.
.472,4952864.
.148,4952848.
464,4952833.
.706,4952818

.455,1143.
.668,top 8" hdpe end 8"
.896,1144.
.994,1129.
.916,1141.
.789,1141.
.511,1141.
.978,1141.
.715,1141.
708,1141.
.916,1141.
.941,1142.
932,1111.
240,1135.
199,1139.
284,1139.
855,1139.
469,1139.
551,1139.
.735,1139.
.920,1139.
498,1139.
618,1139.
408,1139.
299,1139.
724,1139,
123,1139.
.146,1139,
.754,1139,
532,1139.
75,1139,
339,1139.
403,1139.
369,1139.
239,1139.
.672,1139.
599,1139.
.830,1139.
808,1139.
.046,1139,
803,1139.
.792,top
864,1139.
017,1139.
.606,1139.
135,1139.
468,1140.
754,1140.
394,1140.
.060, top

.404,1143

185,1139

.022,1140

609, top 8" hdpe

544,top 8" clay
080, lateralconnection

034,top
109, top
055, top
155, top
176, top
101, top
704,top

12"
12"
12"
12"
12"
12"
12"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe end 9c

458,f1 4" clay
651,f1 5" clay tile

263,gs 5" pcc tile repair

371,top
313,top
324,top
340, top
406, top
362, top
422,top
412, top
524, top
571,top
588, top
672,top
625,top
753,top
794,top
811, top
764, top
757,top
728,top
812,top
794,top
940, top
790, top
840, top
869, top
941, top
840, top

870,top
951, top
960, top
961, top
014, top
047,top
084, top

18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"

hdpe begin
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe

hdpe tile
hdpe tile

18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
8"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe
hdpe



2536,3565216.
2537,3565228.
2538,3565240.

2539,3565253

2540,3565265.
2541,3565278.
2542,3565291.
2543,3565304.
2544,3565317.
2545,3565330.
2546,3565343.
2547,3565357.
2548,3565370.
2549,3565383.
2550,3565396.
2551,3565408.
2552,3565421.
2553,3565434.
2554,3565546.
2555,3565575.
2556,3565589.
2557,3565601.
2558,3565613.
2559,3565623.
2560,3565632.
2561,3565642.
2562,3565671.
2563, 3565657.
2564,3565658.
2565,3565659.
2566, 3565659.
2567,3565668.
2568, 3565679.
2569,3565687.
2570,3565668.
2571,3565707.

2572,3565705

2573,3565714.
2574,3565735,
4000, 3566780.
4001, 3566634 .
4002,3566545.
4003,3566542.
4004,3566546.
4005, 3566547 .
4006,3566033.
4007,3565635.
4008,3565635.
4009, 3565630.

4010,3565295

288,4952802.
663,4952787.
748,4952772.
.296,4952756.
585,4952741.
211,4952726.
089,4952711.
122,4952696.
344,4952682.
729,4952667.
643,4952653.
062,4952638.
227,4952624.
408,4952609.
408,4952594.
657,4952579.
263,4952564.
408,4952549,
782,4952437.
117,4952409.
258,4952395,
422,4952379.
070,4952363.
173,4952345,
996,4952328.
917,4952311.
260,4952292,
274,4952297.
195,4952296.
395,4952295.
961,4952296.
385,4952296.
124,4952294.

168,4952293

729,4952296.
044,4952291.
.969,4952289.
229,4952291.
931,4952287.
370,4956294.
065,4956158.
409, 4956061.
299,4956059.
800,4956037.
755,4956039.
546,4955376.
003,4955295.
063,4955289.
365,4955294.
.615,4954855.

932,1140.
625,1140.
143,1140.
930,1140.
699,1140.
592,1140.
.194,top
971,1140.
594,114e0.
917,1140.
068,1140.
708,1140.
140,1140.
611,1140.
816,11460.
426,1140.
419,1140.
814,1140.
843,11480.
609, 1140.
366,1140.
593,1140.
128,1140.
595,1140.
416,1140.
249,1140.
823,1141.
371,114e.
.464,top 12"
221,1149.
770,1140.
393,1141.
543,1139.
.306,1140.
325,11490.
702,1140.
783,1141.
121,1140.
041,1141.
744,1124.
075,1129.
738,1124,

680,1140

696,1140

706,1125

691,1133.
623,1133.
958,1135.
255,1137.

028,top
179,top
138, top
082, top
148, top
193,top

160, top
139, top
264, top
230, top
323, top
273,top
406, top
351, top
435,top
457,top
359, top
191,18"
191, top
153, top
208, top
275, top
271,top
296, top
345, top

18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
18" hdpe
- 12" reducer
12" hdpe
12" hdpe
12" hdpe
12" hdpe
12" hdpe
12" hdpe
12" hdpe

693,fl 5" vcp tile

394,top 12"

489,top 12"
549,top 12"
009,top 12"

hdpe
hdpe wye
hdpe cap
hdpe

hdpe tee for hickenbottom

648,ugfo 1.5+- deaper

781,top 12"
825,top 12"
843,top 12"

hdpe
hdpe
hdpe

906,f1 6" clay

935,top 12"
042,top 12"

hdpe s side hickenbottom

hdpe

046,fl 5" clay tile

250,GS

860,fl 12" pcc tile

.933,top 12"
577,1128.
992,1126.
024,1133.

404,GS

377,f1 10" clay tile plugged

pcc tile

324,f1 4" glay tile

305,top 2.5 rural water
075,top 2.5 rural water
716,5" clay lateral999

702,top 6" lateral



4011, 3565226.
4012,3565224.
4013, 3565216.
4014,3565214.
4015, 3565191.
4030,3565349.
4031, 3565340.
4032,3565327.
4033, 3565320.
4034,3565312.

4035,3565310

4043,3565215

4999, 3567703.
5000,3567683.
5001,3567654.
5002,3567641.
5003,3567629.
5004,3567620.
5005,3567683.
5006, 3567654,
5007,3567641.
5008,3567629.
5009,3567617.
5010,3567590.
5011,3567556.
5012,3567514.

5013,3567460

5014,3567406.
5015,3567358.
5016,3567301.
5017,3567259.
5018,3567216.
5019,3567119.
5020,3567045.
5021,3566984.

5022,3566881

5023,3566858.
5024,3566794.
5025,3566758.
5026,3566738.
5027,3566695.
5028,3565078.
5029,3564912.

475,4954363.
081,4954357.
565,4954353.
706,4954367.
498,4954322.
883,4954831.
116,4954805.
755,4954778.

902,4954723

461,4954643

861,4957207.
885,4957152.
808,4957081.
166,4957009.
723,4956961.
861,4957207.
885,4957152.
808,4957081.
166,4957009.
324,4956977.

758,4956933

720,1139.
780,1139.
179,1140.
577,1139.
933,1139.
519,1141.
527,1141.
963,1142.

.150,1142.
096,4954694.
.206,4954640.
4036,3565228.
4037,3565228.
4038,3565192.
4039, 3565201.
4040, 3565194.
4041, 3565211.
4042,3565219.

226,1143.
635,1143

713,1141.
381,1141.
726,1141.
315,1141.
950,1141.
833,1141.
479,1139
047,1109.
730,1116.
435,1116.
278,1118
233,1118
570,1119
730,1109
435,1109.
278,1109
233,1110.
023,1110.

.953,1110.
237,4956894.
283,4956852.
.693,4956792.
436,4956729.
241,4956672.
514,4956620.
975,4956601.
344,4956590.
578,4956578.
890,4956541.
355,4956485.
.062,4956379.
580,4956353.
140,4956296.
603,4956273.
858,4956252.
165,4956216.
789,4954011.
728,4953652.

828,1111.
854,1111.
991,1111
846,1112.
273,1112.
544,1113.
070,1113
163,1113
963,1114.
374,1114.
515,1115
061,1115
185,1116.
248,1116.
238,1116.
861,1116.
885,1117.
326,1142.
917,1141

.714,crop
.029,1141.
686,4954679.
213,4954682.
304,4954726.
376,4954740.
018,4954800.
438,4954829.
.333,4954342.
125,4957221.

658,f1 4" ads
748,f1 4" vcp

773,top 6" ads
407,top 6" ads

950,4" vcp abandoned

266, crop
970, crop
144,crop
802, crop
101,crop

dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge
dmge

503, crop
308, crop
970, crop
709,crop
869,crop
557,crop
088, crop

.954,f1 6" ads

soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans
soybeans

130, top 30" hdpe

346,gs
955,gs

.044,gs
.427,8s
.176,8s

for polyline
for polyline
for polyline
for polyline
for polyline

.200,polyline

543,polyline

.941,polyline

344,polyline
529,polyline
807,polyline
094,polyline
420,polyline

.862,polyline

320,polyline
733,polyline
155,polyline

.407,polyline
.654,polyline

190, polyline
645,polyline

.102,polyline
.922,polyline

112,polyline
582,polyline
812,polyline
972,polyline
282,polyline

831, exploratory

.773,exploratory



5030,3565075.
5031,3564914.
5032,3565055.
5033,3565391.
5034,3564672.
5035,3564636.
5100,3565342.
5101, 3565355.
5102,3565372.
5103,3565393.
5104,3565418.
5105,3565439.
5106,3565457.
5107,3565486.
5108,3565505.
5109,3565534.
5110,3565586.
5111, 3565597.
5112,3565609.
5113,3565638.
5114,3565637.
5115, 3565625.
5116,3565625.
5117,3565581.
5118,3565538.
5119,3565496.
5120,3565459.
5121,3565427.

5122,3565393

5123,3565356.
5124,3565358.
5125,3565336.
5126,3565312.
5127,3565289.
5128,3565268.
5129,3565247.
5130,3565229.
5150,3567978.

5151, 3567935
5152,3567855

5153,3567799.
5154,3567750.
5155,3567714.

5156,3567685

5157,3567667.
5158,3567613.
5159,3567633.
5160,3567620.
5161,3567596.
5162,3567572.

865,4953992
007,4953651
001,4953928
853,4955142
474,4953159
598,4952865
480,4954832
644,4954878
501,4954922
615,4954967
257,4955016
784,4955076
630,4955089
091,4955143
475,4955167
534,4955188
306,4955209
953,4955194
453,4955207
249,4955223

954,4955358.
555,4955351.
368,4955327.
212,4955321.

238,4955305

439,4955281.

980,4955253

581,4955221.
.758,4955186.
777,4955172.
496,4955129.
220,4955083.
953,4955032.

299,4954983

©59,4954931.
489,4954881.
563,4954832.
993,4957444.
.627,4957412.
.316,4957359.
810,4957321.

231,4957305

446,4957294.
.876,4957250.
246,4957208.

328,4957163
596,4957153

739,4957098.
227,4957032.

608,4956977

.013,1140.
.460,1142.
.403,1140.
.225,1135.
.032,1141.

.958,1143

444,top 6" ads lateralé
100, LOCATE LAT LT 6"CLAY
003,f1 4" ads lateral
354,7" clay lateral
116,f1 5" vcp lat
.235,4" clay f1
.478,1141.
.697,1140.
.098,1141.
.861,1141.
.364,1140.
.698,1140.
.175,1140.
.946,1140.
.664,1140.
.195,1139.
.955,1139,
.860,1140.
.087,1139.
.818,1139.
218,1141.
921,1140.
282,11490.
729,1139.
.923,1139,
753,1140.
.478,1139.
112,1139.
972,1139.
721,1140.
872,1140.
185,1140.
987,1140.
.406,1140.
972,1140.
976,1140.
691,1141.
913,1115.
488,1116.
244,1117.
173,1117.
.943,1117.
230,1117.
703,1117.
068,1117.
.024,1118.
.054,1117.
082,1118.
895,1118.
.415,1119.

264,crop
9409, crop
080, crop
278,crop
916, crop
237,crop
285,crop
071,crop
121,crop
824,crop
562, crop
211,crop
963, crop
974,crop
248, crop
962, crop
132,crop
941, crop
898, crop
006, crop
917,crop
830, crop
865, crop
122,crop
262,crop
457,crop
614,crop
847,crop
956, crop
791, crop
039, crop
448, crqgp
266,crqgp
190, crqp
609, crqgp
626,crqp
935,crgp
522,crqp
118, crqp
299, crqp
674,crqp
077,crgp
785,crqgp
573,crqgp

dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
dmg
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage



5163,3567540
5164,3567499
5165,3567466
5166,3567413
5167,3567383
5168,3567356
5169, 3567341
5170,3567255
5171,3567055
5172,3567019
5173,3566859
5174,3566813
5175,3566758
5176,3566725
5177,3566615
5178,3566552
5179, 3566528
5180,3566492
5181, 3566472
5182, 3566453
5183, 3566432
5184,3566403
5185, 3566369
5186,3566330
5187,3566297
5188,3566209
5189,3566201
5190, 3566178
5191, 3566102
5192, 3566048
5193, 3566045
5194, 3565997
5195, 3565975
5196,3565854
5197,3565803
5198, 3565743
5199,3565718
5201, 3565872
5202,3565923
5203,3565925
5204, 3565968
5205, 3565996
5206,3565930
5208, 3566096
5209,3566139
5210, 3566201
5211,3566190
5212,3566151
5213,3566097
5215,3567078

.965,4956929.
.362,4956889.
.589,4956866.
.230,4956863.
.490,4956818.
.611,4956784.
.821,4956725.
.597,4956667.

.630,4956593
.140,4956565

.490,4956362
.437,4956323

.256,4955643

.218,4955495

.860,4955343

918,1120.
452,1120.
542,1120.
038,1121.
425,1121.
547,1121.
610,1122.
.455,crqp
.774,1126.
.060,1125.
.226,4956412.
.463,1127
.956,1127.
.980,4956297.
.959,4956203.
.839,4956147.
.069,4956109.
.011,4956071.
.615,4955996.
.674,4955912.
.879,4955854,
.671,4955802.
.350,4955746.
.798,4955699.

333,1123

938,1127

071,1127

85,1133

118,1135

719,1138

202,1135

440,1135

121,crqp
560, crqp
810,crqgp
256,crqp
528, crqgp
829, crqgp
056,crqgp

144,crqp
774,crqp

.411,crqp
.444 ,crgp

138,crqp

.458,crqgp
745,1130.
712,1132.
253,1131.
029,1131.
731,1131.
133,1131.
035,1132.
.684,crqgp
203,1134,
873,1135.
.073,1135
.182,4955515.

736,crqp
144,crqp
565,crgp
486, crqp
0e1,crqgp
768,crqp
772,crqp

325,crqgp
199,crqgp

.038,crgp
239,1135.
.058,1135.
.582,4955472.
.630,4955440,
.556,4955431.
.750,4955419,
.075,4955404.
.712,4955394.
.607,4955362.
.697,4955350.

783,crqgp
750,crqgp

.969,crgp
550,1137.
220,1137.
188,1137.
678,1137.
675,1137.

119, crqgp
846,crqgp
334,crqgp
430,crgp
523,crqgp

.910,crqp
335,1138.
.841,1139
.964,4955347.
.253,4955289.
.623,4955287.
.390,4955293,
.927,4955302,
.209,4955326.
.684,4955307.
.227,4955340,
.807,4955352.
.113,4955357.
.894,4955370.
.678,4955364.
.064,4955350,
.904,4956489.

323,crqp

.032,crgp
515,1139.
590,1137.
222,1137.
811,1137.
938,1136.
538,1136.
023,1136.
803,1136.
.926,crqgp
030,1136.
568,1136.
.787,crgp
602,1135.
334,1124.

199, crgp
513,crqp
647,crqgp
502, crqgp
879,crqgp
252,crqgp
951, crqp
088, crgp

242,crqgp
155,crgp

859, crqp
331,crqgp

damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage



5216,3567141.
5217,3567174.
5218,3567233.
5219,3567272.
5220,3567310.
5221,3567261.
5222,3567212.
5223,3567157.
5224,3567110.
6000,3568130.
6001,3568145.
6002,3568159.
6003,3568173.
6004,3568187.
6005,3568201.
6006,3568215.
6007,3568229.
6008,3568243.
6009, 3568255.
6010,3568268.
6011,3568293.
6012,3568296.
6100,3568266.
6101, 3568306.
6102,3568295.
6103,3568282.
6104, 3568297.
6105,3568265
6106,3568261.
6107,3568289.
6108,3568285
6109, 3568290.
6110,3568293
6111,3568296.
6112,3568298.
6113,3568305
6114,3568296.
6115,3568271.
6116,3568244.
6117,3568198.
6118,3568195
6119,3568223.
6120,3568266.
6121,3568340.
6122,3568329.
6123,3568325
6124,3568305
6125,3568286.
6126,3568304.
6127,3568303.

781,4956506.

170,4956509

389,4956530.
462,4956547.

407,4956575

183,4956561.
568,4956547.

501,4956535

747,4956516.

470,4960007

022,4960013.
620,4960020.
706,4960027.
434,4960036.
482,4960044 .
504,4960052.
412,4960060.
048,4960069.
597,4960079.
476,4960089 .

902,4960107

987,4960109.
705,4960088.
947,4960088.
117,4960107.
754,4960126.
511,4960101.
.978,4960081.
473,4960091.
106,4960114.
.416,4960122.
267,4960114.
.418,4960109.

463,4960105

873,4960100.
.021,4960091.
929,4960145.
299,4960149.
072,4960137.
501,4960122.
.804,4960077.
115,4960026.
981,4960033.
402,4960086.

340,4960099

.849,4960104.
.467,4960092.
661,4960121.
381,4960131.
217,4960123.

401,1123

226,1123

503,1105

455,1106.
047,1106.
461,1105.
518,1105.
535,1102.

.696,crqgp
.094,1123,
256,1123.
956,1123.
.884,1122.
601,1122.
.040,crqgp
.649,1123.
048,1123.
.454,1105.
.661,top
266,1105.
986,1105.
691,1104.
737,1104.
641,1104.
884,1103.
728,1103.
708,1103.
394,1103.
.047,1100.
145,1102.
119,1104.
588,1106.
583,1104.
873,1106.
464,1104.
310,1104.
158,1104.
006,1103.
784,1106.
462,1106.
591,1104.
.478,1104.
868, 1107.
526,1107.
504,1109.
767,1111.
133,1110.
053,1109.
594,1108.
116,1110.
222,1110.
749,1108.
.481,1108.

530,crgp
257,crqgp
163,crgp
9809, crgp
904,crqp

344,crqgp
860,crgp
526,top 18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"
18"

697,top
447,top
846,top
458, top
028, top
743,top
569, top
497, top
082,top

damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage
damage

pcc
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rcp
rep

begin

580,f1 24" cmp outlet

452,top 24"
022,top rim

942,end headwall sheet piling
449,cl headwall sheet piling
654,end headwall sheet piling

cmp
inlet

695, edge revetment
911, edge revetment
707,edge revetment
614,edge revetment

926, top headwall
966,top headwall
496,top headwall
516,top headwall
146, top headwall
002,top headwall

703, seeding
334,seeding
802, seeding
875, seeding
427,seeding
251, seeding
166, seeding
987, seeding
814, seeding

cap
cap
cap
cap
cap
cap
limits
limits
limits
limits
limits
limits
limits
limits
limits

877,e0
253,e0
223,e0
763,e0
012,e0

rip rap
rip rap
rip rap
rip rap

grouted rip rap



6128,3568290.
6129,3568315.
6130,3568302.
7000,3566797.
8000, 3566505.
8013,3570961.
8028,3570914.

9000, 3568022.
9001,3568021.
9002, 3568020.
9003,3568020.
9004,3568020.
9005, 3568020.
9006,3568020.
9007,3568020.
9008,3568020.
9009, 3568018.
9010, 3568019.
9011, 3568058.
9012, 3568059.
9013,3568059.
9014,3568059.
9015,3568059.
9016, 3568059.
9017,3568060.
9018,3568062.
9019,3568062.
9020, 3568062.
9021,3568065.
9022,3568065.
9023,3568064.
9024, 3568065.
9025,3568024.
9026,3568103.
9027,3568103.
9028, 3568104.
9029,3568105
9030, 3568145
9031,3568145
9032,3568146.
9033,3568149.
9034,3568151.
9035,3568195.
9036,3568197.
9037,3568199.
9038,3568201.
9039, 3568201.
9040,3568193.
9041,3568191.

156,4960116.
439,4960106.
275,4960097.
138,4956293.
873,4960123.
250,4946914.
710,4964044.

614,4960121
875,4960117
630,4960104

858,4960077.
936,4960049.
853,4960019.
628,4959985.
316,4959950.
003,4959915.
927,4959882.
192,4959842.
611,4959842.
042,4959877.
193,4959911.
198,4959946.
563,4959979.
653,4960014.
608,4960049.
569,4960085.
742,4960111.
994,4960117.
031,4960121.
086,4960131.
823,4960161.
047,4960199.
527,4960197.
599,4960198.
363,4960153.
547,4960129.
.242,4960121.
.733,4960122.
.618,4960129.
720,4960160.
345,4960203.
625,4960244.

519,4960245

166,4960203.
938,4960161.
593,4960132.
633,4960121.
590,4960115.
394,4960124.

695,1118

885,1112

040,1115

231,1101.
290,1103.
967,1102.
485,1126.
554,1138.
650,1189.
160,1087.

661,1114.
278,1115.
871,1116.
411,1118.
866,1119.
645,1117.
784,1114.
961,1113.
852,1112.
492,1111.
234,1112.
484,1113.
.953,GS
831,1120.
.383,1119.
399,1114.
828,1112.
946,1111.
948,1109.
026,1108.
633,1110.

667,e0 grouted rip rap
024,e0 grouted rip rap
199,e0 grouted rip rap
for polyline

658,8s
950, cpt #3

250,ALUM DISK

480,ALUM DISK

8028_GNSS,3570914.710,4964044.160,1087.480, Autonomous Setup
.025,1117.
.643,1115.
.060,1114.
642,1111.
808,1110.
639,1110.
230,1111.
128,1113.
191,1116.
431,1120.
577,1124.
602,1125.
657,1122.
.145,GS
562,1113.
486,1111.
157,1110.
729,1110.
544,11160.
510,1112.
.857,GS

441,FNL N S
375,GS
375,GS
934,GS
651,GS
817,GS
100,GS
151,GS
334,GS
650,GS
543,GS
143,GS
352,GS

819,GS
552,GS
539,GS
582,GS
725,GS
051,GS

728,FNL
207,GS
162,GS
617,GS
465,GS
075,GS
039,GS
550,GS
495, FNL
054, FNL
248,GS
005,GS

548,GS
370,GS
676,GS
134,GS
273,GS
718,FNL

977,TRD EDGE OF BRUSH
917,TRD EDGE OF BRUSH



92042, 3568181.
9043,3568195.
9044,3568200.
9045,3568209.
9046, 3568202.
9047,3568213.
9048, 3568212.
9049, 3568218.
9050, 3568218.
9051, 3568227.
9052,3568228.
9053,3568222.
9054,3568226.
9055, 3568222.
9057,3568226.
9058, 3568219.
9059, 3568223.
9060, 3568217.
9061, 3568214.
9062,3568209.
9063,3568217.
9064, 3568209.
9065, 3568206.
9066, 3568198.
9067,3568196.
9068, 3568195.

9069, 3568193

9070,3568188.
9071, 3568186.
9072,3568179.
9073,3568180.
9074,3568175.
9075, 3568162.

9076,3568165

9077,3568167.
9078,3568168.
9079, 3568157.
9080, 3568152.
9081,3568149.
9082,3568147.
9083, 3568146.
9084,3568147.
9085,3568143.
9086,3568143.

9087,3568153

427,4960124.
841,4960112,
944,4960101.
245,4960097,
787,4960094 .
883,4960087.
.025,1106.
272,4960070.
333,4960074.
638,4960079.
338,4960080.
189,4960077.
207,4960075.
.922,1099.
273,4960062.
934,4960055.
181,4960056.
.099,1100.
836,4960051.
748,4960045.
312,4960037.
660,4960030.
740,4960032,
565,4960027 .
859,4960025.
328,4960031.
.011,4960030.
462,4960031.
353,4960033.
557,4960027.
511,4960020.

984,4960075

318,4960065

957,4960048

646,4960035

355,4960015

067,4960014.
762,4960012.
103,4960012.
179,4960016.

940,4960013
485,4960013

918,4960028

635,1110.
441,1108.
949,1105.
487,1104.
408,1104.
850,1102.

759,1107.
570,1106.
885,1104.
653,1102.
732,1099.
984,1100.

871,1099.
663,1099.
353,1099.

071,1100.
189,1100.
649,1101.
528,1101.
685,1101.
961,1101.
548,1101.
811,1101.
618,1101.
267,1101.
749,1101.
222,1102.
260,1103.

.420,1104.
357,4960030.
.871,4960023.
449,4960021.
.855,1103

179,1103.
304,1102.
201,1102.

968,1102.
123,1102.
888,1102.
369,1102.

.653,1105.
.957,1103.
983,4960016.
245,4960020.
.430,4960026.
9088,3568144.
9089, 3568137.
9090,3568135.
9091, 3568127.
9092,3568124.

012,1104.
424,1103.
314,1102.

.966,1103.
138,4960027.
756,4960020.
197,4960022.
324,4960025.

745,1103.
050,1103.
952,1103.
315,1102.

865, TRD EDGE OF BRUSH

593,GS
802,GS
177,FL
175,FL
076, FL
471,GS
459,78
632,TB

RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
EDGE OF BRUSH

598, TOP CMP

669, CMP
945, TOE
366, TOE
554, TOE
818, TOE
842, TOE
849, TOE
268, TOE
163,TOE
172,TOE
668, TOE
818, TOE
677, TOE
717,TOE
969, TOE
789, TOE
582, TOE
812, TOE
826, TOE
144,TOE
594,GS

266,GS

707,GS

285, TOE
115,TOE

.906,GS

541,7TOE
531, TOE
608, TOE
631, TOE
568, TOP

FL

CONC TILE

931,FL CONC TILE

374,GS
396, TOE
920, TOE
139, TOE
304, TOE
465, TOE
212,TOE
938, TOE



9093,3568126.
9094,3568120.
9095,3568118.
9096, 3568127.
9097,3568139.
9098, 3568151.
9099,3568148.
9100,3568146.
9101,3568157.
9102,3568162.
9103,3568174.
9104,3568183.
9105,3568186.
9106,3568193.
9107,3568194.
9108,3568204.
9109,3568205
9110, 3568213
9111,3568212.
9112,3568222.
9113,3568220.
9114,3568229.
9115,3568225.
9116,3568233.
9117,3568230.
9118,3568234.
9119,3568236.
9120,3568234.
9121,3568243.
9122,3568240.
9123,3568243.
9124,3568244.
9125,3568242.
9126,3568243.
9127,3568240.
9128,3568250.
9129,3568248.
9130,3568257.
9131, 3568246.
9132,3568246.
9133,3568235.
9134,3568229.
9135,3568226.
9136,3568234.
9137,3568236.
9138,3568235
9139,3568238.
9140,3568243
9141,3568247.
9142,3568239.

237,4960027.
349,4960017.
060,4960023.
317,4960015.
779,4960010.
462,4960007.
195,4960008.
767,4960010.
049,4960008.
766,4960011.
384,4960008.
256,4960014.

334,4960013

620,4960009.
066,4960012.
467,4960008.
.075,4960011.
.989,4960008.
850,4960011.
797,4960014.
748,4960016.
.647,1109.
625,4960024.
701,4960034.

091,4960023

135,4960033

825,4960036.
699,4960044.
239,4960045.
217,4960052.
816,4960053.
592,4960055.
509,4960061.
291,4960061.
071,4960067.
593,4960067.
887,4960071.
989,4960074.
148,4960074.
557,4960081.
678,4960083.
500,4960083.
963,4960088.
162,4960094.
388,4960100.
238,4960104.
.793,4960109.

834,4960113

.265,4960119.

151,4960125

576,4960132.

719,1103

559,1109

937,1105

797,1105

363,1108.
215,1105.
075,1108.
026,1105.
507,11e8.
898,1108.
.976,GS
535,1108.
332,1104.
768,1107.
751,1105.
385,1106.
357,11e3.
823,1099.
145,1099.
846,1098.
359,1100.
895,1106.
407,1107.
356,1107.
.872,1108.
769,1109.
.498,11180.
444,1110.

286,1105

.058, TOE
369,1110.
637,1110.
879,1110.
931,1110.
261,1110.
371,111e.
762,1110.
099,1110.
249,1110.
844,1110.
.888,TB
.514,1110.
628,1110.
077,1106.
702,1110.
941,1106.
872,1110.
745,1106.
862,1109.
.411,GS

295, TB
240,TB
341, TB
804, TB
939, TB
876,TB
641, T8
918, TB
634,TB
664,TB

195,TB
313,78
152,GS
278,78
622,GS
337,718
593,GS
962,TB

654,TB

.925,GS
589,1109.
.525,1104.
562,1109.

062,TB
482,GS

033, TRD 6"BOXELD MULTIPLE

458,TB
611,GS
414,78
758,GS

085,TRD 20"COTTON [3]

029,TB

035,TB
065,GS
573,TB
121,GS
751,TB
219,GS
443, TOE
688, TOE
802,TOE
771,GS
319,GS
388,TB
696,GS
221,GS
018,GS
505,GS
279,GS

RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE

10'E



9143, 3568236.
9144,3568232.
9145,3568223.
9146,3568219.
9147,3568218.
9148,3568221.
9149,3568208.
9150,3568211.
9151, 3568227.
9152,3568227.
9153,3568229.
9154,3568229.
9155,3568263.
9156,3568282.
9157,3568283.
9158,3568271.
9159,3568269.
9160,3568282.
9161,3568283.
9162,3568271.
9163,3568267.
9164,3568283.
9165, 3568081.
9166,3568083.
9167,3568085.
9168,3568089.
9169,3568100.
9170,3568114.
9171,3568116.
9172,3568117.
9173,3568118.
9174,3568153.
9175,3568155.
9176,3568158.
9177,3568187.
9178,3568184.
9179, 3568211.
9180,3568211
9181,3568213
9182,3568247
9183,3568272
9184,3568284
9185, 3568283
9186,3568270
9187,3568245
9188,3568245
9189,3568245
9190,3568258
9191,3568277
9192,3568283

683,4960120.

292,4960136

093,4960133.
243,4960128.
202,4960116.
294,4960109.
720,4960114.
658,4960106.
651,4960141.
802,4960162.
322,4960200.
852,4960239.
301,4960264.
133,4960266.
386,4960224.
581,4960222.
183,4960191.
436,4960191.

160,4960158
932,4960157

360,4960134.
006,4960122.
858,4960114.
386,4960095.

813,4960065

748,4960047 .

668,4960027

920,4960020.
317,4960000.
772,4959961.
138,4959924.
602,4959907.
219,4959944.,
653,4959979.
103,4959999.

024,4960005

684,4959998.
.511,4959959.

.229,4959918

.616,4959888.

.945,4959887

.372,4959888.

.797,4959923
.610,4959923
.607,4959923

.983,4959959.
.789,4959976.

.189,4959963

.753,4959962.

.025,4959959

508,1109.
.984,1110.
174,1110.
334,1110.
001,1107.
779,1107.
654,1108.
972,1107.
160,11160.
509,1111.
864,1113.
339,1116.
823,1120.
274,1120.
340,1114.
831,1115.
490,1112.
412,1111.
.671,1109.
.940,1111.
903,1110.
324,1109.
694,1111.
196,1110.
.908,1110.
013,1110.
.760,1110.
077,1110.
386,11160.
389,1113.
054,1117.
253,1120.
022,1115.
917,1112.
048,1111.
.465,1111.
423,1111.
550,1114.
.710,1119.
167,1121.
.941,1122.
485,1122.
.448,1120.
.419,1119
.905,1118.
580,1114.
155,1112.
.049,1114.
739,1115.
.923,1117.

756,TB
651,GS
526,GS
698,GS
857,GS
056, GS
257,GS
170,TB
917,GS
775,GS
754,GS
990, GS
758,GS
687, FNL
920, FNL
213,GS
588,GS
508, FNL
969, FNL
618,GS
525,GS
188, FNL
420,GS
723,GS
317,GS
154,GS
205,GS
330,GS
978,GS
694,GS
691,GS
263,GS
251,GS
393,65
542,GS
301,GS
568, GS

RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE TILE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
CROP LN
CROP LN
CROP LN
CROP LN

EW
EW

WCP
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN
CROPLN

CROPLN
CROPLN

TILE6"ALUM CMP

487,GS

638,GS

915,GS

185,GS CROPLN
885,FNL E W
939,FNL E W

.023,GS CROPLN

487,GS
163,GS
569,GS CROPLN
006,GS CROPLN
172,GS
308,FNL CEDAR

POST



9193,3568282.
9194,3568277.
9195,3568253.
9196,3568251.
9197,3568280.

9198,3568283

9199, 3568277.
9200,3568282.
9201, 3568275.
9202,3568274.

9203,3568271

9214,3568205

9215,3568210.

9216,3568216
9217,3568217

9218,3568206.
9219,3568197.
9220,3568193.
9221,3568188.
9222,3568186.
9223,3568179.
9224,3568171.
9225,3568166.
9226,3568169.
9227,3568172.
9228,3568181.
9229,3568179.
9230,3568172.

9231,3568169

9232,3568170.
9233,3568146.
9234,3568147.
9235,3568151.

9236,3568143

9237,3568147.
9238,3568156.
9239,3568164.
9240,3568158.
9241,3568158.

9242,3568142

460,4960005 .
827,4960004.
108,4960006.
500,4960039.
037,4960041.
.180,4960067 .
218,4960066.
679,4960084.
326,4960082.
262,4960088.
.094,4960068
9204,3568121.
9205,3568124.
9206,3568137.
9207,3568150.
9208, 3568157.
9209,3568160.
9210,3568160.
9211,3568173.
9212,3568187.
9213,3568196.

374,4960030.
608,4960031.
095,4960032.
470,4960033.
475,4960032.
153,4960036.
391,4960041.
314,4960039.
398,4960037.
935,4960036.
.469,4960050.
319,4960056.
.824,4960063
.922,4960068.
276,4960069.
645,4960068.
010,4960073.

742,4960073
220,4960074

755,4960068.
950,4960065.
551,4960071.
367,4960078.
853,4960087.
404,4960092.
115,4960104.
995,4960104.
.893,4960109.
064,4960120.
776,4960120.
571,4960110.
582,4960102.
.912,4960093
351,4960081.
983,4960074.
597,4960071.
150,4960065.
142,4960060.
.418,4960064.

421,1112.
875,1111.
366,1116.
996,1109.
410,1109.
379,11e8.
048,1107.
890,1106.
476,1106.
057,1102.
.212,1107
501,1107.
947,1109.
922,111e.
824,1109.
272,1109.
750,1109.
098,11160.
083,1109.
290,1109.
499,1109.
868,1109.
513,11e8.
.605,1108.
907,1107.
476,1107.
784,1107.
136,1106.
.720,1104.
.507,1106.
088,1105.
812,1106.
277,1109.
006,1109.
189,1107.
.990,GS
005,1107.
007,1107.
003,1109.
573,1109.
364,1109.
048,1109.
520,1109.
.175,1109.
227,1109.
618,1109.
777,1109.
543,1108.
627,1107.
.741,GS

236,1107

780,1109

631,FNL
423,GS
945,GS
500, GS
378,GS
126,FNL
632,GS
765, FNL
766,TB
870,GS

.815,GS

419,TB
582,TB
097,78
722,78
579,TB
248,TB

087,TRD 12PRONG MUL 10'E

484,78
203,TB
433,TB
009, TB
905, TB
344,TB
661, TB
939,GS
566,GS
709,GS
689, FL
512,GS
557,GS
833,GS
082,GS
952,GS
130,GS

132,GS
690, GS
093, GS
693, FNL
900, FNL
467,GS
480,GS
982,GS
525,GS
502,GS
272,65
958, GS
646, GS

ENDS

RUBBLE

RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE
RUBBLE

RUBBLE
RUBBLE

EDGE BRUSH
EDGE BRUSH
EDGE BRUSH
EDGE BRUSH



9243,3568133
9244,3568137
9245,3568138
9246,3568138
9247,3568127
9248,3568126
9249,3568125
9250, 3568125
9251,3568125
9252,3568122
9253,3568126
9254,3568119
9255,3568104
9256,3568289
9257,3568324
9258,3568365
9259, 3568408
9260,3568453
9261,3568490
9262,3568492
9263,3568444
9264,3568399
9265, 3568354
9266,3568291
9267,3568290
9268,3568335
9269, 3568386
9270,3568434
9271,3568481
9272,3568493
9273,3568493
9274,3568449
9275, 3568404
9276,3568356
9277,3568311
9278,3568311
9279,3568291
9280,3568293
9281,3568338
9282,3568381
9283,3568424
9284, 3568467
9285,3568504
9286,3568505
9287,3568493
9288,3568504
9289,3568460
9290, 3568420
9291, 3568374
9292,3568344

.516,4960057 .
.516,4960051.
.278,4960046.
.462,4960041.
.141,4960041.
.017,4960045.
.641,4960049.

.087,4960053

.038,4960071.
.681,4960088.
.078,4960100.
.078,4960116.
.614,4960100.
.020,4959879.

.024,4959877

.581,4959874.
.342,4959872.

.004,4959868

.967,4959862.
.321,4959911.
.773,49599160.
.339,4959908.

.487,4959907

.556,4959910.
.107,4959961.
.520,4959962.
.106,4959958.
.783,4959950.
.648,4959944,

.458,4959943

.473,4959993.
.053,4959994,

.861,4959993

.164,4959992.
.861,4959991.
.022,4960002.
.564,4959991.
.522,4960041.
.237,4960041.
.225,4960038.
.356,4960037.
.294,4960038.

.155,4960039

.982,4960029.
.553,4960030.
.032,4960089.
.140,4960090.
.488,4960091.
.926,4960091.
.701,4960090.

928,1110.
535,1108.
653,1108.
079,1109.
462,1110.
539,1108.
266,1108.
.094,1110.
449,1110.
317,1110.
520,1109.
021,1110.
229,1110.
506,1121.
.670,1119.
851,1117.
687,1116.
.449,1114.
668,1112.
972,1114.
174,1116.
174,1117.
.049,1118.
243,1120.
915,1116.
895,1117.
036,1119.
.818,GS
667,1115.
.005,1115.
910,1113.
352,1116.
.084,1118.
041,1117.

993,1117

715,1113

975,1113

856,1108

167,GS
105,GS
618,GS
972,GS
160,GS
709,GS
884,GS
009,GS
322,GS
042,GS
866,GS
077,GS
363,GS
822,GS
552,GS
777,GS
162,GS
603,GS
765,GS
448,GS
366,GS
417,GS
673,GS
272,GS
151,GS
849,GS
414,GS

830,GS
298,GS
357,GS
282,GS
097,GS
385,GS

.889,GS
681,1112.
227,1113.
201,1110.
219,1111.
.261,GS
418,1113.
517,1111.
.635,1109.
329,1110.
053,1110.
196,1106.
639,1107.
878,1108.
358,1109.
.943,GS

934,CPT
380,GS
321,GS
377,GS

256,GS
355,GS
596,GS
441,GS
970,GS
834,GS
829,GS
496, GS
056,GS

OLDWIREPLANTER

GRASS/FIELD
GRASS/FIELD

FIELD/GRASS
FIELD/GRASS

GRASS/FIELD
GRASS/FIELD

TREEEDGE



9293,3568391.
9294, 3568433.
9295,3568434.
9296, 3568448.
9297,3568272.
9298,3568278.
9299,3568287.
9300,3568276.
9301,3568273.
9302,3568246.
9303,3568249.
9304,3568249.
9305,3568277.
9306,3568284.
9307,3568309.
9308,3568311.
9309,3568304.
9310, 3568299.
9311,3568331.
9312,3568329.
9313,3568332.
9314,3568368
9315, 3568355.
9316,3568356.
9317,3568355.
9318,3568349.
9319,3568384.
9320,3568383.
9321,3568381.
9322,3568378.
9323,3568418.
9324,3568416.
9325,3568430.
9326,3568430.
9327,3568451.
9328,3568451.
9329,3568471.
9330,3568471.
9331, 3568472.
9332,3568427.
9333,3568411.
9334,3568334.
9335,3568282.
9336,3568288.
9337,3568331.
9338,3568378.
9339,3568422.
9340,3568463.
9341,3568505.
9342,3568505

640,4960105

249,4960105.

658,4960115

905,4960120.
201,4960079.
130,4960089.
791,4960108.
760,4960093.
608,4960102.
494 ,4960086 .

218,4960093

319,4960099.
466,4960113.

832,4960093

734,4960111.

905,4960098
110,4969119

167,4960119.
083,4960131.
001,4960136.
732,4960120.
.649,4960136.
635,4960117.
592,4960126.
781,4960137.
519,4960142.
190,4960142.
410,4960133.
775,4960126.
220,4960149.
811,4960132.
617,4960126.
308,4960132.
420,4960128.

334,4960138

477,4960131.
479,4960124.
715,4960132.
210,4960110.

222,4960114

548,4960120.
320,4960100.
856,4960416.
410,4960417.
117,4960420.
503,4960418.
178,4960416.
611,4960416.
734,4960416.
.689,4960366.

.630,1108.
687,1108.
.903,1106.
667,1106.
314,11606.
395,1105.
783,1100.
237,1099.
423,1100.
649,1099.
.938,1099.
306,1106.
325,1107.
.009,1105.
038,1099.
.414,1107.
.032,1098.
316,1105.
991,1098.
541,1106.
781,1098.
577,1098.
938,1106.
887,1099.
803,1098.
444,1105.
156,1098.
525,1098.

126,1105

572,GS TREEEDGE
108,GS TREEEDGE
783,GS TB TREEEDGE
196,GS TB TREEEDGE

980,CPT
294,78
046,CPT NAIL
473, TOE
511, TOE
900, TOE
901, TOE
339,TB
085,TB
398,TB
631, TOE
139,7TB
785, TOE
197,7TB
587, TOE
384,TB
754, TOE
849,CPT X
925,TB
002, TOE
697, TOE
221,78
018, TOE
022,TOE

.138,TB
461, 1105.
848,1097.
256,1097.
682,1097.
260,1096.
.023,1097.
479,1097.
283,1097.
713,1097.
628,1106.
.947,1107.
162,1106.
555,1107.
624,1131.
399,1130.
291,1129.
595,1127.
853,1126.
574,1125.
406,1122.
360,1123.

034,TB
796, TOE
940, TOE
000, TOE
677, TOE
493, TOE
429, TOE
397, TOE
052, TOE
407,TB
104, TB
477,TB
826,TB
620,FNL E-W
823,GS
320,GS
807,GS
827,GS
044,GS
988,GS
134,GS



9343,3568462.
9344,3568415.
9345,3568366.
9346,3568318.
9347,3568297.
9348,3568282.
9349,3568253.
9350, 3568207.
9351,3568163.
9352,3568136.
9353,3568146.
9354,3568195.
9355,3568242.
9356,3568268.
9357,3568254.
9358,3568234.
9359,3568268.
9360,3568271.
9361,3568282.
9362,3568293
9363,3568347.
9364,3568399.
9365,3568452.
9366,3568505.
9367,3568513.
9368,3568462.
9369, 3568411.
9370,3568361.
9371,3568312.
9372,3568292.
9373,3568291.
9374,3568327.
9375,3568382.
9376,3568441.
9377,3568495
9378,3568518.
9379,3568548.
9380,3568517.
9381,3568494.
9382,3568461.
9383, 3568407.
9384,3568381.
9401,3568131.
9402,3568193
9403,3568245
9404,3568271.
9405, 3568298.
9406, 3568304.
9407,3568283.
9408, 3568221.

452,4960365
043,4960363

837,4960375

313,4960309

630,4960249

630,4960195

115,4960173

516,4960145

995,4960153

881,4960095

.611,1124.
.227,1126.
059,4960361.
807,4960360.
827,4960356.
421,4960351.
217,4960354.
952,4960350.
118,4960349.
897,4960349.
594,4960391.
002,4960392.
216,4960393.
102,4960390.
968,4960361.
361,4960361.
.609,1129.
752,4960294 .

585,1125.
278,1126.
425,1126.
859,1128.
239,1127.
858,1127.
680,1126.
203,1125.
921,1127.
515,1128.
404,1129.
320,1129.
784,1128.
237,1127.

374,1123.

.408,1125.
.977,4960307.
985,4960300.
781,4960300.
979,4960298.
675,4960297.
124,4960249.
.932,1112.
050,4960248.
264,4960248.
551,4960246.
179,4960238.
.756,1111.
470,4960194.
016,4960196.
.796,1108.
.082,4960163.
232,4960170.
430,4960165.
582,4960146.
.674,1103.
785,4960151.

514,1122.
264,1119.
533,1119.
384,1118.
183,1117.
101,1111.

734,1113.
843,1114.
444,1115.
654,1115.

320,1112.
533,1110.

454,1106.
058,1106.
018,1105.
000,1103.

131,1105.

.627,1107.
169,4960154.
480,4960000.
.319,4960051.
.231,4960080.

608,1106.
965,1089.
718,1089.
614,1089.

.448,1089.
094,4960110.
425,4960088.
025,4960126.
294,4960109.

038,1089.
384,1089.
829,1089.
779,1089.

835,GS

240,65

860,GS

579,GS

905,GS
839,FNL E-W
697,GS

314,GS

489,GS

934,GS

063,GS

486, GS

413,GS

657,GS CROPLN
254,GS CROPLN
937,GS CROPLN

442,TRD 48 MUL 18' TO N
841,TRD 72 MAPLE 12' TO N

538,FNL E-W
459,GS
528,GS
568,GS
733,GS
772,GS
634,GS
943,GS
796,GS
230,GS
180,GS
142,GS

873,GS
322,GS
318,GS
273,GS
674,GS
329,GS
583,GS
575,78
922,TB
738,TB
998, TB
829,TB

750, connect to existing
750, concrete collar

750, tee

TREE
TREE
TREE
TREE
TREE
TREE
TREE

JUNK
JUNK
JUNK
JUNK
JUNK
JUNK
JUNK

750, intake
750,outlet
750, headwall
750, headwall

750, concrete collar



10000,3568056.
10001, 3568006 .
10002,3567968.
10003, 3568001.
10004,3567979.
.068,4957393
10006,3567964 .
10007,3567945.
10008,3567909.
10009, 3567966.
10010,3567871.
10011,3567818.
10012,3567767.
10013,3567742.
10014,3567734.
10015,3567701.
10016,3567667.
10017,3567647.
10018,3567642.
10019,3567636.
10020,3567629.
10021,3567621.
10022,3567598.
10023,3567544.
10024,3567500.
10025,3567463.
10026,3567419.
10027,3567408.
10028,3567383.
10029,3567361.
.361,4956720
10031,3567352.
10032,3567332.
10033,3567305.
10034,3567278.
10035,3567239.
10036,3567200.
10037,3567172.
10038,3567116.
.363,4956495
10040,3567011.
10041,3566969.
10042,3566937.
10043,3566909.
10044,3566868.
10045,3566825.
10046,3566776.
10047,3566733.
10048,3566692.
10049, 3566650.

10005, 3567945

10030,3567357

10039,3567061

478,4957436
905,4957437
332,4957440
388,4957431
930,4957417

142,4957406
139,4957393
624,4957369
893,4957368
945,4957340
696,4957306
298,4957270
890,4957250
845,4957247
094,4957227
644,4957194
923,4957176
660,4957138
506,4957095
824,4957045
675,4957003
004,4956955
786,4956913
506,4956881
837,4956854
864,4956830
665,4956823
©13,4956804
540,4956757

181,4956686
313,4956638
318,4956584
768,4956561
052,4956543
495,4956531
386,4956523
628,4956509

474,4956479
492,4956446
742,4956406
127,4956351
362,4956315
245,4956282
905,4956245
671,4956198
954,4956171
050,4956137

.881,1113.
.404,1113.
.733,1115.
.738,1109.
.234,1115.
.808,1115.
.515,1115.
.989,1115.
.160,1115.
.237,1110.
.848,1115.
.430,1115.
.355,1115.
.333,1115.
.969,1110.
.446,1116.
.671,1116.
.327,1111.
.861,1117.
.956,1117.
.778,1118.
.155,1113.
.911,1119.
.871,1114.
.668,1120.
.641,1120.
.866,1121.
.802,1115.
.090,1121.
.520,1121.
.181,1116.
.427,1121.
.200,1122.
.941,1116.
.299,1123.
.011,1123.
.305,1123.
.892,1118.
.962,1123.
.593,1123,.
.332,1119.
.278,1124.
.365,1120.
.961,1125.
.600,1125.
.835,1125.
.248,1122.
.613,1126.
.219,1126.
.062,1127.

537,GS
686,GS
720,GS
662, FL
045,GS
602,GS
084,GS
564,GS
895,GS
111,GS
471,GS
245,GS
529,GS
802,GS
130, FL
252,GS
734,GS
614, FL
441,GS
820,GS
334,GS
230, FL
336,GS
151, FL
498,GS
866,GS
132,GS
634, FL
474,GS
911, GS
129, FL
883,GS
061,GS
763, FL
003,GS
104,GS
264,GS
485, FL
870,GS
982,GS
815, FL
388,GS
842,FL
215,GS
459,GS
878,GS
577, FL
799,GS
519,GS
264,GS

RURAL WATER
RURAL WATER
RURAL WATER
CONC TILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CONC TILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CONCTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE



10050,3566608.584,4956100.
10051, 3566549.601,4956063.
10052,3566520.120,4956038.
10053,3566512.153,4956012.
10054,3566496.044 ,4955953,
10055, 3566486.922,4955903.
10056,3566475.208,4955849,
10057,3566461.985,4955803.
10058,3566460.316,4955801.

041,1124.406,FL
633,1128.532,GS
280,1129.654,GS
017,1125.306,FL
034,1130.244,GS
116,1130.894,GS
925,1130.666,GS
413,1130.926,GS
540,1128.813,FL

CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CONCTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE

10059,3566423.
10060, 3566397.
10061,3566371.
10062, 3566342,
10063, 3566315.
10064,3566312.
10065,3566285.
10066, 3566255.
10067,3566231.
10068,3566216.
10069,3566213.
10070, 3566187.
10071,3566141.
10072, 3566090.
10073,3566041.
10074,3566036.
10075, 3566002.

143,4955744.
.732,1131
047,4955662.
122,4955618.
386,4955572.
519,4955567.
516,4955521.
714,4955475,
301,4955435.
728,4955414,
587,4955409.
272,4955378.
617,4955366.
286,4955357.
080,4955350.
816,4955349,
775,4955345,

965,4955703

295,1129

885,1132
235,1132
802,1133
381,1130
497,1133
287,1134
069,1134
608,1134
284,1131
290,1135
655,1135
672,1135
294,1135
512,1132
126,1135

.238,FL
.727,GS
.565,GS
.968,GS
.417,GS
.360, FL
.787,GS
.610,GS
.756,GS
.928,GS
.163,FL
.747,GS
.545,GS
.539,GS
.608,GS
.469, FL
.738,GS

CONCTILE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE

10076,3565945.
10077,3565912.
10078,3565861.
10079,3565857.
10080, 3565814.
10081,3565770.
10082, 3565762.
10083, 3565721.
10084,3565679.
10085,3565638.
10086,3565627.
10087,3565617.
10088,3565581.
10089, 3565535.
10090, 3565485.
10091, 3565451.
10092, 3565423,
10093,3565397.
10094, 3565378.
10095, 3565351.
10096, 3565329.
10097, 3565309.
10098,3565289.
10099, 3565264.

848,4955338.607,1136.084,GS
533,4955333.228,1136.406,GS
753,4955325.866,1136.752,GS
178,4955325.369,1133.536, FL
758,4955319.404,1137.185,GS
290,4955313.064,1137.820,GS
986,4955312.690,1134.135,FL CLAYTILE
587,4955306.727,1138.579,GS TILELOCATE
300,4955302.554,1143.156,GRAV TILELOCATE
424,4955290.574,1138.590,GS TILELOCATE
019,4955286.765,1139.011,GS TILELOCATE
866,4955283.182,1135.009,FL CLAYTILE
296,4955266.202,1139.110,GS TILELOCATE
772,4955242.143,1139.197,GS TILELOCATE
815,4955214.997,1139.598,GS TILELOCATE
321,4955186.381,1134.776,FL CLAYTILE
652,4955135.716,1140.059,GS TILELOCATE
209,4955088.683,1140.156,GS TILELOCATE
525,4955054.809,1135.600,FL CLAYTILE
653,4955001.431,1140.339,GS TILELOCATE
131,4954952.822,1140.710,GS TILELOCATE
325,4954902.830,1140.750,GS TILELOCATE
542,4954853.682,1137.031,FL CLAYTILE
819,4954803.124,1141.305,GS TILELOCATE



10100,3565252.
10101,3565240.
10102,3565236.
.307,4954588.
10104,3565235.
10105,3565234.
10106,3565231.
10107,3565217.
.640,4954314.
10109,3565171.
10110,3565146.
10111,3565119.
10112,3565121.
10113,3565097.
.705,4954062.
10115,3565079.
10116,3565066.
.520,4953910.
10118,3565038.
10119,3565002.
10120,3564964.
10121,3564934.
10122,3564907.
10123,3564876.
.863,4953557.
10125,3564813.
10126,3564809.
10127,3564769.
10128,3564733.
10129,3564695.
.642,4953360.
10131,3564687.
10132,3564682.
.678,4953360.
10134,3564692.
10135,3564677.
10136,3564671.
10137,3564666.
10138,3564660.
10139,3564654.
10140,3564642.
.187,4953317.
10142,3564775.
10143,3564816.
10144,3564857.
10145,3564899.
10146,3564941.
10147,3564986.
10148,3565026.
.045,4953038.

10103,3565236

10108,3565193

10114,3565086

10117,3565055

10124,3564852

10130,3564693

10133,3564693

10141,3564754

10149,3565058

448,4954754.
400,4954696.
524,4954642.

342,4954533.
773,4954476.
017,4954423,
731,4954371.

144,4954261.
706,4954211.
778,4954161.
845,4954165.
830,4954113.

106,4954023.
636,4953961.

732,4953860.
611,4953804.
625,4953745.
660,4953697.
334,4953649.
272,4953598.

089,4953501.
851,4953498.
245,4953448,
509,4953405.
255,4953361.

783,4953303.
380,4953247.

110,4953350.
108,4953180.
462,4953125.
730,4953073.
381,4953015.
840,4952969.
041,4952910.

272,4953299.
172,4953266.
192,4953233.
285,4953198.
759,4953164.
832,4953125.
876,4953082.

322,1137.
042,1141.
945,1141.
135,1141.
782,1138.
864,1142.
931,1142.
299,1138.
388,1142.
682,1142.
090,1142.
427,1138.
824,1142.
928,1142.
124,1142.
407,1139.
846,1143.
425,1143.
034,1143.
031,1139.
651,1143.
373,1143.
142,1143.
358,1140.
865,1144.
928,1144.
147,1149.
975,1144.
729,1144.
066,1140.
090,1140.
911,1144.
698,1140.
260,1140.
256,1141.
151,1145.
891,1145.
©053,1145.
091,1141.
850,1145.
877,1141.
243,1144.
713,1144.
992,1143.
197,1143.
233,1143.
000,1144.
179,1140.
058,1144.
892,1144.

433,FL
408,GS
640,GS
788,GS
167,FL
144,GS
514,GS
540,FL
368,GS
282,GS
430,GS
956, FL
430,GS
708,GS
862,GS
120,FL
156,GS
303,GS
328,GS
664,FL
620,GS
606,GS
902,GS
204,FL
108,GS
421,GS
460, FL
532,GS
520,GS
614,FL
723,FL
487,GS
856, FL
726,FL

CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CONC TILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAY BRICKPLUG

455,TOP CLAYTILE

194,GS
382,GS
634,GS
382,FL
629,GS
592,FL
049,GS
079,GS
848,GS
815,GS
904,GS
304,GS
832,FL
276,GS
072,GS

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAY
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE



10150,3565088.
10151,3565112.
10152,3565145.
10153,3565171.
10154,3565197.
10155,3565228.
10156,3565263.
10157,3565300.
10158,3565331.
10159,3565227.
10160,3565334.
10161,3565372.
10162,3565404.
10163,3565437.
10164,3565474.
10165, 3565516.
10166, 3565553.
10167,3565592.

10168,3565627

10169,3565658.
10170,3565722.
10171,3565714.
10172,3565745.
10173,3565798.
10174,3565840.
10175,3565877.
10176,3565884.
10177,3565885.

10178,3564627

10179,3564612.

189,4952995.
102,4952957.
191,4952905.
988,4952857.
912,4952811.
293,4952772.
602,4952734.
606,4952697.
600,4952661.
739,4952773.
408,4952655.
405,4952607.
180,4952566.
517,4952522.
961,4952485.
223,4952452,
666,4952416.
854,4952376.
.403,4952341.
574,4952308.
871,4952296.
833,4952298.
392,4952288.
825,4952251.
716,4952220.
630,4952189.
160,4952187.
466,4952182.
.058,4952849.
931,4952802.

296,1144.
715,1140.
090,1144.
527,1144.
296,1144.
029,1144.
620,1144.
756,1144.
024,1144.
280,1140.
812,1141.
924,1145.
099,1145.
844,1145.
550,1141.
396,1144.
610,1144.
476,1141.
417,1144.
606,1145.
669,1144.
096,1144.
131,1141.
188,1146.
288,1147.
332,1143.
327,1144.
354,1144.
784,1145.
147,1146.

105,GS
765, FL
551,GS
369,GS
856,GS
828,GS
566,GS
903,GS
916,GS
885, FL
139, FL
048,GS
060, GS
000, GS
132, FL
566,GS
604,GS
242, FL
740,GS
412,GS
807,GS
766,GS
823,FL
713,GS
560, GS
842, FL
820, FL
918, FL
942,GS
266,GS

TILELOCATE
8"CLAY

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAY

8"CLAY

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"TILE

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
5"CLAY

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
S"CLAYTILE
S"CLAYTILE
S"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE

END

10180,3564585.
10181, 3564553.
10182,3564514.616,4952666.
10183,3564473.014,4952634.
10184,3564454.520,4952624.
10185,3564811.861,4953270.
10186,3564702.598,4953370.314,1144.
10187,3564549.245,4952701.856,1142.
10188,3564448.098,4952622.440,1142,
10189,3564387.233,4952600.823,1147.
10190,3564333.907,4952589.747,1147.
10191,3564271.586,4952576.848,1143.
10192,3564224.661,4952567.317,1148.
10193,3564158.566,4952554.094,1143.
10194,3564094.727,4952542.790,1148.
10195, 3564039.966,4952535.470,1148.
10196,3563983.353,4952524.047,1148.
10197,3563925.853,4952507.578,1144.
10198,3563884.253,4952494.279,1149.
10199,3563847.381,4952466.937,1149,

895,4952753.
773,4952705.

858,1146.
694,1147.
020,1147.
584,1147.
725,1147.
333,1140.

679,GS
096,GS
004,GS
343,GS
341,GS
632,FL
039,GS
228,FL
687,FL
582,GS
637,GS
204,FL
165,GS
662,FL
515,GS
680,GS
532,GS
079,FL
054,GS
196, GS

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
11"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE Y NORTH
8"CLAYTILE
8"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
8"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE



10200,3563824.
10201,3563785.
10202,3563751.250,4952356.
10203,3563740.120,4952343.
10204,3563695.134,4952291.
10205,3563662.740,4952252.
10206,3563648.482,4952235.
10207,3563612.365,4952193.
11000,3570993.170,4946913.
11001,3570955.176,4949557.
11002,3570507.053,4949459.
11003,3570512.542,4949472.
11004,3570513.246,4949474.
11005,3570514.565,4949477.
11006,3570521.957,4949506.
11007,3570524.640,4949521.
11008,3570512.540,4949536.
11009,3570508.894,4949557.
11010,3570512.103,4949577.
11011,3570508.745,4949612.
11012,3570524.788,4949610.
11013,3570525.102,4949611.
11014,3570527.130,4949611.

349,4952441.
477,4952396.

689,1144.
536,1149.
173,1148.
236,1145.
941,1149.
270,1149.
745,1145.
848,1149.
307,1189.
255,1168.
366,1163.
154,1158.
102,1158.
433,1163.
816,1162.
781,1158.
870,1159.
043,1169.
527,1158.
171,1157.
585,1156.
823,1156.
675,1156.

8"CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE

TILELOCATE

6"CLAYTILE

TILELOCATE

TILELOCATE

6"CLAYTILE

END TILELOCATE

GPS MON 8013

RR TRACKS CL 280TH
399,GS ABOVE TILE

374,8" CLAY TOP ©.71'TOPTOFL
277,top 8" hdpe tile

289,gs above tile

969, foc sign

500,GS ABOVE TILE

322,f1 box culvert

003,cl rr track

634,f1 box culvert

059,f1 8"hdpe sw intlet
206,top 8"*8" hdpe tee south
189,top 8"*8" hdpe tee north
383,top 8" hdpe

827,FL
073,GS
854,GS
029, FL
064,GS
326,GS
590, FL
717,GS
279, HC
508, CL

11015,3570524.
.436,4949612.

11016,3570525

11017,3570525.

606,4949609.

923,4949614.

591,1156.
707,1156.
617,1156.

252,top 8"
222,top 8"
223,top 8"

clay tile
clay tile
clay tile

11018,3570512.
11019,3570512.
11020,3570529.
11021,3570479.
11022,3570983.
12000,3570952.
12001,3570952.
12002,3570951.
12003,3570951.
12004,3570949.
12005,3570950.616,4960072.
12006,3570950.660,4960042.
12007,3570975.739,4960099.
12008,3571007.457,4960089.
12009,3571007.498,4960090.
12010,3571010.148,4960107.
12011,3571013.089,4960116.
12012,3571019.274,4960129.
12013,3571011.498,4960138.
12014,3571013.606,4960138.
12015,3571018.649,4960152.
12016,3571022.810,4960144.
12017,3571024.220,4960141.
12019,3570921.278,4960107.

518,4949570.
605,4949542,
397,4949606.
822,4949606.
968,4949698.
391,4960283.
000,4960254.
797,4960224.
489,4960195.
915,4960104.

383,1165.
544,1167.
591,1160.
350,1160.
972,1164.
819,1084.
380,1084.
934,1084.
495,1084.
045,1084.
607,1084.
703,1084.
922,1081.
453,1078.
743,1079.
614,1080.
327,1081.
534,1080.
554,1080.
720,1080.
967,1073.
466,1073.
431,1073.
898,1080.

549,cl hdwl box culvert
761,cl hdwl box culvert
326,wfp

667 ,wfp

387,cpt 12
147,8s FOC
170,gs FOC
302,gs FOC
341,8s FOC
348,gs FOC

ir 90.2'd
locate mark
locate mark
locate mark
locate mark
locate mark
310,gs FOC locate mark
143,gs FOC locate mark
562, fows heartiowa,minerva,radcliffe
820,wws irua

456,gs wl locate
115,gs wl locate
176,gs wl locate
050,gs wl locate
745,gs above tile
451,8s top bank

147,gs toe bank

376,gs toe bank

469,85 toe bank

037,g8s ditch @ lath



12021,3571040.
12022,3571031.
12023,3570996.
12024,3571006.
12025,3571025.
12026,3570984.
12027,3570951.
12028,3570951.

12029,3570955
12030,3570955
12031,3570955

12032,3570931.
12033,3570932.
12034,3570931.
12035,3571027.
20000,3576281.
20001,3576282.
20002,3576282.
20003,3576325.

20004 ,3576343

20005,3576338.
20006,3576294.

995,4960153.
730,4960145.
926,4960133.
373,4960136.
238,4960143.

994,4960129

687,4960163

274,4955013

562,1078.
120,1072.
145,1075.
620,1075.
522,1074.

.642,1081.
130,4960133.
096,4960162.
.732,4960168.
.453,4960125.
.707,4960076.
866,4960076.
528,4960108.
.677,1084.
708,4960135.
925,4955030.
596,4954998,

954,1084.
734,1084.
729,1084.
141,1084.
246,1083.
377,1084.
964,1084.

289,1073.
645,1091.
359,1091.

.809,1091.
999,4954931.
.904,4954907.
427,4954914.
514,4954863.

733,1090.
375,1090.
828,1090.
829,1089.

377,gs wl locate

748,gs fl creek

778,tile top 10" 0.91'toptofl
784,tile top 12"cmp 1.06'toptofl
574,tile top 12"cmp 1.02'toptofl
276,Gs above tile

280,8s FOC locate mark

325,8s FOC locate mark

135, eo0g

016, eog

948, eog

146, eog

098, eog

070, e0g

287,gs toe bank

220,EOA PARA RBC

248,EOA PARA RBC

256,BM DOT BRASS

095,TB START RIPRAP

361,TB END RIPRAP

642,TB CL BEAVER DAM

750,ROW RAIL N EDGE T



ARDIN COUNTY, IOWA

ki

S8 ENGINEER’S REPORT
. ON REPAIRS
TO MAIN TILE
DRAINAGE DISTRIC
NO. 86
HARDIN COUNTY,
IOWA

1HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
O, ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT [ AM A DULY
G OFESSIO) 4’% LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
St 0w o

F & - L < A o - A ;
%*--E:: LEE O, iR L 7/’/‘ b ‘i"’"\-/l//'/q 2 T) C‘('g 209
£ GALLENTINE [ E  |TUEG GALLENTINE, PE, 7 DATE
£-% 18748 JOF

B2H S%§  |LICENSE NUMBER: 15745

% S MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020

By, e PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:
K i “m@“‘ SHOWN ON TABLE OF CONTENTS

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES OFFICE LOCATIONS
16 East Main Street, PO Box 754 | Marshalltown, 1A 50158
1523 S. Bell Avenue, Suite 101 | Ames, 1A 50010
5106 Nordic Drive | Cedar Falls, 1A 50613
T 739 Park Avenue | Ackley, 1A 50601
ENMGINEERS « LARD (5

511 Bank Sireet | Webster City, [A 50595




Engineer's Report on Repairs
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 86
Hardin County, Iowa

Table of Contents Pg. 1
Report

Introduction Pg.
Partial District History Pgs.
Investigation Pg.
Discussion and Conclusions Pg.
Repair Methods Pgs.
Opinions of Probable Construction Costs Pg.
Ownership and Ciassifications Pg.
Recommendations Pg.
Appendices

July 17, 2019 Meeting Minutes App.
Investigation Summary for Work Order #252 App.
Map — Investigation Limits for Work Order #252 App.
Map — Detailed Investigation Limits App.
Project Dairy with Pictures App.
Map — Detailed Repair Location App.

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining App.
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement App.

1

IA\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Reporti6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin
Co) DD 86.docx

1
N

\D\OOGTJO\O'\UJI\J
=]

CTOHToOogaow e



Engineer's Report on Repairs
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 86
Hardin County, lowa

1.0 INTRODUCTION

SCOPE OF WORK — The Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District
Trustees, requested Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to investigate and report concerning
repairs to the Main tile of Drainage District No. 86. This report will summarize the history
of repairs, investigate the necessity and feasibility of said repairs, and present opinions of
probable construction costs associated with said repairs. At the Landowner Meeting held
on July 17, 2019, the preliminary results of the investigation for Work Order #252 were
discussed and reviewed by the District Trustees. For reference, a copy of the meeting
minutes is included in Appendix A and a copy of the Investigation Summary for Work
Order #252 (as discussed at the July 17, 2019 Landowner Meeting) is included in Appendix
B. As aresult of this meeting, the District Trustees requested Clapsaddle-Garber
Associates to move ahead with an investigation and report concerning repairs to the Main
tile.

LOCATION — The area of investigation for Work Order #252 was the portion of the Main
tile downstream from Dago Lake. After said Landowner Meeting, additional detailed
imvestigation was performed on the very lower portion of the Main tile. Said fower portion
is located in Section 13, Township 89 North (T89N), Range 21 West {(R21W), Hardin
County, Iowa. Specifically, the downstream limit of the detailed investigation was at the
current outlet of Main tile, approximately 100 feet south of Ellis Avenue and approximately
100 feet east of Sarah Avenue. Going upstream, the tile proceeds west generally paralleling
Ellis Avenue for approximately 800 feet. It then turns south and goes south for
approximately 200 feet where it crosses the former C&NW railroad. It then continues
south, with the upstream limit of the investigation ending approximately 300 feet south of
said railroad. For reference, a map showing the limits of detailed investigation is included
in Appendix D and a map showing the limits of investigation for said Investigation
Summary 1s included in Appendix C.

2

J\6789.3-DDV04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin

Co) DD 86.docx



2.0

PARTIAL DISTRICT HISTORY — The following is a summary of the partial history of

Drainage District No. 86 as obtained from the Hardin County Auditor’s drainage minutes and

records.

1909, Aug. 30
1915, Dec. 15
1916, Apr. 6
1916, May 16
1916, Jun. 5
No Date

1916, Jun. 20
1916, Jun. 27

1916, Jun. 30

1916, Jul. 25
1916, Jul. 27
[916, Oct. 7

1917, May 9
1917, Jun. 4

1917, Jul. 30

1917, Oct. 29

1917, Oct. 29

1918, Jan. 2
1918, Jan. 24
1918, Jun. 18

1953, Oct. 19
1953, Nov. 12
1954, Jan. 13

Application for establishment of Prainage District.

Petition for Drainage District.

Preliminary Engineer’s Report by J.H. Farrington.

Publication of Notice for hearing on establishment of Drainage District.
Claim for damages by Chicago & Northwestern Railway Company.,

Memorandum agreement between Hlinois Central Railroad Company and

. District Trustees.

Supplementary Engineer’s Report by J.H. Farrington.

Agreement with Chicago & Northwestern Railway Company and District
Trustees.

Publication of Notice to Contractors for construction of Drainage District
facilities.

Contract for tile bond with Eldora Pipe and Tile Co. for $1,869.95
Contract for Construction of Drains with Ole Johnson for $2,335.00

Appointment of Commission to inspect and classify lands within Drainage
District.

Termination of J.H. Farrington.

Report by landowner that “the intake at upper end of main is to high and allows

“Daga Lake™ to overflow manly as had as before tile was laid”.

Letter by Drainage Engineer W.S. Porter concerning the investigation of
Drainage District facilities. It recommends extending tile from the east side of
lake an additional 75 feet and making elevation of new tile the same as what
drains into lake,

Resignation of one of the members of the Commissioners to assessment of
benefits. '

Appointment of Commission to inspect and classify land within Drainage
District.

Appraisers report on assessments of benefits was filed.
Publication of Assessments of Benefits.

Objections in behalf of Chicago & Northwestern Railway Company “to the
location and establishment of drainage district”.

Bill of indebtedness for repair located in NW': Section 24, T8IN, R21W.
Bill of indebtedness for repair located in NWY4 Section 24, T89N, R21W.
Bill of indebtedness for repair located in NWY4 Section 24, T89N, R21W.

3

JA6789.3-DDVM-Design-Project Management\Engineering Reporti6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin

Co) DD 86.docx



1954, May 12

1960, Jun, 6
1963, Oct. 22

1965, Dec. 7
1966, Apr. 4

1967, Apr. 25
1967, May 2
1967, May 9-11
1973, Jun, 13
1973, Jun. 27
1973, Nov. 29
1974, Feb. 28
1974, Aug. 1
1974, Oct. 21

1974, Oct. 21-22
1976, Nov. 15
1979, Jul. 30

1979, Aug. 6
1979, Oct. 18-19
1984, Jun. 9

1984, Sept. 12

1984, Dec. 4

1992, Oct. 28
1993, Nov. 10

1994, Apr. 13
1997, Jun, 29

Request for repair located in Section 13, T8IN, R21W — “Outlet should be
extended and Rock channel filled. Probably a joint Project check up with Mr.
King”.

Bill of indebtedness for inspection of outlet.

Request for repair located Section 23, T8N, R21W — “north of Rock island
railroad east of small lake” — “inlet need possible work™.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Bill of indebtedness for “Re-lay county drain above bulkhead on McClure
Property in Towa falls south of Ellis Ave. per agreement” in Section 13, T8IN,
R2ZIW.

Request for repairs located NW¥% NW Section 24, T8IN, R21W.
Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Request for repair of 3 blowouts.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Request of repair of 3 broken tile located in Section 23, T89N, R21W.
Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Request for repair — “Haul dirt on ... repaired last spring” located in Section
23, T89N, R21W.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.
Request for repair — “Fix blow out” located Section 23, T8N, R21W.

Request for repair — “Repair tile between tracks” located in Section 24, T89N,
R21W.

Bill of indebtedness for repair.
Bill of indebtedness for repair.

Request for repair — “Outlet of Daga Lake is tipped on east side of Pond”
located in Section 23, TEIN, R21W.

Request for repair — “Main line tile is broken in road ditch @ intersection at
NW Cor. Sec. 35”7

Bill of indebtedness for repair of broken tile located in Section 23, T89N,
R21W.

Approval of repair of tile that is exposed located in Section 23, T8N, R21W.

Approval of request for repair tile “blowout” located in NE% NEY4 Section 23,
T8IN, R21W.

Approval of request for repair of broken tile.
Request for repair “Main Tile blocked” Section 13, T8IN, R2Z1W.

4

J\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin

Co) DD 86.docx



1997, Jul. 16
1998, Oct. 28

1999, Jun. 25
1999, Jul. 2
2007, Apr. 4

2008, May 7
2008, Jun. 18

2017, Feb. 27

Approval of request for repair “Tile plugged with roots south of railroad”.

Approval of request for repair “approx. 5 breaks in this tile line” located in
Section 23, T8ON, R21W.

Request for repair — “Main line is plugged” Section 13, TS9N, R21W.
Bill from Hydro-Klean — “Jet cleaned 167 field tile line approx. 600°

Request for repair “plugged 16” county tile on the south side of Georgetown
Rd.” located in Section 24, T8ON, R21W.

Request for repair — “2 blowouts™ located in NE% Section 23, T8ON, R21W.

Request for repair — “large pond in middle of property” located in Section 23,
T89N, R21W.

Request for repair — “tile area has progressively turned into a stream” due to
tree roots plugging tile located in Section 24, T8ON, R21W.

5

I\6789.3-DDV04-Design-Project Managemenf\Engineering Reporti6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin

Co) DD 86.docx



3.0

4.0

INVESTIGATION —A field investigation for the detailed investigation area was performed.
Said investigation was limited to locating Main tile (incleding GPS survey), noting the general
condition of the tile, and noting the extent that tree roots had invaded the tile and are restricting
drainage. For reference, a copy of the Project Dairy with pictures is included in Appendix E.

A field investigation was also performed for the portion of the Main tile downstream of Dago
Lake, including the detailed investigation area. Said investigation was limited to noting the
existence of trees along the assumed Main tile route. For reference, a copy of the Investigation
Summary for Work Order #252 is included in Appendix B.

The remaining investigation was limited to review of the district history. Said review shows that

there have been several repairs since the district was originally constructed. Some of the

noteworthy ones include:

o In 1997 and 1999, landowners reported that the Main tile was plugged and full of tree roots in

e In 1966, the main tile upstream of the bulkhead south of Ellis Avenue was relaid per “the
agreement”.

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS — Based on the above, it is obvious that the Main tile
has a history of tree roots invading the tile. This is especially true in or near areas that haven’t
been actively maintained by private landowners, such as railroad right of way. This has a
detrimental impact on the drainage capacity of the Main tile as the tree roots not only reduce the
cross-sectional area of the tile, they also cause drainage to slow, which encourages siltation of the
tile.

Also, the following key items from the investigation should be noted:

¢ It appears that the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks is severely plugged
with trees roots for approximately 190 feet and is not draining. Instead, this area is relying
solely on overland drainage through an existing beehive intake when the tile becomes
surcharged.

o It appears that the Main tile under the former C&NW railroad tracks is not severely plugged
with tree roots as it is draining.

¢ There are over 200 trees within 50 feet of the assumed Main tile route downstream of Dago
Lake.

e The 1966 “agreement™ was not investigated as to ownership of the resulting pipe or the
current users of the same as it appears to be draining.

If repairs are not performed, the Main tile will not properly drain any of the land upstream of the
former C&NW railroad tracks due to its current tree root infested state, In addition, there are
several locations downstream of Dago Lake that have trees close enough to the Main tile to likely
impede drainage. When combined, these issues will probably prevent or hinder crop production
on a portion of the upstream area which is the majority of the district.

6

J\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin
Co) DD 86.docx



5.0

REPAIR METHODS - To repair the existing Main tile, the following options are the most

straightforward available:

Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining

[}

For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove trees as needed to access the Main tile.

For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove tree roots from the existing Main tile by either jetting
cleaning or mechanical cuiting.

For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, prevent roots from infiltrating the Main tile again by installing a
CIPP liner. Typically, existing private and district tile could be reinstated after the lining
has been completed.

For reference, the detaiied location of the proposed work near the C&NW railroad tracks
is shown on the map included in Appendix F.

For the remainder of the Main tile between Dago Lake and the former C&NW railroad
tracks, verify the Main tile route and remove any trees within 50° of the Main tile.

For reference, the assumed Main tile route is shown on the map included in Appendix C
and further information concerning these trees is included in the copy of the Investigation
Summary for Work Order #252 included in Appendix A.

Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement

For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove trees within 50” of the Main tile.

For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove and replace the existing Main tile with replacement Main
tile of equal or comparable size. Typically, the replacement Main tile would be in the
same location as the existing Main tile in order to locate and reconnect private and
district tile.

For reference, the detailed location of the proposed work near the C&NW railroad tracks
is shown on the map included in Appendix F.

For the remainder of the Main tile between Dago Lake and the former C&NW railroad
tracks, verify the Main tile route and remove any trees within 50° of the Main tile.

For reference, the assumed Main tile route is shown on the map included in Appendix C
and further information concerning these trees is included in the copy of the Investigation
Summary for Work Order #252 included in Appendix A.

With the above-mentioned repair methods, the following should be noted:

Due to history of trees in the vicinity, the Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile
Replacement option would use gasketed pipe to slow future root infiltration.

The Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement option would use rock bedding and
backfill for strength due to soil cover and soil characteristics.

In the area of pipe replacement, the Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement
option would require future monitoring for additional tree growth and root infiltration.

It is assumed that for the Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement option, the
existing tile is in good enough physical condition to withstand jetting and root cutting and
no spot repairs are needed.

~

J\6789.3-DDN04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Reporty6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin

Co) DD 86.docx



¢ Inthe area of pipe lining, the Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining option
would not allow drainage of the adjacent soil.

e The Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining option would require
installation of 2 access manholes in the area of repair.

e The Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining option would only require
removal of trees to allow installation of the access manholes.

e For the Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement option, the pipe sizes used are
those that are currently manufactured that most closely meet or exceed the current Main
tile size.

¢ All of the above options would only remove obstrictions in the Main tile at locations of
proposed tile replacement or tile lining. Any obstructions at other locations would
remain in the existing Main tile.

e Repairs have historically been viewed as not having an impact on jurisdictional wetlands.
As such, individual landowners should consult with applicable staff at the Hardin County
NRCS office to verify the existence of said jurisdictional wetlands and that there will be
no impact on them.

Per [owa Code Chapter 468.126, any of the above actions that do not increase capacity would be
considered a repair. As such, Subsection 1, paragraph ¢ of Chapter 468.126 states "If the
estimated cost of the repair does not exceed fifty thousand dollars, the board may order the work
done without conducting a hearing on the matter. Otherwise, the board shall set a date for a
hearing. . ." The opinion of probable construction cost contained in the next section of this report
exceeds said $50,000 limit. Therefore, a hearing will be required. Per Iowa Code Chapter
408.126.1.g, the right of remonstrance does not apply to the proposed repairs.

OPINIONS OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS — Using the above methods of
repair, an itemized list of project quantities and associated opinions of probable construction cost
for each option were compiled and are included in Appendices G and H of this report. A
summary of said costs are as follows:

REPAIR METHOD DRAINAGE | CONSTRUCTION
COEFF. COST
Partial Tree Removal, Root Cutting, and Tile Lining Existing $£93.,940.63
Full Tree Removal and Partial Tile Replacement Existing $93,006.25

It should be noted that said costs include materials, labor, and equipment supplied by the
confractor to complete the necessary repair and include applicable engineering, construction
observation, and project administration fees by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates. However, said
costs do not include any interest. legal fees. county administrative fees, crop damages, other
damages, previous repairs, engineering fees to date, wetland mitigation fees, or reclassification
fees (if applicable). As always, all costs shown are opinions of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates
based on previous lettings on other projects. Said costs are just a guideline and are not a
guarantee of actual costs.

8

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Hardin
Co) DD 86.docx



7.0

8.0

OWNERSHIP AND CLASSIFICATIONS — Any and all information concerning ownership
of lands and classifications of said lands within Drainage District No. 86 can be obtained from the
Hardin County Auditor’s office.

It should be noted that Iowa Code Chapter 468.65 states “When, after a drainage . . . district has
been established . . ." and ". . . a repair . . . has become necessary, the board may consider
whether the existing assessments are equitable as a basis for payment of the expense of . . .
making the repair . . . " and "If they find the same to be inequitable in any particular . . . they shall
. .. order a reclassification . . . " Based on this, it is our opinion that a reclassification may be
required if the repair were to move forward.

RECOMMENDATIONS — There is a definite need to perform one of the above-mentioned

actions. The repair would remove the identified current and future restrictions and impediments

to the Main tile and extend the serviceable lifespan of the same. Therefore, it is recommended

that the Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District Trustees, should take action to

accomplish the following:

e Approve the Engineer’s Report as prepared by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.

o  Hold the required hearing on the proposed repairs.

* Adopt one of the recommendations of the Engineer’s Report.

e Direct plans and specifications for the proposed repairs be prepared by Clapsaddle-Garber
Associates.

° Proceed with receiving bids from interested contractors by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.
Award contract to the lowest responsible contractor.

e Ifdesired or required by Iowa Code, proceed with reclassification proceedings.

9

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6789.3 - Engineer's Report (Iardin
Co} DD 86.docx



DD 86 LANDOWNER MEETING MINUTES
JULY 17, 2019

747/2019 - Minutes

. Open Meeting

Hardin County Board of Supervisars Chairperson, Renee McClellan, opened the meeting. Also present were
Supervisors Lance Granzow and BJ Hoffman; Landowner John Nissley; Lee Gallentine and Zeb Stanbrough with
Clapsaddle-Garber Assaciates (CGA); Drainage Clerk, Becca Junker.

. Approve Agenda
Granzow moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the agenda as provided. All ayes. Mation carried.

. Approve Claims For Payment

Hoffman maved, Granzow seconded to approve the claims for payment with pay date of Friday, July 18, 2019. All
ayes. Motion carried.

DD 22- Construction Phase Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc 456.7

DD 78 - Invesligation of ponding Clapsaddle-Garber Assac 365.2

DD 86 - Inv. outlet sfructure, trees and siltation Clapsaddie-Garber Assoc 352.2

DD 9 - Hearing for Eng Rpt & Supp Eng Rpt for Main Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc 1118.8
DD 38 - Finalization of repair to lat 4 Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc 308.7

DD 52 - Communicating with Shawn Piel The Davis Brown Law Firm 40

DD HF 5-75 - Notice of Public Hearing Times Citizen 97.76

. Introductions/Aftendance
Introductions were made and attendance verified.

. Explanation Of Investigation Report

Nissley explained he was representing Grove Revocable Trust, he went on ta say that there was work done in this
district a few years ago and he is concerned with the talk of another project. He went on to express his concerns
over the investigation report saying, "friend of Monarch pond landowner reported”, Granzow clarified that although
the fiiend spoke, the owner was also present at the meeting. The meeting was turned over to Gallentine who
explained his findings from the investigation report. Gallentine explained that there is already restricted drainage
in the Main tile because of the trees. CGA's suggestion is to have all the trees within 50" of the Main tile
downstream of Dago Lake be removed, following the removal of trees it is recomimended to find out the condition
of the tile. He went on to explain that his estimated cost for tree removal is betwaen $25,000- $40,000, which is
low encugh that neither a hearing nor an engineer's report would be required.

Granzow then asked what it would cost to cut and dig the trees and replace the file. Gallentine explained that it is
in the railroad right of way so by the time the trees are removed, and the pipe is replaced it could easily be $80-
$100 per foot plus the fees from the railroad. McClellan asked if Canadian National was easier to deal with and
Gallentine explained that they have a new point of contact that he has not worked with yet. He further went on to
say that there is no way to give a firm estimatad cost without doing an engineer's repori.

. Comments/Discussion

None.

. Possible Action

Hoeffinan moved, MeClellan secanded bo Instruct CGA 1o further investigate and create an engineers repor,
priprtizing araas for concerm by televlsing in (evieres, All ayes, Mation carriad,

. Other Business

None.



9. Adjourn Meeting )
Hofiman moved, Granzow seconded to adjourn the mecting. All ayes. Motion carried.



Date:

Work Order #:
Drainage District:
Sec-Twp-Rge:
Location/GIS:
Requested By:
Contact Phone:
Contact Email:

Landowner (if different}:

-Description:

Repair labor, materials and equipment:

4/29/2019

Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

WOo00000252

DDs\DD 86 (511.14)

Gitr Sec:

Aaron Matthews

IDD 86 - Outlet structure on Matthews property is bécbmi.ng washed out with ponding "
|

probelms

Repaired By:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to;

For Office Use Only

Date:

Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Brainage Clerk

1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627

Phone (641) 933-8111

Fax (641)939-8245

Approved:

Date:




Drainage District:
86

Investigation Report:
e Friend of Monarch pond landowner reported erosion around Monarch pond outlet structure and siltation from
adjoining properties located in NW% of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 21 West.

® Met with friend, visually observed Monarch pond area, and found the following:

e Erosion of Monarch pond outlet/district tile inlet appears to be solely affecting decorative field stone in area

and does not appear to be endangering district facility.
e Sand washing onto Moenarch pond property is from surface water south of railroad tracks and from field to
the west (both are within district boundaries).

o Visuadlly seéarched area along Main tile route downstream {to end of mapped Main tile) and upstream {to Dago

Lake) and found the following trees to be within approximately 50" of assumed Main tile route.

o 20 - Maples (less than 6”9)
1 - Maple (5’9 or larger)
40 - Box Elders and Mulberries {less than 12”@} in Railroad Right of way
3 - Cottonwood [30”® or larger)
1 - Elm (12"¢)
5 - Elms and Ash (less than 12”@)
14 - Box Elders and Honeysuckle Brush {less than 15”®)
31 - Box Elders (20”9)
15 - Box Elders and Elderberry Brush (less than 6”¢%)
24 - Box Elders and Ash (20”@)
o 50 - Box Elders and Ash (less than 15”¢)

Said trees appear to be impeding drainage as there are intakes downstream of Georgetown Road that are full
of stagnant water and surrounded by siltation {evidence of overflow).

¢ 0 ¢ o 0 0O 0 O ¢

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site):

None as only investigation was performed

Additional Actions Recommended:

All the trees fisted above are the species that typically have major negative impacts on the capacity of district tile.
It is CGA’s opinion that they already have restricted the drainage the Main Tile and will fully plug it if allowed to
continue to grow. Therefore, it is our recommendation that the Main tile route be verified, all trees within 50" of
the Main tile downstream of Dago Lake be removed, and the drainage capacity of the Main tile reinstated. It is-our
opinion that the cost of verifying the Main tile route and removing these trees would be between $25,000-
$40,000. This cost is low enough that neither a hearing nor an engineer’s report would not be required. However,
the extent of restriction in the Main tile and appropriate corrective actions cannot be identified until the-trees are
removed. Therefore, an opinion of probable construction cost cannot be generated for this portion of the
recommended work.

Also based on the above, the siltation of concern is carried by surface water between private landowners and is
not a district issue.

1:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering
Report\6789.3 - INVESTIGATION_ REPORT.docx



COMNSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: ] of Jo /150
e

OBSBRVATION REPORT [ _
- DAYS OF WEEEK: ' e |

PROICCT NUMBHR: -]_LL_I_I‘_]S T [WIAHE |5

| ©799,3 SHEET NO. L OF
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD: o 2 OE s

- ON&G ) -
LOCATION: 1 — (
'?HJJU; @(' L{)}Nf Féﬁm M’

DESCRIFITON OF WORK. AND MATERIAL USED ¥ OR. EACH OFERATION, INCLIDING CONTRACTOR/SUI

NAME, ITEM NO._AND LOCATION i
Mo A megr coms Abron, Warresa = s P
@ Mownzen Love, He wre Veny Conceonen Beoor - ELX
HE SUERLE LWpdhl Cominoe o ThRe RE direer oro / QR s yooms m“‘f’&"“m"‘z’f“‘

. : x
Sourt B0 or Newarod Loge Mo Wspine Sewun . Auso i

|
[
o oF Sukehee (arsa Comuesd, Fom (,drzs.-'t:“m Figag - . 4
i
[‘\Mﬂm didatr T MEsNES To  Tlhd Bon FouR, Mndingy -
= Come Dﬁﬂ;{; < @
Thfc Eurn + Coric :

HO< Iz N Gmpe TRACS 57
L= \ '%!
(e To Cunetr vl

—— e ey

P y e riE R @é' O

-

Wt

B
[}
1
[}
£
g
K
%
3

o
fi" h{ !7 . - .M/W /\OEEF’““*:FELOS"DHE JAP TR,

VO e — = P e Cooner o o)
I i | R R PO R
) ) ﬁw"‘},_., b - 4; /;u2 T Drcomtmys P Sow L QUET Ao
‘(“"‘”4,5‘;{: e {W of _ Llanmo To Koo 16 i Tive mls Sreeo Dir
\ - — T/(/*/ ' ' : Encvcn To_many B Tis Sk cdnmt, 5=

\,0 / L/ VS Y y 7};._.-. b iT LodST Ano cuasndi ORJM_QE&@&:QL_
?;v—f - / \%\ He Thoucr Toa Tk Shoud Br "ggpglgm" To WMEET JLOEE
W2, o ‘.,m"m..mﬁ, ﬁﬁ roegps, X dow’t T He Kwp%w
Yg@}g’ sp'"‘)mm::jﬂdwm - 7 Biz_ Kk Tice
;i{:slﬁ’{ e f—‘n’)‘l“' }\ To_Car e gr F)ﬂ;ﬁz Qm %am.ﬁms

T Certify that the work described in this report was incorporated fufo this contract inless ofhetwise noted.
Obgetver’s Signaine; : Date Prepared: g

Reviewsd by: . ‘ 7 . ) D EQngBer

i

" Date Revipwed

UsersRylten Standard Forme and Procedures\Company Fomas\Construetion Enginsering Observation Repor: (1)



CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE:

OBRSERVATION REPORT :
DAYS OFWHK: S M T W T F IS
PROJECT NUMBER: - . &
67593 SHEATNO. 50 L OF
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD: - @ : =
LOCATION: ‘ ; '

DESCRIFTION COF WORK. AND MATERIAL USED F OR EACH DPER&TION INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUI
NAME, TTEM NO. AND LOCATION

. ~ VN “'\/“ _ 7

KW— T L V"V bl / -) )
¥ = ORI Asyy - 24
R oy Foxe/po )@ 2o
. iy w(@:%ﬂ' vl
' : Y i, ‘\(;;u) B fo- AT 26
. ! )
. 1! ~'
R T T
) =
| i t
e i : -
s - s —
' S Yzt b
,5 J\ an(aor 4 ‘({5 Q ﬁ”:}‘ !
S o O T
1 5" L 1
R s L Bresht Elodd peee-)
Now ‘ e R

e =Ry .

- 1L aptteehoe , Fuoe of conter
b TTur s Plocer O dowins
T STRESM 118 W2k &

l | (’h“f hovatll &H G '|:¢;“, sE L BTRE
, A }
I “)l,i ab E / ‘!
t I ’ /
f = L
— o d.
e =V ]}_ L ——_

GemeETowss  Fon 0

FE;tafy that the work descnbed m ﬂ:us report was fncorporated mfo this cotdrtact wiless ofhetwise notedd.

(Observer’s Signature: S é lgg(_\,( Y é Date Prepated: i %
Reyiewed by: . . DE‘ugmeﬂr .

" Date Reviswed

UserRyken Skmdard Fornms and Proosdures\Company Forms\Cozrsimmetion Engineeting Observation Report (1}



-3




Lt LlesT freown lOrmrcy 76 Doco [are.







INTAKE o TiLE @ E. Ervp o Moroagdd LAKE.
M “'\."‘_" [ b b 1
R

L)
Tk

l .'Ilt-

=
L

Th e i
Al | A




Lomart W0, Fom 1oTRIE




Sueepck drenrace Trem S, RR @ mornnci Lo e

% E i EI'| ‘ 3 1 % o - .--.r"nl'
U e e R i ; 2.




N.RLLRR @ 8

-
e
=]

.-.':.I.'...I -







= v T FRe= R
‘ AL ) 1 b\, o TR

Lenornae Upsieemm From S.coe RR To Ceoscetown Ronn




coscrsts AownsmErm @ RR MmAULE , Suefrck Tore detivs 1T
L% e, ,.":._ (i 1 ety |.JI .I&.T\l_'; y = :




Tuke. TuguTo Emst

£




LT







besigee vpsmream Faom Ciy Stwoam Seever. @uTes




IR 16 N TREES  SOME covherit.

[T T T ] [ 1 Wy




4
!

i—-ODi(yu;_; dt_";u_aMS TTEAM \_/Qum




wheee Suarmnce warre. Domps oo TTL.E_(I;"" Sthwun G On rr)

¥ S 1 1 ki ke e I [ AL iy I o
| 7% SRS A S

Lookust  « NP BTTUEAN s




Leciynte WOSTREAM Town




et T
i )

— Ty :I-:t-—F:_T?_h'F'I‘f'




Qo.ma MmPRIED LITH Droxew TiLE

--. ;-:‘q\_-\b _-" ?"T'h" ! 9 ] 1oy _:\I:T‘FFIL" .‘I




T‘LE_ Qouw_ L FE CWARDS 1n TREE \Qoa's
\“\\ § I 1'"". PN T -

=
b

£y
P



Tiwe CHpads THAY B0 ERRERRY [BRusy

— | > ""-"I 3




TE r?sqﬁwe_ Hreces d.\csc_mxom
—~— ~:_,.r e T : T




PeErhOE Ouafe_mou)wo @ NE con oF GesreeBorn Do

u:=""'

fw 7







1 &LUEn

S LT

GETOw Ro




L ocacynae dovro TR EAN




12" Phex Inmanee. Fouw. oF WaTER ) Szl )aoG:







L 1\?‘1‘)‘

N, @ GCrRERGTTOW

L) LV

TE-

Lookrnse W, & e RLU




i s e By
+ < Tregs o . ;
®_RR G N 606 Monacslikty LF '-U"'i vl
L eopacs \NOSTRELIN @ . i W R g e i P e (A
_ R U5

N




-y




Lookyele CoronuStzemsn WiTh D D MAPE THar NEEDS REmovED
; NI W & I R y -

Y N ._.1; 't
., ™ \ Mt‘ Ty
~ T e Hid
i o | \,w:t i 4

4 i




2AR7T OF
: nvesT/ga U/ dn

DRTIIFGE DISTLICT /YO BE 4
FTLELNY COLNYTY /4. 0 T ity Eor
T Wg #2852

AL AT TN, ENGE AW SLG N W
o

i i [
. ,
—[ Harrett Stayt | ‘ Seaje MiGao
[ E:ﬁrﬁ_:ﬁ!- i I Foie ‘}' orr |
e - |
= = : Abbie Foatar
| :
I Rabunf 5 :
__r f_‘é""-#—-.___'_-‘- Tr't".{:g . —
ﬁ."‘"‘"""‘\, . ""‘{—H"I__j__ E &"l i"mr‘ﬂ_“‘ ... :
. - I T |
R L e
A { ':I"q'.:.t'.l'"l:'lh:'r-—- :::: - jl . = -
o | |
AATITH Whrter ST I ’
A e — — = ;
( G A Wiswer|| € -
1 i

& T ,lhl ¥ .

A | o
#L Bt Ll oL LT
) '\% = a # | i

I
e et

RS e e P o et |
A

5 mdeerss
=

Wisner Goilman A, Wisher

| Range 219

225
&




JAVIT8. 300w s Tonography AT 89.3TCP.dug « Plan = 12-02-19 - 2:425m - 2J5343

LEGEND: ' : : -
m==s mms  ASSUMED CITY STORM SEWER (LOCATED)
mess mmm  CITY STORM SEWER OR DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE FLLIS AVE
(REQUIRES ADDITIONAL RESEARCH) ' R
E=ms mmm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (LOCATED) ., jfi HANETART. MANHOLE sSescg
mess mmm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (FROM RECORD DRAWINGS) T —— — Wy : 5
| mmms mmm DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (ABANDONED 1966) flm < s o AP,

| s sanommmm CITY SANITARY SEWER (LOCATED)
{  —————  PROPERTY LINE (PER GIS)
- B e ra :

rl :I;:-_-::‘__ E‘?i:l__ﬂ i3 _ 3 o i 1 i il ! =
» Il .._:__._‘. . Fal ' 3 tr |-" _:._-. ¥ A 'f:
pe | = = : | !
' r Lo =1 d8% RCF ¥ 1l f
9 {FL = 102350 ) e ' f
¥ .I F

1 W (7
A P I
L "' J * ! A
Y F - | ta ” [
a i el " ‘-|1 | I- ¥ [
- L ] J . ] I
2 / 13 & I ']
e — ] A
: ' 5 P A ’
b3t L o |
= ! e i 1
e 4 i o STORM BEEHIVE | = F W J
2] Ay Rt TR | ] b o =
L]

o SANITARY MANHOLE _q__*mwwr & iy } Tl 10
I-:(_JF‘.'MER l:'—l'l,w,ﬁ@ﬁ Al f i

. D NORTHWES TERN

“—— RCP CLLYERT

RANLROAD i ==
‘_i primny [ ‘Ir.'j_:ll:.IémI : .;_\ ! ||.:J TR ———

GEEHIVE INTAKE ——

i : 4 T 1.. W . . A ¥
I b o — ! _§<
&
il
! "
o 1 l ; tn -
o - =
GRAPHIC SCALE . REVISION EY DATE HO. REWISION BY DATE Clapsaddlc-Garher Associates. e | DESIGNED: FAE) DAIL: Z01911-04 DRAINAGE DI S TRICT # 8 6 m]g;;g
DRAWN: 25 DATE: _2015-11-04 5
i) A0 80 Toll Free (806) 8457881 CHEGKED: LOG DATE: _2019-11-04 HA IN IOWA DETAILED INVESTIGATION MAP SHEET ND1.
rrw.cgaconsultants.com APPROVED: LG DATE: 20131104 RD >




. Project Diary

" 7roject: Main Tile Repairs Drainage District No.

Days Report i. .
CGAPN: ¢789.2. Char;ed: NA N%. I Prol. Wgr. ¥
Contractor: _ NR Date: 9 /z¢ /|55 CAUNTINE
Superintendent: Weather Conditions: Precip.: Temp. Hi: g °
NA Crenr (&) Temp. Low: 75 °
INSPECTOR: Contractor;
Time Arrived: .20 Time Left: 2100 .| Time Arrived: Time Left:

1. General Remarks and Work Accomplished: SETR aal ept * 3280, WA Cor. X
WewT To Outuer @ HR'RepP “34978. At /8 Tik LocaroR vpsteeam Tgueros MM 347

Gt win GRS, T FOHTY, Wewt weaT T Besmue #8487, Rr s Locarat downoweam (£.)
To 1!’3“135. Founo et Tie crme e on W, St o RR CASING @' §, pFmin *3:;57. '7"@,50
13 LooaTh v Tua Livn, Courd ony GaT 2' X, most BR Ripaw, WEWT RExT Ta

Hhed I on Gupy Thae @ 349) , LocareD with Came N4+ . Ao Blso PRepes Tiue

Comnsanion (Buamp) @ 3812 i 48" Rep. GoT Mac Reporme @ possize MALIO €
asiz., Conoer New HMA Roao) For At Fropocrs . Te @ Mt 83487 18 RunminG 870
To  ouner, BekHive IwTAKE @ 3503 15 FouTe Groune Ev.

Acvion sP1y Rep FRom 8487 dowmsmean (cAsue Ran inmo Brocscs @ sues)

TGN Ao, or RepuncE Tice Fron 8995 - 3503
GRemove A TRres v Tiw Roum,

A |

To Reewmuw MelOoumws Sy @ #3603 A, Wewy NexT 7o /M. #8518 | LoenTeD .+ N|. 7

C 2. %anges or Extra Work Ordered:
Cutan MR 8818, gncs AnD Loes /n M Brovume Fiow
B) Meeo Svasack motake To Pl up WATRR Acows SURFIcR Swack Koo, (ciry) T
E"’Pf‘“"“‘j /N fhrxine Lot ArerA

3. Test Samples Taken:

4, Visitors to Site:

5. Other Work Crews or Project (utilities, subcontractors, etc.) and Work Done:

e5p

6. Attachments (tdtal sheets attached 0 ):

Ramoy B3, Cris S,

By:
Clapsaddie-Garber Associates, Inc. Inspe¥ior

Consulling Engineers Distribution: Project Mgr. (Original), Inspector (Copy)

P.O. Box 754
Marshalitown, 1A 50158 Form 9753



Project Diary (continued)

Report
No. |

cGapN; &787.2

Date: 9/z¢/\4

1. Generail Remarks and Work Accomplished (Continued):

2 v\___‘m CHSNG

L RR Bérm
T

.. } 7_

"-—*—"‘-—-’\_— —AS— é Beek TR 3503
{ 3502 M. Rwn

i
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates? i
Consulting Engineers

P.C.Box 754

Marshalftown, 1A 50158



3477,3651680.
3478,3651680.
3479,3651354.
3480,3651355.
3481,3651364.
3482,3651369.
3483,3651379.
3484,3651433
3485,3651431.
3486,3651433.
3487 ,3651436.
3488,3651431.
3489,3651456.
3490,3651297.
3491,3651297.
3492,3651360.
3493,3651347.
3494,3651376.
3495,3651389.
3496,3651275.
3497,3651275.
3498,3651249.
3499,3651235.
3500,3651212.
3501,36511.84.
3502,3651109.
3503,3651108.
3504,3651101.
3505,3651407.
3506,3651420.
3507,3651463.
3508,3651510.
3509,3651565.
3510, 3651610,
3511,3651650.
3512,3651694.
3513,3651397.

440,4983104.

313,4983105

081,4982314.
160,4982314.
616,4982315.
515,4982315.
609,4982315.
.008,4982441,

455,4982473

578,4982388.
488,4982317.
921,4982296.
960,4982549.
162,4982307.
027,4982307.
122,4982309.
395,4982310.
522,4982311.
767 ,4982311.
255,4982308.
184,4982308.
013,4982309.
237,4982310.
757,4982312.

503,4982315

137,4982314.
629,4982313.
068,4982315.
060,4982698.
308,4982970.

129,4982973

313,4982976.
740,4982979.
135,4982981.
538,4982985.
518,4982988.
016,4982969.

6789 dd86 9-26-19RB

455,1078.
.608,1073.
182,1086.
183,1089.
482,1091.
581,1091.
031,1089.
711,1088.
.316,1089.
.327,GS STORM LOCATE
765,1087.
898,10838.
944,1088.
748 ,1087.
497,1085.
657,1020.
398,1086.
324,1089,
278,1089,
771,1088.
284,1088.
842,1089.
759,1089.
685,1088.
.255,1088.
245,1088.
740,1085.
033,1089.
344,1088.
309,1084.
.477,1084,
-181,ECQA STORMLOCATE
843,1085.
047,1085.
129,1085,
143,1084.
243,1085.

504,1088

162,1085

355,TOP RCP OUTLET
799, FL RCP

545,FL CASING

612, TOP CASING

678, TOP RR RAIL
676,TOP RR RAIL
631, TOP RCP

871,GS STORM LOCATE
120,GS STORM LOCATE

828,S RIM BEEHIVE
592,S RIM MH
684,BLDG COR E-N

020,65 1'E OF HICK INTK/TILE

007,FL CLAYTILE
503,GS TILE LOCATE
973,GS TILE LOCATE
935,E0G TILE LOCATE
232,GS TILE LOCATE
404,GS TILE L.OCATE
482,GS PRORED TILE

084, GS
114,65
970,GS
984, GS

PROBED TILE -3.0
PROBED TILE -3.0
PROBED TILE -3.0
PROBED TILE -3.0

881,N RIM BEEHIVE
078,FL TILE

399,GS TREELN

055,N RIM MH -11.5FL
316,GRAV STOSMLOCATE
120, GRAV STORMLOCATE

831,HMA STORMLOCATE
829,HMA STORMLOCATE
340,HMA STORMLOCATE
778 ,HMA STORMLOCATE
472 N RIM MH-5.4FL

Page 1












Loowroe w. (vpswepm) @ mi #3513




Lot N, (domsmssw)(_e mu #3513
i 5 - -IL.,';"——_'__ A5 ﬂlﬁ




ya'

l

" “'M‘E ar '?é’f"% (@ ReeL.







5
g
8
x
g
2
\W.
{
Y
N
W
Y
g
§




3
§
&
¥,
Q
g
LA
S
g
5
Q
20
9
Q
Q
Q
V]
2
L




quwa. esy Frem mMH* 3487




M # 2457

']







i
!
3




LEGEND: . i |

mems me=  ASSUMED CITY STORM SEWER (LOCATED)
m==s mss  CITY STORM SEWER OR DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE ELLIS AVE,
(REQUIRES ADDITIONAL RESEARCH) R -
sems msm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (LOCATED) SAITATY MANTDLE il : : -
EEmS EEE  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (FROM RECORD DRAWINGS) R T
wews S == DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (ABANDONED 1966) U PRl |
e A : , 1

DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (TO BE REPAIRED)
mmms SAN mmmm CITY SANITARY SEWER (LOCATED)
———  PROPERTY LINE (PER GIS)

s sy T

| s

B i ta “r g I P 4_3:'@ R o
i eyl l. y 4 ; { ._‘*— T ad | il £ 52 / 'iﬁ-’
b : . | W || r i, ' Y 4 ] b
s ¥ i I .I rN I s .f _—
L 1 t. i e || ¥ F ‘ X ! e Ak

N o
| i |
‘ ' - | N

|
i

1 & ; -
l : fl
i { |
Fx i 4 i I e | ;
J . i E i |

" LSTORM BEEHIVE | =y
INTAKE | \
+ _] T y %

SANITARY MANHOLE -

L]
A
-l
|
L)
| i
i) .I
|
L]
|
w

. MANHQLE;_-"__%

Y= STORM MANHOLE

—— RCP CLILVERT

10 NORTHWES TERN RAILROAD

Iy Tl .
| HICKENBOTTOM INTAKE o
AF

¥ . 3 i

| LATERAL 3 TiLE \ |
go  m— | E— -

G789, 3-00NdwpsiDesigrheT89.3_TOPQ_ENGINEER_REPORT.dwg - Plan - 12-02-19 - 2:50pm - 2J5343

EEEHIME INTAKE —"
N
0
i | | o
| et =
- L ¥ J
P 0. REVISION. BY TAIE O, REVISIN BY TATE Chapsaddic-Garber Assaciaics, Tne | DEGIGNED: 215 DATE: ZOIB] T ” ; PROLECT 0
s ____one zena [ JRAINAGE DISTRICT #86 6703
b 0 o = [ CHECKED: 106 DATE: _2012-11-04 LA IN. IOWA DETAILED REPAIR MAP SREETRD. |
B wwcgaconsuliz.com APPRDYED: LOG, DATE: _2018-11-04 RD 5 1




AN

Engineer's O
Project: Main Tile Repair for D.D. #86
Location: Section 13, TOON, R22W Hardin County, lowa

inion of Probable Construction Cost

By: Z.J.S.
Date: 11/8/2019
Checked By: L.O.G.
Date: 12/2/2019

ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Cost Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost
DISTRICT CONSTRUCTION COSTS
1 ROOT CUTTING (18") $ 15,00 | LF 190 LF | & 2,850.00
2 CIPP TILE LINING (18") $ 10000 | LF | 190 LF | 3 19,000.00
3 LATERAL 3 REINSTATEMENT $ 500.00 | EA 1 EA | $ 500.00
4 PRIVATE TILE REINSTATEMENT 3 500.00 | EA 2 EA | & 1,000.00
5 INTAKE STRUCTURE (ACCESS FOR LINING). $ 400000 EA 2 EA | § 8,000.00
6 INFTAKE REMOVAL $ 500.00 | EA 2 EA | & 1,000.00
7 TREE REMOVAL (FOR ACCESS) $ 3,00000| LS 1 LS | 3§ 3,000.00
8 TILE LOCATE (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF LINING) $ 500000| LS i LS | % 5,000.00
9 TREE REMOVAL (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF LINING) | § 25,000.00 | LS 1 LS | § 25000060
CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $ 65350.00
Contingency (15%) 3 8,802.50
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $ 757152.50
Engr. & Const. Observation {25%) $ 18788.13
TOTAL COST $  93,940.63
J:\6789.3-DDW04-Design-Project Management\Engineers Opinion of Cost6789.3 - Report Chart DD 86 Tile Opinion of Const
121372019

Cost.xlsx




Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Project: Main Tile Repair for D.D. #36
Location: Section 13, TO9ON, R22W Hardin County, lowa

Checked By:

By: Z.J.8.
Date: 11/8/2019
:LOG. |
Date: 12/2/2019

ITEM # l DESCRIPTION Unit Cost | Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost
I[HS?RICT CONSTRUCTION COSTS
101 |18" DUAL WALL PPE TILE WITH ROCK BEDDING $ 75.00 | LF 190 LF |8 714,250 00
102 lLATERAL 3 CONNECTION $ 1,500.00 | EA 1 EA 1% 1,500.00
103 IPRIVATE TILE CONNECTION $  1500.00] EA 2 EA {3 3,000.00
104 IINTAKE STRUCTURE $ 2,00000] EA 2 A | 3 4.000.00
105 ITILE REMOVAL $ 500 | LF 190 LF | $ 950.00
106 |INTAKE REMOVAL 3 500.00 [ EA 2 EA | § 1,000.00
167 TREE REMOVAL (FOR 100" AT REPLACEMENT) $ 10,0000 | LS 1 LS |8 1000000
108 TILE LOCATE (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF REPLACEMENT}) § 5000000 LS 1 LS |3 5,000.00
109 {TREE REMOVAL (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF REPLACEMENT) $ 2500000)| LS 1 LS [ $ 2500000
CONSTRUCTION SUBTQTAL § 64, 70000
Contingency {15%) $ 4,705.00
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL §  74,405.00
Engr. & Const. Observation (25%) 3 18,601.25
TOTAL COST $  93,006.25

J:\6789.3-DDV04-Design-Project ManagemenfEngineers Opinion of Costié789.3 - Report Chart DD 86 Tile Opinion of Const Cod®¥@2019



e PL T

R4l 2 LT

£

ON REPAIRS

NO. 86

IOWA

W

§.
S &c

W

“

!

Wity

LEE O.

1

TOWA

rmmmtitt

= 2
W GALLENTINE iR
= o

5745

4
Uy,

A

—5?

7
“Z
2
=
Z
Z
i

L

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THATI AM A DULY

LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
_Oe<>

. 7 \%\ PE £

iy * g
gy

N
N3
&

LEE O. GALLENTINE, P.E.

LICENSE NUMBER: 15745

MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020
PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:
SHOWN ON TABLE OF CONTENTS

DATE/

e ——

ENGINEERS + LAND SURVEYORS

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES OFFICE LOCATIONS

16 East Main Street, PO Box 754 | Marshalltown, [A 50158

1523 S. Bell Avenue, Suite 101 | Ames, 1A 50010
5106 Nordic Drive | Cedar Falls, IA 50613

51

4 A

§47

739 Park Avenue | Ackley, 1A 50601 8472303
1 Bank Street | Webster City, IA 50595

S  SUPPLEMENT TO
o ENGINEER’S REPORT

TO MAIN TILE
DRAINAGE DISTRIC

HARDIN COUNTY,

. 50601

3273




Supplement to Engineer's Report on Repairs
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 86
Hardin County, Iowa

Table of Contents Pg. 1

Report

Introduction Pg. 2

Repair Method Pg. 3

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs Pg. 4

Recommendations Pg. 4

Appendices

Map - Detailed Repair Location App. 1

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Full Tree Removal and Open Ditch Installation App. J
l

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\Supplement\6789.3 - Supplement_Engineer's
Report (Hardin Co)_DD_86.docx



Supplement to Engineer's Report on Repairs
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 86
Hardin County, Iowa

1.0 INTRODUCTION

o SCOPE OF WORK — The Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District
Trustees, requested Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to investigate and report concerning
repairs to the Main tile of Drainage District No. 86. At the hearing held on January 22,
2020, the original Engineer’s Report was discussed and reviewed by the District Trustees
along with comments received by landowners. As a result, the District Trustees requested
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to move ahead with this supplement for an additional option
for the detailed investigation area.

2

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\Supplement\6789.3 - Supplement_Engineer's
Report (Hardin Co)_DD_86.docx



2.0

REPAIR METHOD - To repair the issues discussed in the original report for the detailed study
area, there are several options, but the following is one that was discussed at the above mentioned
hearing:

Full Tree Removal and Open Ditch Installation

e  For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove trees within 50’ of the Main tile.

e For the portion of the Main tile south of the former C&NW railroad tracks that is severely
plugged with tree roots, remove and replace the existing Main tile with an open ditch.
Typically, an open ditch would be in the same location as the existing Main tile in order
to locate and outlet private and district tile.

e For reference, the detailed location of the proposed work near the C&NW railroad tracks
is shown on the map included in Appendix I.

e For the remainder of the Main tile between Dago Lake and the former C&NW railroad
tracks, verify the Main tile route and remove any trees within 50’ of the Main tile.

With the above-mentioned repair methods, the following should be noted:

The above option would involve taking of right of way.

¢ In the area of open ditch installation, the above option would require future monitoring
for additional tree growth and beaver activity.

e The above option would only remove obstructions in the Main tile at the location of
proposed open ditch installation. Any obstructions at other locations would remain in the
existing Main tile.

¢ Repairs have historically been viewed as not having an impact on jurisdictional wetlands.

As such, individual landowners should consult with applicable staff at the Hardin County

NRCS office to verify the existence of said jurisdictional wetlands and that there will be

no impact on them.

Per Iowa Code Chapter 468.126, any of the above actions that do not increase capacity would be
considered a repair. As such, Subsection 1, paragraph c of Chapter 468.126 states "If the
estimated cost of the repair does not exceed fifty thousand dollars, the board may order the work
done without conducting a hearing on the matter. Otherwise, the board shall set a date for a
hearing. . ." The opinion of probable construction cost contained in the next section of this report
exceeds said $50,000 limit. Therefore, a hearing will be required. Per lowa Code Chapter
468.126.1.g, the right of remonstrance does not apply to the proposed repairs.

3

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\Supplement\6789.3 - Supplement_Engineer's

Report (Hardin Co)_DD_86.docx



3.0

4.0

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS - Using the above method of repair,
an itemized list of project quantities and associated opinion of probable construction cost for this
option was compiled and are included in Appendix J of this report. A summary of said cost is as
follows:

REPAIR METHOD DRAINAGE | CONSTRUCTION
COEFF. COST
Full Tree Removal and Open Ditch Installation Existing $81,578.13

It should be noted that said costs include materials, labor, and equipment supplied by the
contractor to complete the necessary repair and include applicable engineering, construction
observation, and project administration fees by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates. However, said
costs do not include any interest, legal fees, county administrative fees, crop damages, other
damages, previous repairs, engineering fees to date, wetland mitigation fees, right of way
acquisition, or reclassification fees (if applicable). As always, all costs shown are opinions of
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates based on previous lettings on other projects. Said costs are just a
guideline and are not a guarantee of actual costs.

RECOMMENDATIONS - There is a definite need to perform one of the repairs from the

original report or this supplement. The repair would remove the identified current and future

restrictions and impediments to the Main tile and extend the serviceable lifespan of the same.

Therefore, it is recommended that the Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District

Trustees, should take action to accomplish the following:

e Approve the Supplement to Engineer’s Report as prepared by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.

e Hold the required hearing on the proposed repairs.

e Adopt one of the recommendations of the Original Report or Supplement to Engineer’s
Report.

¢ Direct Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to prepare plans and specifications for the proposed
repair.

e Direct Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to proceed with receiving bids from interested
contractors.

¢ Award contract to the lowest responsible contractor.

e If desired or required by Iowa Code, proceed with reclassification proceedings.

4

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\Supplement\6789.3 - Supplement_Engineer's

Report (Hardin Co)_DD_86.docx



LEGEND: | | T ——— _ = 5 = . P

wmmS == ASSUMED CITY STORM SEWER (LOCATED)
mms mmm  CITY STORM SEWER OR DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE ELLIS AVE
(REQUIRES ADDITIONAL RESEARCH) :
mmss mmm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (LOCATED) [ - . SANITARY MANHOLE [=~—0 g
=mms mmm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (FROM RECORD DRAWINGS) O —— |\\/ " ]
mmms mmm  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (ABANDONED 1966) - AN o S — S — o PG 3 . .
DRAINAGE DISTRICT TILE (TO BE CONVERTED TO ] i, : .
. SAN OPEN DITCH) . s | Gk A . _ 5 . 12 1y
———  CITY SANITARY SEWER (LOCATED) | | — — Vo i
PROPERTY LINE (PER GIS) : i _ A ~— 48 RCP W _
1 T AR m ' : . .00 2 . FL = 1073.80 _ poge
| . | w i r . .....__ AT ¥ s
._r: . : r_.f. L, o) |

B i

" /I STORM BEEHIVE
v INTAKE |

SANITARY MANHOLE

M SAN LT B s I AN

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

FORMER CHICAGO AN

RCP CULVERT

D NORTHWESTERN

JA6789.3-DDAwg$\Desigri6789.3_ENGINEER_REPORT_OPEN_DITCH dwg - Plan - (1-23-20 - 1:40pm - ZS343

4 ..uh e i._,\....,_w.,m.“.Ff Py E>:L./VO>O | Ry
. g - =
f ; $ ! o
| HICKENBOTTOM  INTAKE
! ¥l A I 7
I N ¥ . )
: S VAN TILE
3 " !
<5 AP o £ ;
<» L y s ..f. o,
LATERAL #3 TILE |/ £ A :
B NEEEENS VRN S NN S W S e A L .wx :
.5 {
g ....w“
1 oy
BEEHIVE INTAKE
N
m
” | _
- i . ey L
N0, REVISIO BY DATE REVISON DATE Clapssddic Garber Associates, Inc | DESIGNED: ZI5__ DATE 20191144 y
- , — . |mme—ow s DRAINAGE DISTRICT #86/  DETAILED REPAIR MAP  fmei
0 I3 8 Tol Free (800) 542:7081 CHECKED: 10G __ _DATE 20191104 §§~z HO€> SHEET NO.
‘www.cgaconsuitants.com APPROVED: L0G _ _ DATE: _2019:11-04 3 1




ENGINEERS « LAND SURVEYORS

Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Project: Main Tile Repair for D.D. #86
Location: Section 13, T90N, R22W Hardin County, lowa

By: Z.4.S.

Date: 1/23/2020
CheckedBy: L.O.G. |

Date: 1/27/2020

ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Cost Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost

DISTRICT CONSTRUCTION COSTS

(OPEN DITCH CONSTRUCTION $ 30.00) LF 190 LF | § 5,700.00

JLATERAL 3 OUTLET $ 1,500.00| EA 1 EA | § 1,500.00

203 _vm_<>,_.m TILE OUTLET $ 1,500.00| EA 2 EA ] $ 3,000.00

204 _mgmmo END SECTIONS $ 1,500.00] EA 2 EA 1 9§ 3,000.00

205 _mm<m._.z_mz._. $ 40.00 | TN 40 TN | § 1,600.00

206 JTiLe REMOVAL $ 500| LF 190 LF | s 950.00

207 JINTAKE REMOVAL $ 500.00 | EA 2 EA ] $ 1,000.00

208 TREE REMOVAL (FOR 100' AT REPLACEMENT) $ 10,000.00] LS 1 LS § § 10,000.00

209 TILE LOCATE (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF REPLACEMENT) $ 5,000.00] LS 1 LS | § 5,000.00

210 TREE REMOVAL (FROM DAGO LAKE TO START OF REPLACEMENT) $ 25,000.00| LS 1 LS | § 2500000

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL § 56,750.00

Contingency (15%) $ 8,512.50

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL § 6526250

Engr. & Const. Observation (25%) $ 1631563

TOTAL COST $ 61,578.13

J:\6789.3-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineers Opinion of Cost\6789.3 - Report Chart DD 86 Tile Opinion of Const Cost.xi$27/2020




DRAINAGE ELECTION DRAINAGE DISTRICT 165,
HARDIN COUNTY ILep

Feg
” 12 299
Please return this completed form to the Auditor’s office by Monday, February 17, 20%6? AUD/TOR

Election Date: Mﬂczc l'\ ? Q” \90'2 0

(Per Code ot lowa Election Must be no less than 40 days and no more than 60 days past April 24, 2019)

Election Location: lb'?’s ' g)ﬁ'l)l

(Per Code of lowa Election must be held at some convenient place ig the district. Please p?ovide the address above.)

Election Time: 1:00 pm — 5:00 pm
{Per Code of Iowa Election must be held from 1:00 pm — 5:00 pm on the day of the election)

Appointed Judge: (\Z)“ /J-Ed)ﬂ
Appointed Judge: ‘MQY\I {

Appointed Judge: Bﬂi( ﬂllji\\l

Appointed Clerk: Y“M‘Al sﬂﬁH’\
Appointed Clerk: N L}T\I h\‘n ﬂ{hn\

. Address to send the Election Packet: ‘018 g A‘i ﬂda!/} tTA g@()ﬂ

i

Ld B0€'80'0C L | 9ed





